IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

IN RE:) Chapter 11
BUILDING MATERIALS HOLDING CORPORATION, et al.,1 Debtors.) Case No. 09-12074 (KJC)
	Jointly Administered
	Ref. Docket No. 1134

ORDER CONFIRMING JOINT PLAN OF REORGANIZATION FOR THE DEBTORS UNDER CHAPTER 11 OF THE BANKRUPTCY CODE AMENDED DECEMBER 14, 2009 (WITH TECHNICAL MODIFICATIONS)

The Joint Plan of Reorganization for the Debtors under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code Amended October 22, 2009, (as amended, modified, or supplemented, the "Plan") having been filed with the Bankruptcy Court (the "Court") (Docket No. 834, Exhibit B to Exhibit 3) by the above-captioned debtors and debtors-in-possession (the "Debtors"); and the Disclosure Statement with Respect to Joint Plan of Reorganization for the Debtors under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code Amended October 22, 2009, dated as of October 22, 2009 (the "Disclosure Statement"), having been filed with this Court (Docket No. 834, Exhibit 3); and the Disclosure Statement, and appropriate Ballots² for voting on the Plan, having been approved, and transmitted to Holders of Claims in Classes 2(a)-(1), Classes 3(a)-(1), Classes 6(a)-(1), and Classes 8(a)-(1) against the Debtors, pursuant to that certain Order (I) Approving the Disclosure

¹ The Debtors, along with the last four digits of each Debtor's tax identification number, are as follows: Building Materials Holding Corporation (4269), BMC West Corporation (0454), SelectBuild Construction, Inc. (1340), SelectBuild Northern California, Inc. (7579), Illinois Framing, Inc. (4451), C Construction, Inc. (8206), TWF Construction, Inc. (3334), H.N.R. Framing Systems, Inc. (4329), SelectBuild Southern California, Inc. (9378), SelectBuild Nevada, Inc. (8912), SelectBuild Arizona, LLC (0036), and SelectBuild Illinois, LLC (0792). The mailing address for the Debtors is 720 Park Boulevard, Suite 200, Boise, Idaho 83712.

² All capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this Confirmation Order shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

Statement; (II) Establishing Procedures for Solicitation and Tabulation of Votes To Accept or Reject the Plan, Including (A) Approving the Form and Manner of Distribution of Solicitation Packages, (B) Approving the Form and Manner of Notice of the Confirmation Hearing, (C) Establishing a Record Date and Approving Procedures for Distribution of Solicitation Packages, (D) Approving Forms of Ballots, (E) Establishing the Deadline for Receipt of Ballots, and (F) Approving the Procedures for Vote Tabulations; (III) Establishing the Deadline and Procedures for Filing Objections to (A) Confirmation of the Plan, and (B) Proposed Cure Amounts Related to Contracts and Leases Assumed under the Plan; and (IV) Granting Related Relief, dated October 22, 2009 (Docket No. 768) (the "Disclosure Statement Approval Order"), as modified by that certain Order Extending By Two Days the Deadlines for Mailing Solicitation Packages, Confirmation Hearing Notices and Non-Voting Holder Notices dated October 27, 2009 (the "Solicitation Extension Order"); and a copy of the Plan with technical modifications having been filed on December 14, 2009 [D.I. 1134] and being attached hereto as Exhibit 1; and a redline copy of the Plan showing the modifications being attached hereto as Exhibit 2 (such plan modifications, the "Subsequent Plan Modifications"); and the Debtors having filed their Memorandum of Law in Support of Confirmation of Joint Plan of Reorganization for the Debtors Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code Amended December 7, 2009 (With Technical Modifications), with this Court on December 7, 2009 (the "Confirmation Memorandum"); and the hearing to consider the confirmation of the Plan having been held before the Court on December 17, 2009 (the "Confirmation Hearing") after due and sufficient notice was given to Holders of Claims against, and Interests in, the Debtors and other parties in interest in accordance with the Disclosure Statement Approval Order, the Solicitation Extension Order, the Bankruptcy Code, the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure (the "Bankruptcy Rules"), and the local bankruptcy rules of this Court (the "Local Rules"), in each case as established by the affidavits of service, mailing, and/or publication filed with this Court prior to the Confirmation Hearing (collectively, the "Notice Affidavits");3 and upon all of the proceedings held before this Court and after full consideration of: (i) each of the objections to the confirmation of the Plan filed with this Court and not subsequently withdrawn, settled, or deemed moot (the "Objections"); (ii) the Declaration of Jeffrey S. Stein of the Garden City Group, Inc. Certifying the Methodology for the Tabulation of Votes on and Results of Voting with Respect to the Joint Plan of Reorganization for the Debtors under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code Amended October 22, 2009, filed on December 7, 2009 (Docket No. 1078) by Garden City Group, Inc. ("GCG"), the Debtors' voting and claims agent; (iii) testimony proffered or presented at the Confirmation Hearing, (iv) the declarations and/or affidavits filed with this Court; (v) all other evidence proffered or adduced at, memoranda and objections filed in connection with and arguments of counsel made at, the Confirmation Hearing; and (vi) the entire record of the Chapter 11 Cases (as defined below); and after due deliberation thereon; and good cause appearing therefor;

IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED THAT:4

A. <u>Chapter 11 Petitions</u>. On June 16, 2009 (the "Petition Date"), the Debtors filed voluntary petitions for relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code with this Court (the "Chapter 11 Cases"). The Debtors are operating their businesses and managing their

³ The Notice Affidavits are located at Docket Nos. 821, 835, 836, 837, 854, 855, 856, 1005, 1006 and 1049.

⁴ The findings and conclusions set forth in this Confirmation Order and in the record of the Confirmation Hearing constitute this Court's findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 7052, made applicable to this proceeding pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 9014. To the extent any of the following findings of fact constitute conclusions of law, they are adopted as such. To the extent any of the following conclusions of law constitute findings of fact, they are adopted as such.

properties as debtors-in-possession pursuant to sections 1107(a) and 1108 of the Bankruptcy Code. No trustee or examiner has been appointed in these Chapter 11 Cases. On June 26, 2009, the United States Trustee (the "U.S. Trustee") appointed an official committee of unsecured creditors pursuant to section 1102 of the Bankruptcy Code (the "Committee").

- B. Exclusive Jurisdiction; Venue; Core Proceeding (28 U.S.C. §§ 157(b)(2) and 1334(a)). This Court has jurisdiction over the Chapter 11 Cases pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 157 and 1334. Venue is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1408 and 1409. The confirmation of the Plan is a core proceeding under 28 U.S.C. § 157(b)(2) and this Court has exclusive jurisdiction to determine whether the Plan complies with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code.
- C. <u>Judicial Notice</u>. This Court takes judicial notice of the docket of the Chapter 11 Cases maintained by the Clerk of this Court and/or its duly-appointed agent, including, without limitation, all pleadings and other documents filed, all orders entered and all evidence and arguments made, proffered, or adduced at, the hearings held before this Court during the pendency of the Chapter 11 Cases.
- D. <u>Solicitation of Votes</u>. Votes for acceptance or rejection of the Plan were solicited in good faith and in compliance with sections 1125 and 1126 of the Bankruptcy Code, Bankruptcy Rules 3017 and 3018, and all other applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, the Local Rules, and all other applicable rules, laws, and regulations. All procedures used to distribute Ballots to the applicable Holders of Claims and to tabulate the Ballots were fair and reasonable and conducted in accordance with the Disclosure Statement Approval Order, the Solicitation Extension Order, and the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, the Local Rules, and all other applicable rules, laws, and regulations.

- Notice of Confirmation Hearing. The Debtors have given proper and sufficient E. notice of the Confirmation Hearing as required by Bankruptcy Rule 3017(d). Due, adequate, and sufficient notice of the Confirmation Hearing, along with the deadlines for voting on or filing objections to the Plan, has been given to all known Holders of Claims and Interests substantially in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Disclosure Statement Approval Order and the Solicitation Extension Order. The notice of the Confirmation Hearing, the Disclosure Statement, Plan and appropriate Ballots were transmitted and served in compliance with the Disclosure Statement Approval Order, the Solicitation Extension Order, and the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, the Local Rules, and all other applicable rules, laws, and regulations, and such transmittal and service were adequate and sufficient under the circumstances. In addition, notice of the Confirmation Hearing was published in the national edition of the Wall Street Journal, regional English and Spanish language papers in Las Vegas, Los Angeles, and Phoenix, and English language publications in Miami and Fort Lauderdale in compliance with the Disclosure Statement Approval Order and the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, the Local Rules, and all other applicable rules, laws, and regulations, and such publication notice was adequate and sufficient under the circumstances.
- F. <u>Subsequent Plan Modifications</u>. Adequate and sufficient notice of the Subsequent Plan Modifications has been given and no other or further notice is or shall be required and such Subsequent Plan Modifications are approved in full.
- G. <u>Burden of Proof.</u> The Debtors, as the proponents of the Plan, have the burden of proving the satisfaction of the elements of sections 1129(a) and (b) of the Bankruptcy Code by a preponderance of the evidence.

- H. Plan Compliance with Bankruptcy Code (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(1)). The Plan complies with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, thereby satisfying section 1129(a)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code.
 - (1) Proper Classification (11 U.S.C. §§ 1122 & 1123(a)(1)). In addition to Administrative Expense Claims (including Claims under the DIP Facility); Professional Compensation Claims; and Priority Tax Claims, which need not be classified, the Plan designates one hundred twenty (120) Classes of Claims and Interests. The Claims and Interests placed in each Class are substantially similar to other Claims or Interests, as the case may be, in each such Class. Valid business, factual, and legal reasons exist for separately classifying the various Classes of Claims and Interests created under the Plan and such Classes are proper. Thus, the Plan satisfies sections 1122 and 1123(a)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code.
 - Specify Unimpaired Classes (11 U.S.C. § 1123(a)(2)). The Plan specifies (2)that the following classes (collectively, the "Unimpaired Classes") are Unimpaired under the Plan, thereby satisfying section 1123(a)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code: Other Priority Claims against BMHC (Class 1(a)), Other Priority Claims against BMC West (Class 1(b)), Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Construction (Class 1(c)), Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Northern California (Class 1(d)), Other Priority Claims against Illinois Framing (Class 1(e)), Other Priority Claims against C Construction (Class 1(f)), Other Priority Claims against TWF Construction (Class 1(g)), Other Priority Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems (Class 1(h)), Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Southern California (Class 1(i)), Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Nevada (Class (j)); Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Arizona (Class 1(k)), and Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Illinois (Class 1(1)); Other Secured Claims against BMHC (Class 4(a)), Other Secured Claims against BMC West (Class 4(b)), Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Construction (Class 4(c)), Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California (Class 4(d)), Other Secured Claims against Illinois Framing (Class 4(e)), Other Secured Claims against C Construction (Class 4(f)), Other Secured Claims against TWF Construction (Class 4(g)), Other Secured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems (Class 4(h)), Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California (Class 4(i)), Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada (Class 4(j)), Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona (Class 4(k)), and Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois (Class 4(l)); L/C General Unsecured Claims against BMHC (Class 5(a)), L/C General Unsecured Claims against BMC West (Class 5(b)), L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Construction (Class 5(c)), L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California (Class 5(d)), L/C General Unsecured Claims against Illinois Framing (Class 5(e)), L/C General Unsecured Claims against C Construction (Class 5(f)), L/C General Unsecured Claims against TWF Construction (Class 5(g)), L/C General Unsecured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems (Class 5(h)), L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California (Class 5(i)), L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada (Class 5(j)), L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona (Class 5(k)), and L/C

General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois (Class 5(1)); to preserve the Debtors' corporate structure, Intercompany Claims against BMHC (Class 5(a)), Intercompany Claims against BMC West (Class 5(b)), Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Construction (Class 5(c)), Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Northern California (Class 5(d)), Intercompany Claims against Illinois Framing (Class 5(e)), Intercompany against C Construction (Class 5(f)), Intercompany Claims against TWF Construction (Class 5(g)), Intercompany Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems (Class 5(h)), Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Southern California (Class 5(i)), Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Nevada (Class 5(j)), Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Arizona (Class 5(k)), and Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Illinois (Class 5(1)); and, to preserve the Debtors' corporate structure, Interests in BMC West (Class 9(b)), Interests in SelectBuild Construction (Class 9(c)), Interests in SelectBuild Northern California (Class 9(d)), Interests in Illinois Framing (Class 9(e)), Interests in C Construction (Class 9(f)), Interests in TWF Construction (Class 9(g)), Interests in H.N.R. Framing Systems (Class 9(h)), Interests in SelectBuild Southern California (Class 9(i)), Interests in SelectBuild Nevada (Class 9(j)), Interests in SelectBuild Arizona (Class 9(k)), and Interests in SelectBuild Illinois (Class 9(l)).

Specify Treatment of Impaired Classes (11 U.S.C. § 1123(a)(3)). The (3) Plan designates the following classes (collectively, the "Impaired Classes") as Impaired and specifies the treatment of Claims and Interests in those Classes, thereby satisfying section 1123(a)(3) of the Bankruptcy Code: Funded Lender Claims against BMHC (Class 2(a)), Funded Lender Claims against BMC West (Class 2(b)), Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Construction (Class 2(c)), Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Northern California (Class 2(d)), Funded Lender Claims against Illinois Framing (Class 2(e)), Funded Lender Claims against C Construction (Class 2(f)), Funded Lender Claims against TWF Construction (Class 2(g)), Funded Lender Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems (Class 2(h)), Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Southern California (Class 2(i)), Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Nevada (Class 2(i)), Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Arizona (Class 2(k)), and Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Illinois (Class 2(1)); L/C Lender Claims against BMHC (Class 3(a)), L/C Lender Claims against BMC West (Class 3(b)), L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Construction (Class 3(c)), L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Northern California (Class 3(d)), L/C Lender Claims against Illinois Framing (Class 3(e)), L/C Lender Claims against C Construction (Class 3(f)), L/C Lender Claims against TWF Construction (Class 3(g)), L/C Lender Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems (Class 3(h)), L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Southern California (Class 3(i)), L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Nevada (Class 3(j)), L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Arizona (Class 3(k)), and L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Illinois (Class 3(1)); General Unsecured Claims against BMHC (Class 6(a)), General Unsecured Claims against BMC West (Class 6(b)), General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Construction (Class 6(c)), General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California (Class 6(d)), General Unsecured Claims against Illinois Framing (Class 6(e)), General Unsecured Claims against C Construction (Class 6(f)), General Unsecured Claims against TWF Construction (Class 6(g)), General Unsecured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems (Class 6(h)), General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California (Class 6(i)), General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada (Class 6(j)), General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona (Class 6(k)), and General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois (Class 6(l)); Small Unsecured Claims against BMHC (Class 8(a)), Small Unsecured Claims against BMC West (Class 8(b)), Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Construction (Class 8(c)), Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California (Class 8(d)), Small Unsecured Claims against Illinois Framing (Class 8(e)), Small Unsecured Claims against C Construction (Class 8(f)), Small Unsecured Claims against TWF Construction (Class 8(g)), Small Unsecured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems (Class 8(h)), Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California (Class 8(i)), Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada (Class 8(j)), Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona (Class 8(k)), and Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois (Class 8(1)); Interests in BMHC (Class 9(a)); Section 510(b) Claims against BMHC (Class 10(a)), Section 510(b) Claims against BMC West (Class 10(b)), Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Construction (Class 10(c)), Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Northern California (Class 10(d)), Section 510(b) Claims against Illinois Framing (Class 10(e)), Section 510(b) Claims against C Construction (Class 10(f)), Section 510(b) Claims against TWF Construction (Class 10(g)), Section 510(b) Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems (Class 10(h)), Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Southern California (Class 10(i)), Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Nevada (Class 10(j)), Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Arizona (Class 10(k)), and Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Illinois (Class 10(l)).

- (4) No Discrimination Within Classes (11 U.S.C. § 1123(a)(4)). The Plan provides for the same treatment by the Debtors for each Claim or Interest in each respective Class unless the Holder of a particular Claim or Interest has agreed to a less favorable treatment of such Claim or Interest, thereby satisfying section 1123(a)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- (5) <u>Implementation of Plan (11 U.S.C. § 1123(a)(5))</u>. The Plan provides adequate and proper means for implementation of the Plan, thereby satisfying section 1123(a)(5) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- (6) Non-Voting Equity Securities (11 U.S.C. § 1123(a)(6)). The Plan provides that the New Certificates of Incorporation and New Bylaws shall prohibit the issuance of non-voting equity securities to the extent required by section 1123(a)(6) of the Bankruptcy Code, thereby satisfying section 1123(a)(6) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- (7) Selection of Directors and Officers (11 U.S.C. § 1123(a)(7)). Pursuant to Section 7.10 of the Plan, on and after the Effective Date, the business and affairs of the Reorganized Debtors will be managed by the officers, directors or managers identified in the Plan Supplement. At or prior to the Confirmation Hearing, the Debtors disclosed the identity and affiliations of any Person (each, a "New Director") proposed to serve on the New Boards, and, to the extent such Person is an insider other than by virtue of being a director, the nature of any compensation for such Person. On the Effective Date, the New Boards shall be established as provided in the New Certificates of Incorporation and New Bylaws of the Reorganized Debtors, and the New Directors and officers of the

Reorganized Debtors shall be appointed as the New Directors and officers of the Reorganized Debtors. The New Directors and officers of the Reorganized Debtors were selected in a manner consistent with the interests of creditors and with public policy, thereby satisfying section 1123(a)(7) of the Bankruptcy Code.

- (8) Additional Plan Provisions (11 U.S.C. § 1123(b)). The Plan's provisions are appropriate, in the best interests of the Debtors and their Estates and not inconsistent with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, including, without limitation, provisions for (i) the assumption or rejection of executory contracts and unexpired leases; (ii) the Reorganized Debtors' retention of any and all Causes of Action whether arising before or after the Petition Date, and whether directly or derivatively; and (iii) releases of various persons and entities, exculpation of various persons and entities with respect to actions related to or taken in furtherance of the Chapter 11 Cases, and preliminary and permanent injunctions against certain actions against the Debtors, their Estates, and their properties.
- (9) <u>Identification of Plan (Bankruptcy Rule 3016(a))</u>. The Plan is dated and identifies the entities submitting it, thereby satisfying Bankruptcy Rule 3016(a).
- I. <u>The Debtors' Compliance with Bankruptcy Code (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(2))</u>. The Debtors have complied with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, thereby satisfying section 1129(a)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code. Specifically:
 - (1) the Debtors are proper debtors under section 109 of the Bankruptcy Code and proper proponents of the Plan under section 1121(a) of the Bankruptcy Code;
 - (2) the Debtors have complied with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, except as otherwise provided or permitted by orders of this Court; and
 - (3) the Debtors have complied with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, the Local Rules, and the Disclosure Statement Approval Order and Solicitation Extension Order in transmitting the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, the Ballots, and related documents and notices and in soliciting and tabulating votes on the Plan.
- J. <u>Plan Proposed in Good Faith (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(3))</u>. The Debtors have proposed the Plan in good faith and not by any means forbidden by law, thereby satisfying section 1129(a)(3) of the Bankruptcy Code. In determining that the Plan has been proposed in good faith, this Court has examined the totality of the circumstances surrounding the filing of the Chapter 11 Cases and the formulation and confirmation of the Plan. The Debtors have

negotiated the Plan and participated in the Plan formulation process at arms' length and in good faith. The Chapter 11 Cases were filed and the Plan was proposed with the legitimate and honest purpose of reorganizing the Debtors and maximizing the value of the Debtors' assets and expeditiously distributing the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests and other consideration to the Debtors' creditors and interest holders pursuant to the Plan.

- K. Payments for Services or Costs and Expenses (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(4)). Any payment made or to be made by the Debtors for services or for costs and expenses in or in connection with the Chapter 11 Cases, or in connection with the Plan and incident to the Chapter 11 Cases requiring approval, has been approved by, or is subject to the approval of, this Court as reasonable, thereby satisfying section 1129(a)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- L. <u>Directors, Officers and Insiders (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(5))</u>. The Debtors have complied with section 1129(a)(5) of the Bankruptcy Code. The identity and affiliations of the persons proposed to serve as the initial directors and officers of the Reorganized Debtors after confirmation of the Plan have been fully disclosed to the extent such information is available, and the appointment to, or continuance in, such offices of such persons is consistent with the interests of Holders of Claims against and Interests in the Debtors and with public policy. To the extent available, the identity of any insider that will be employed or retained by the Reorganized Debtors and the nature of such insider's compensation have also been fully disclosed.
- M. No Rate Changes (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(6)). The Debtors are not subject to any governmental regulatory commission with jurisdiction, after confirmation of the Plan, over the rates of the Debtors. Thus, section 1129(a)(6) of the Bankruptcy Code is not applicable in the Chapter 11 Cases.

- N. Best Interests of Creditors Test (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(7)). The Plan satisfies section 1129(a)(7) of the Bankruptcy Code. The liquidation analysis set forth in Exhibit E to the Disclosure Statement, as updated prior to the Confirmation Hearing, and other evidence proffered or adduced at the Confirmation Hearing (1) are persuasive and credible, (2) have not been controverted by other evidence and (3) establish that each Holder of a Claim or Interest in an Impaired Class either (i) has accepted the Plan or (ii) will receive or retain under the Plan, on account of such Claim or Interest, property of a value, as of the Effective Date of the Plan, that is not less than the amount that it would receive if the Debtors were liquidated under Chapter 7 of the Bankruptcy Code on such date.
- O. Acceptance by Classes (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(8)). Under section 1126(f) of the Bankruptcy Code, the Holders of Claims in the Unimpaired Classes are Unimpaired and, thus, are conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan. The Holders of Claims in Classes 2(a)-(l), Classes 3(a)-(l), Classes 6(a), 6(k), and 6(l) and Classes 8(a)(-(l) are impaired by the Plan and have voted to accept the Plan in accordance with sections 1126(c) of the Bankruptcy Code. The Holders of the Claims and/or Interests in Class 9(a) and Classes 10(a)-(l) are deemed to have rejected the Plan pursuant to section 1126(g) of the Bankruptcy Code. In addition, the Holders of Claims in Classes 6(b), 6(c), 6(d), 6(f), 6(g), 6(h), 6(i), and 6(j) are impaired by the Plan and have voted to reject the Plan. No valid ballot was cast in class 6(e). Although section 1129(a)(8) of the Bankruptcy Code is not satisfied with respect to such rejecting Classes identified above, the Plan may nevertheless be confirmed because the Plan satisfies section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code with respect to such rejecting Classes (collectively, the "Rejecting Classes"). Section 5.3 of the Plan contemplates the non-consensual confirmation of the Plan.

- P. Treatment of Administrative Expense Claims, Other Priority Claims and Priority

 Tax Claims (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(9)). The treatment of Allowed Administrative Expense

 Claims, Professional Compensation Claims, DIP Facility Claims and Allowed Other Priority

 Claims under Sections 2.1, 2.2, 2.4 and 4.1 of the Plan, respectively, satisfies the requirements of

 sections 1129(a)(9)(A) and (B) of the Bankruptcy Code, and the treatment of Allowed Priority

 Tax Claims under Section 2.3 of the Plan satisfies the requirements of section 1129(a)(9)(C) of

 the Bankruptcy Code, thereby satisfying section 1129(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- Q. Acceptance by At Least One Impaired Class of Claims (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(10)). Classes 2(a)-(l), Classes 3(a)-(l), Classes 6(a), 6(k) and 6(l), and Classes 8(a)(-(l) are Impaired Classes of Claims that have voted to accept the Plan in accordance with section 1126(c) of the Bankruptcy Code, determined without including any acceptance of the Plan by "insiders," thereby satisfying section 1129(a)(10) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- R. Feasibility (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(11)). The evidence proffered or adduced at the Confirmation Hearing (1) is persuasive and credible, (2) has not been controverted by other evidence, and (3) establishes that the Plan is feasible and that there is a reasonable prospect of the Reorganized Debtors being able to meet their financial obligations under the Plan and their business in the ordinary course and that confirmation of the Plan is not likely to be followed by the liquidation or the need for further financial reorganization of the Reorganized Debtors, thereby satisfying the requirements of section 1129(a)(11) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- S. Payment of Fees (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(12)). All fees payable under 28 U.S.C. § 1930 have been paid or will be paid pursuant to Section 2.5 of the Plan, thereby satisfying section 1129(a)(12) of the Bankruptcy Code.

- T. <u>Continuation of Retiree Benefits (11 U.S.C. § 1129(a)(13))</u>. The Reorganized Debtors shall continue to pay all retiree benefits of the Debtors, if any, for the duration of the period for which the Debtors have obligated themselves to provide such benefits, thereby satisfying section 1129(a)(13) of the Bankruptcy Code to the extent such section is applicable to the Debtors.
- No Unfair Discrimination; Fair and Equitable (11 U.S.C. § 1129(b)). The U. following classes are deemed to have rejected the Plan: Interests in BMHC (Class 9(a)); Section 510(b) Claims against BMHC (Class 10(a)), Section 510(b) Claims against BMC West (Class 10(b)), Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Construction (Class 10(c)), Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Northern California (Class 10(d)), Section 510(b) Claims against Illinois Framing (Class 10(e)), Section 510(b) Claims against C Construction (Class 10(f)), Section 510(b) Claims against TWF Construction (Class 10(g)), Section 510(b) Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems (Class 10(h)), Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Southern California (Class 10(i)), Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Nevada (Class 10(j)), Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Arizona (Class 10(k)), and Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Illinois (Class 10(1)). In addition, the Holders of Claims in Classes 6(b), 6(c), 6(d), 6(f), 6(g), 6(h), 6(i), and 6(j) are impaired by the Plan and have voted to reject the Plan. No valid ballot was cast in class 6(e). The evidence proffered or adduced at the Confirmation Hearing (i) is persuasive and credible, (ii) has not been controverted by other evidence, and (iii) establishes that the Plan does not discriminate unfairly, and is fair and equitable, with respect to the Rejecting Classes, as required by sections 1129(b)(1) and (b)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code, because no Holder of any interest that is junior to the Claims and Interests represented by the respective Rejecting Classes will receive or retain any property under the Plan on account of

such junior interest, and no Holder of a Claim in a Class senior to the Rejecting Classes is receiving more than 100% recovery on account of its Claim. Thus, the Plan may be confirmed notwithstanding the rejection or deemed rejection of the Plan by the Rejecting Classes.

- V. <u>Principal Purpose of Plan (11 U.S.C. § 1129(d))</u>. The principal purpose of the Plan is not the avoidance of taxes or the avoidance of the application of Section 5 of the Securities Act of 1933 (15 U.S.C. § 77e).
- The evidence proffered or Good Faith Solicitation (11 U.S.C. § 1125(e)). W. adduced at the Confirmation Hearing (1) is persuasive and credible, (2) has not been controverted by other evidence, and (3) establishes that the Debtors (and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, Professionals, and agents) (collectively, the "Protected Parties") have, as applicable, (a) solicited acceptances or rejections of the Plan in good faith and in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, including without limitation, sections 1125 and 1126 of the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, the Local Rules, and any applicable non-bankruptcy law, rule or regulation governing the adequacy of disclosure in connection with such solicitation and (b) participated in good faith and in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code and any applicable non-bankruptcy law, rule, or regulation in the offer and issuance of any securities under the Plan. Accordingly, each of the Protected Parties is entitled to the protections afforded by section 1125(e) of the Bankruptcy Code and the exculpation, release, and limitation of liability provisions and protections set forth in Article IX of the Plan.
- X. <u>Satisfaction of Confirmation Requirements.</u> Based on the foregoing, the Plan satisfies the requirements for confirmation set forth in section 1129 of the Bankruptcy Code.

- Y. <u>Retention of Jurisdiction</u>. This Court may properly retain jurisdiction over the matters set forth in Article XI of the Plan as and to the extent provided therein and as contemplated herein.
- Z. <u>Classification Takes Into Account Subordination Rights</u>. The classification and manner of satisfying all Claims and Interests under the Plan takes into consideration all contractual, legal, and equitable subordination and turnover rights, whether arising under general principles of equitable subordination, section 510 of the Bankruptcy Code, or otherwise, that a Holder of a Claim or Interest may have against another Holder of a Claim or Interest with respect to any distribution made pursuant to the Plan.

AA. <u>Findings Regarding Third-Party Releases and Related Provisions</u>. The release, exculpation, and injunction provisions contained in the Plan, including, without limitation, those contained in Article IX of the Plan, (1) have been negotiated in good faith and at arms' length; (2) are consistent with sections 105, 1123(b)(6), 1129, and 1142 of the Bankruptcy Code and applicable caselaw; and (3) are each necessary for the Debtors' successful reorganization and are integral to the structure of the Plan and formed part of the agreement among all parties in interest embodied therein.

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED THAT:

1. <u>Confirmation of the Plan</u>. The Plan is approved and confirmed under section 1129 of the Bankruptcy Code. Each of the terms and conditions of the Plan, and the exhibits and schedules thereto, are an integral part of the Plan and are incorporated by reference into this Confirmation Order. The Plan complies with all applicable provisions of the

Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, and the Local Rules relating to and regarding confirmation.

- 2. <u>Objections</u>. All Objections to confirmation of the Plan that have not been withdrawn, waived, or settled and all reservations of rights included therein, are overruled on the merits and for the reasons set forth on the record at the Confirmation Hearing. All withdrawn objections are deemed withdrawn with prejudice.
- 3. <u>Provisions of Plan and Confirmation Order Nonseverable and Mutually</u>

 Dependent. The provisions of the Plan and this Confirmation Order, including the findings of fact and conclusions of law set forth herein, are non-severable and mutually dependent.
- 4. <u>Plan Classification Controlling.</u> The classification of Claims and Interests for purposes of the distributions to be made under the Plan shall be governed solely by the terms of the Plan. Other than with respect to the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election, the classifications set forth on the Ballots tendered to or returned by the Debtors' creditors in connection with voting on the Plan (a) were set forth on the Ballots solely for purposes of voting to accept or reject the Plan, (b) do not necessarily represent, and in no event shall be deemed to modify or otherwise affect, the actual classification of such Claims or Interests under the Plan for distribution purposes, and (c) may not be relied upon by any creditor or interest holder as representing the actual classification of such Claims or Interests under the Plan for distribution or any other purpose (other than for evidencing the vote of such party on the Plan).
- 5. <u>Distributions are Fair</u>. The distribution of Cash, Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, Term Notes and the other consideration to the Holders of Allowed Claims in exchange for their Allowed Claims is fair and for reasonably equivalent value. Pursuant to section 1123 of the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rule 9019, and in consideration for the classification,

distributions, releases, and other benefits provided under the Plan, upon the Effective Date, the provisions of the Plan shall constitute a good faith compromise and settlement of all Claims and Interests and controversies resolved pursuant to the Plan.

- 6. <u>Binding Effect.</u> Pursuant to section 1141 and the other applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, effective as of the Effective Date and without limiting or altering Section 9.6 of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan (including the exhibits and schedules to, and all documents and agreements executed pursuant to or in connection with, the Plan) and this Confirmation Order shall be binding on (a) the Debtors, (b) all Holders of Claims against and Interests in the Debtors, whether or not Impaired under the Plan and whether or not such Holders have accepted or rejected the Plan, (c) each Person or entity receiving, retaining, or otherwise acquiring property under the Plan, (d) any non-Debtor party to an executory contract or unexpired lease with any one of the Debtors, (e) any Person or entity making an appearance in the Chapter 11 Cases or any other party-in-interest in the Chapter 11 Cases, and (f) each of the foregoing's respective successors and assigns.
- Claims Arising Under the DIP Facility. On the Effective Date, the Allowed Claims under the DIP Facility shall be indefeasibly paid in full in Cash in full satisfaction, settlement, discharge, and release of, and in exchange for, such Claims under the DIP Facility. Upon indefeasible payment and satisfaction in full of all Allowed Claims under the DIP Facility, the DIP Facility revolving credit agreement (the "DIP Credit Agreement"), and all "Loan Documents" as defined therein, respectively, and all Liens and security interests granted to secure the Claims under the DIP Facility, shall be immediately terminated, extinguished, and released, in each case without further notice to or order of this Court, act or action under applicable law, regulation, order, or rule or the vote, consent, authorization, or approval of any

Person, and the administrative agent under the DIP Facility shall promptly execute and deliver to the Reorganized Debtors such instruments of termination, release, satisfaction and/or assignment (in recordable form) as may be reasonably requested by the Reorganized Debtors. Notwithstanding the above, any indemnity provisions contained in the DIP Credit Agreement shall survive such termination, release, and satisfaction in the manner and to the extent set forth therein.

- 8. <u>Corporate Existence</u>. The Debtors, as Reorganized Debtors, shall continue to exist after the Effective Date (subject to the Restructuring Transactions) with all powers of a corporation or limited liability company, as the case may be, under the laws of the respective states governing their formation and without prejudice to any right to alter or terminate such existence (whether by merger or otherwise) under such applicable state law, except as such rights may be limited and conditioned by the Plan and the documents and instruments executed and delivered in connection therewith.
- 9. <u>Vesting of Assets in the Reorganized Debtors</u>. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or this Confirmation Order, on and after the Effective Date, all property and assets of the Debtors and their Estates (including, without limitation, Causes of Action and, unless otherwise waived pursuant to an order of this Court, the Avoidance Actions) and any property and assets acquired by the Debtors pursuant to the Plan or during the Chapter 11 Cases shall vest in the Reorganized Debtors, free and clear of any and all Liens, Claims, Interests, charges, or other encumbrances. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or this Confirmation Order, on and after the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors may (a) operate their businesses, (b) use, acquire, transfer, or dispose of property, and (c) compromise or settle any Claims or Causes of Action, in each case without notice to, hearing before, supervision of, or approval by

this Court and free of any restrictions of the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules or the Local Rules, other than those restrictions expressly imposed by the Plan or this Confirmation Order.

- provided in this Confirmation Order, the Plan, or in any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement or document entered into or delivered in connection with the Plan, on the Effective Date and concurrently with the applicable distributions made pursuant to the Plan, all Liens, Claims, Interests, mortgages, deeds of trust, or other security interests against the property of the Estates shall be fully released, terminated, extinguished, and discharged, in each case without further notice to or order of this Court, act or action under applicable law, regulation, order, or rule or the vote, consent, authorization, or approval of any entity. Any Person or entity holding such Liens or interests shall, pursuant to section 1142 of the Bankruptcy Code, promptly execute and deliver to the Reorganized Debtors such instruments of termination, release, satisfaction, and/or assignment (in recordable form) as may be reasonably requested by the Reorganized Debtors.
- Reorganized Debtors shall issue Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests pursuant to the terms set forth herein and in the Plan. Except as set forth herein, the aggregate number of shares of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests to be issued on the Effective Date (after giving effect to the Restructuring Transactions) shall be 65,297,935.75 shares (the "Aggregate Effective Date Equity Issuance"). The Aggregate Effective Date Equity Issuance shall be subject to (a) dilution by (i) future issuance to Holders of Allowed Claims in Class 3 in accordance with the Plan, and (ii) future issuances in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan and (b) to adjustment in the

reasonable discretion of the Reorganized Debtors to effectuate the terms of the Plan. To preserve the Debtors' corporate structure for the benefit of the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims and Allowed L/C Lender Claims, Intercompany Interests in each of BMC West, SelectBuild Construction, SelectBuild Northern California, Illinois Framing, C Construction, TWF Construction, H.N.R. Framing Systems, SelectBuild Southern California, SelectBuild Nevada, SelectBuild Arizona and SelectBuild Illinois are reinstated.

- 12. <u>Restructuring Transactions</u>. The Debtors are authorized to consummate the Restructuring Transactions described in Section 7.6 of the Plan, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein and in this Confirmation Order.
- 13. <u>Distributions Exempt from Securities Laws.</u> On the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors are authorized to and shall issue, as applicable, the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests and any and all other securities, notes, stock, instruments, certificates, and other documents or agreements required to be issued, executed, or delivered pursuant to the Plan (collectively, the "New Securities and Documents"), in each case without further notice to or order of this Court, act or action under applicable law, regulation, order, or rule or the vote, consent, authorization, or approval of any Person or entity. The issuance of the New Securities and Documents, and the offering, issuance, and distribution thereof under the Plan, shall be exempt from, among other things, registration under applicable securities laws and any state or local law requiring registration prior to the offering, issuance, distribution, or sale of securities pursuant to section 1145(a) of the Bankruptcy Code. Without limiting the effect of section 1145 of the Bankruptcy Code, all documents, agreements, and instruments entered into and delivered on or as of the Effective Date contemplated by or in furtherance of the Plan, shall become effective and binding in accordance with their respective terms and conditions upon the parties

thereto, in each case without further notice to or order of this Court, act or action under applicable law, regulation, order, or rule or the vote, consent, authorization, or approval of any Person or entity (other than as expressly required by such applicable agreement). In addition, any securities contemplated by the Plan will be tradable by the recipients thereof, subject to (a) the provisions of section 1145(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code and (b) the restrictions, if any, on the transferability of such securities and instruments.

Exit Financing. On the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors shall be 14. authorized to enter into the Exit Credit Facilities consisting of the Exit Revolver and the Exit Term Loan (on substantially the terms set forth in forms filed in the Plan Supplement, as amended or supplemented), as well as execute, deliver, file, record, and issue any notes, intercreditor agreements, documents (including, but not limited to, UCC financing statements, security agreements, mortgages, deeds of trusts or other collateral documents), instruments, or agreements necessary or appropriate to give effect to the transactions contemplated thereby (collectively, the "New Credit Agreement Documents"), and perform their obligations under the New Credit Agreement Documents, including but not limited to payment of all fees referenced in that certain Fee Letter dated as of December 14, 2009 with Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC and that certain Fee Letter dated as of December 14, 2009 with DK Acquisition Partners, L.P., in each case without further notice to or order of this Court, act or action under applicable law, regulation, order, or rule or the vote, consent, authorization, or approval of any entity (other than as expressly required by any applicable New Credit Agreement Document). The Liens and security interests to be granted by the Reorganized Debtors pursuant to the terms of the New Credit Agreement Documents shall be deemed perfected on the Effective Date, subject only to such Liens and security interests as may be permitted under the New Credit Agreement

21

Documents. All persons who are parties to the New Credit Agreement shall be deemed to be parties to and bound by the Intercreditor Agreement. The New Credit Agreements are subject to certain conditions precedent which must be satisfied on or prior to the Effective Date, including but not limited to: (i) the withdrawal or disallowance of the Internal Revenue Service's Claims filed in the Chapter 11 Cases with respect to the Form 1139 Carryback Refunds that were received in 2009; (ii) the Debtors providing the Exit Term Loan Lenders satisfactory evidence that the prepetition tax liabilities, including any accrued interest and penalties related thereto, determined by the Internal Revenue Service to be due with respect to 2005 and 2006 being paid in full and extinguished; and (iii) the Debtors having provided evidence that (a) C Construction, Inc. has sold its "Davis Brothers" facilities, and (b) Illinois Framing, Inc. and SelectBuild Illinois, LLC have abandoned their facilities.

Debtors shall be authorized to enter into the Term Loan Credit Agreement (on substantially the terms set forth in the forms filed in the Plan Supplement, as amended or supplemented), including but not limited to the execution, delivery, filing, recordation, issuance or affirmance of any notes, security agreements, other collateral documents, documents, instruments or agreements necessary or appropriate to give effect to the transactions contemplated thereby (including UCC financing statements) and consummate the transactions contemplated thereby and such Term Loan Credit Agreement shall become binding, and enforceable in accordance with its terms and conditions without further notice to or order of this Court, act or action under applicable law, regulation, order, or rule or the vote, consent, authorization, or approval of any entity. The Liens and security interests to be granted by the Reorganized Debtors pursuant to the terms of the Term Loan Credit Agreement shall be deemed perfected on the Effective Date,

subject only to such Liens and security interests as may be permitted under the Term Loan Credit Agreement. All persons receiving Term Notes pursuant to the Plan are, by their acceptance of such Term Notes, deemed to be parties to and bound by the Term Loan Credit Agreement and all documents related thereto, including but not limited to the Intercreditor Agreement.

- Debtors shall be authorized to enter into and consummate the transactions contemplated by a Sharcholder Agreement and such document, and any agreement or document entered into in connection therewith, shall become valid, binding, and enforceable in accordance with its terms and conditions, without further notice to or order of this Court, act or action under applicable law, regulation, order, or rule or the vote, consent, authorization, or approval of any entity. All persons receiving Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests pursuant to the Plan, by their acceptance of such Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, are deemed to be parties to and bound by the Shareholder Agreement and all documents related thereto.
- Discharge of the Debtors. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan or this Confirmation Order, the Confirmation of the Plan shall, as of the Effective Date: (i) discharge the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors or any of its or their Assets from all Claims, demands, liabilities, other debts and Interests that arose on or before the Effective Date, including all debts of the kind specified in sections 502(g), 502(h) or 502(i) of the Bankruptcy Code, whether or not (a) a Proof of Claim based on such debt is filed or deemed filed pursuant to section 501 of the Bankruptcy Code, (b) a Claim based on such debt is Allowed pursuant to section 502 of the Bankruptcy Code or (c) the Holder of a Claim based on such debt has accepted the Plan; and (ii) preclude all Persons from asserting against the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets, any other or further Claims or Interests based upon any act

or omission, transaction, or other activity of any kind or nature that occurred prior to the Effective Date, all pursuant to sections 524 and 1141 of the Bankruptcy Code. The discharge provided in this provision shall void any judgment obtained against any of the Debtors at any time, to the extent that such judgment relates to a discharged Claim or cancelled Interest.

- 18. Releases, Exculpation and Limitation of Liability. The releases, exculpation, and limitation of liability provisions contained in the Plan, including, but not limited to, those provided in Article IX of the Plan, are fair and equitable and given for valuable consideration and are in the best interests of the Debtors and all parties-in-interest, and, accordingly, are hereby authorized, approved, and binding on all Persons and entities described therein.
- limited to, those provided in Article IX of the Plan, are hereby authorized, approved, and binding on all Persons and entities described therein. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or his Confirmation Order, all entities that have held, currently hold, or may hold Claims or other debts or liabilities against the Debtors, or an Interest or other right of an Equity Security Holder in any or all of the Debtors, that are discharged pursuant to the terms of the Plan, are permanently enjoined, on and after the Effective Date, from taking any of the following actions on account of any such Claims, debts, liabilities or Interests or rights: (i) commencing or continuing in any manner any action or other proceeding of any kind with respect to any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest, or right, other than to enforce any right to a Distribution pursuant to the Plan; (ii) enforcing, attaching, collecting, or recovering in any manner any judgment, award, decree or order against the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets on account of any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest, or right; (iii) creating, perfecting, or enforcing any Lien

or encumbrance against the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets on account of any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest or right; (iv) asserting any right of setoff, subrogation, or recoupment of any kind against any debt, liability, or obligation due to the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets on account of any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest, or right; and (v) commencing or continuing any action, in any manner, in any place that does not comply with or is inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan or the Confirmation Order. Such injunction shall extend to any successor of the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets. Any Person injured by any willful violation of such injunction shall recover actual damages, including costs and attorneys' and experts' fees and disbursements, and, in appropriate circumstances, may recover punitive damages, from the willful violator.

20. Assumed Contracts and Leases.

(a) Generally. Except as otherwise provided for in the Plan or this Confirmation Order, all Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases of the Debtors are hereby assumed pursuant to section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code as of the Effective Date (collectively, the "Assumed Contracts"), except for any such contract or lease (i) that has been assumed or rejected, or renegotiated and either assumed or rejected on renegotiated terms, pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court entered prior to the Effective Date, (ii) that has been entered into by the Debtors during the pendency of the Chapter 11 Cases in the ordinary course of business or pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court, (iii) that is the subject of a motion to reject, or a motion to approve renegotiated terms and to assume or reject on such renegotiated terms, that has been filed and served prior to the Effective Date, or (iv) that is identified on the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List; provided, however, that the applicable Debtors

shall assume the Collective Bargaining Agreements on the Effective Date. The Debtors' assumption of the Assumed Contracts is hereby approved. Each Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease assumed pursuant to this Confirmation Order or any other order of the Court which has not been assigned to a third party prior to the Confirmation Date, shall revest in and be fully enforceable by the Reorganized Debtors in accordance with its terms, except as such terms are modified by the provisions of the Plan or any order of the Bankruptcy Court authorizing and providing for its assumption under applicable federal law.

Cure Disputes. Any monetary defaults under each Executory Contract and **(b)** Unexpired Lease assumed pursuant to this Confirmation Order shall be satisfied, pursuant to section 365(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, by payment of the Cure_Claim in Cash on the Effective Date, subject to the limitation described below, or on such other terms as the parties to such Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases may otherwise agree. In the event of a dispute regarding (i) the Cure Claim, (ii) the ability of the Reorganized Debtors or any assignee to provide "adequate assurance of future performance" (within the meaning of section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code) under the Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease to be assumed, or (iii) any other matter pertaining to assumption, the payments required by section 365(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code in respect of Cure Claims shall be made following the entry of a Final Order or orders resolving the dispute and approving the assumption. Any counterparty to an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease that has failed or fails to object timely to the proposed assumption or Cure Claim specified in notices of proposed assumption and proposed Cure Claims served pursuant to Disclosure Statement Approval Order shall be deemed to have assented to such assumption and Cure Claim. If an objection to a proposed Cure Claim is sustained by the

Bankruptcy Court, the Reorganized Debtors may elect to reject such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease in lieu of assuming it.

- Approval of Rejected Contracts. All agreements that are rejected pursuant 21. to the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List shall be rejected effective as of the date specified therein. All Proofs of Claim with respect to Claims arising from the rejection of Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases pursuant to the Plan or this Confirmation Order, including with respect to rejected vacation and/or paid time off programs or agreements under section 6.2 of the Plan and all Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases identified on the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List, must be filed with the Bankruptcy Court and served on GCG as specified in the notice attached hereto as Exhibit 3 within 30 days of the Effective Date. Any Claims arising from the rejection of an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease not filed and served as specified within such time will be automatically disallowed, forever barred from assertion, and shall not be enforceable against the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, the Estates, or their property without the need for any objection by the Reorganized Debtors or further notice to, or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court. All Allowed Claims arising from the rejection of the Debtors' Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases shall be classified as General Unsecured Claims and shall be treated in accordance with Section 4.6 or 4.8 of the Plan, whichever may be applicable.
- Date, Reorganized BMHC and the other Reorganized Debtors, and the officers and members of the New Boards, are authorized to and may issue, execute, deliver, file, or record such contracts, securities, instruments, releases, and other agreements or documents and take such actions as may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate, implement, and further evidence the terms and

conditions of the Plan and the securities issued pursuant to the Plan in the name of and on behalf of Reorganized BMHC and the other Reorganized Debtors, without the need for any approvals, authorization, or consents except for those expressly required pursuant to the Plan.

Corporate Action. Upon the Effective Date, all actions contemplated by the 23. Plan shall be deemed authorized and approved in all respects, including: (i) the adoption or assumption, as applicable, of the agreements with existing management; (ii) the selection of the directors and officers for the Reorganized Debtors; (iii) the distribution of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests in accordance with the Plan; (iv) the execution and entry into the Exit Revolver, the Exit Term Loan and the Term Loan Credit Agreement; (v) the establishment of the Long Term Incentive Plan and the issuance of any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests thereunder; and (vi) all other actions contemplated by the Plan (whether to occur before, on, or after the Effective Date). All matters provided for in the Plan involving the corporate structure of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, and any corporate action required by the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors in connection with the Plan shall be deemed to have occurred and shall be in effect without any requirement of further action by the security holders, directors, or officers of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors. On or (as applicable) prior to the Effective Date, the appropriate officers of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, shall be authorized and (as applicable) directed to issue, execute, and deliver the agreements, documents, securities, and instruments contemplated by the Plan (or necessary or desirable to effect the transactions contemplated by the Plan) in the name of and on behalf of the Reorganized Debtors, including the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Exit Term Loan and the Term Loan Credit Agreement, and any and all other agreements, documents, securities, and instruments relating to The authorizations and approvals contemplated herein shall be effective the foregoing.

notwithstanding any requirements under non-bankruptcy law. The issuance of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests shall be exempt from the requirements of section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (pursuant to Rule 16b-3 promulgated thereunder) with respect to any acquisition of securities by an officer or director (or a director deputized for purposes thereof) as of the new Effective Date.

24. Exemption From Transfer Taxes. Pursuant to section 1146 of the Bankruptcy Code, any issuance, transfer or exchange of any security, or the execution, delivery or recording of an instrument of transfer on or after the Confirmation Date shall be deemed to be made pursuant to and under the Plan, and shall not be subject to any document recording tax, stamp tax, conveyance fee, intangibles or similar tax, mortgage tax, stamp act, real estate transfer tax, mortgage recording tax, or other similar tax or governmental assessment, and upon entry of this Confirmation Order, the appropriate state or local governmental officials or agents shall forego the collection of any such tax or governmental assessment and accept for filing and recordation any of the foregoing instruments or other documents without the payment of any such tax, recordation fee, or governmental assessment.

25. <u>Professional Compensation Claims</u>.

(a) <u>Professional Compensation Claims Bar Date</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan dealing with Administrative Expense Claims, any Person asserting a Professional Compensation Claim shall, no later than thirty (30) days after the Confirmation Date (the "<u>Professional Compensation Claims Bar Date</u>"), file a final application for allowance of compensation for services rendered and reimbursement of expenses incurred through the Confirmation Date. To the extent that such an award is granted by the Bankruptcy Court, the requesting Person shall receive: (i) payment of Cash in an amount equal to the amount Allowed

by the Bankruptcy Court less all interim compensation paid to such Professional during the Chapter 11 Cases, such payment to be made within the later of (1) the Effective Date or (2) three (3) business days after the Order granting such Person's final fee application becomes a Final Order; (ii) payment on such other terms as may be mutually agreed upon by the Holder of the Professional Compensation Claim and BMHC or Reorganized BMHC, as applicable (but in no event shall the payment exceed the amount Allowed by the Bankruptcy Court); or (iii) payment in accordance with the terms of any applicable administrative procedures orders entered by the Bankruptcy Court, including the Interim Compensation Order, dated July 14, 2009.

Service of Final Fee Applications. All final fee applications of **(b)** Professionals shall be filed with this Court and actually served on or prior to the Professional Compensation Claims Bar Date upon the following parties: (i) Building Materials Holding Corporation, 720 Park Boulevard, Suite 200, Boise, Idaho 83712, Attn.: Paul S. Street; (ii) Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP, 200 Park Ave., New York, New York 10166, Attn.: Michael A. Rosenthal and Matthew K. Kelsey; (iii) Young Conaway Stargatt & Taylor, LLP, The Brandywine Building, 1000 West Street, 17th Floor, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, Attn: Sean M. Beach and Robert F. Poppiti, Jr.; (iv) the Office of the United States Trustee for the District of Delaware, 844 King Street, Suite 2207, Lockbox 35, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, Attn.: Joseph McMahon; (v) Arent Fox, LLP, 1050 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20036-5339, Attn: Christopher J. Giaimo and Katie A. Lane; (v) Benesch, Friedlander, Coplan & Aronoff LLP, 222 Delaware Avenue, Suite 801, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, Attn: Bradford J. Sandler; (vii) Paul, Hastings, Janofsky & Walker LLP, 55 Second Street, Twenty-Fourth Floor, San Francisco, California 94105, Attn: Kevin B. Fisher; and (viii) Paul, Hastings,

Janofsky & Walker LLP, 75 E. 55th Street, First Floor, New York, NY 10022, Attn: Thomas L. Kent (collectively, the "Notice Parties").

- Objections to and Hearing to Approve Final Fee Applications. (c) objection to any final fee application shall be filed with this Court, together with proof of service thereof, and served upon the applicable Professional and the other Notice Parties, so as to be actually received not later than 4:00 p.m. (prevailing Eastern Time) on the date that is twenty (20) days after such final fee application is filed with this Court and served upon the Notice Parties (the "Professional Fees Objection Deadline"). Only those objections made in writing and timely filed and received by the Professional Fees Objection Deadline will be considered by this Court. If no objection to a final fee application is timely filed and served in accordance with the procedures set forth herein, then this Court may enter a final order approving such uncontested final fee application without further notice and the Reorganized Debtors may pay the amounts described in such uncontested final fee application (or if any final fee application is the subject of an objection, the Reorganized Debtors may pay the undisputed amounts described in such final fee application). The hearing to consider approval of the final fee applications, if necessary, will be held as soon as reasonably practicable after the expiration of the Professional Fees Objection Deadline and the date of such hearing will be promptly provided to the applicable Professional and Notice Parties and posted on the Debtors' restructuring website.
- 26. Resolution of Disputed Claims. If the Debtors or any other party in interest disputes any Claim against the Debtors, such dispute shall be determined, resolved, or adjudicated, as the case may be, under applicable law by the Bankruptcy Court. Among other things, (a) the Debtors (on or before the Effective Date), and (b) the Reorganized Debtors (after the Effective Date) may each elect, at their respective sole option, to object to or seek estimation

under section 502 of the Bankruptcy Code with respect to any Proof of Claim filed by or on behalf of a Holder of a Claim against the Debtors.

- 27. No Distributions Pending Allowance. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or this Confirmation Order to the contrary, if a Claim or any portion of a Claim is disputed, no payment or Distribution will be made on account of the disputed portion of such Claim (or the entire Claim, if the entire Claim is disputed), unless such Disputed Claim or portion thereof becomes an Allowed Claim.
- 28. <u>No Postpetition Interest on Claims</u>. Unless otherwise specifically provided for in the Plan, this Confirmation Order, or other Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court, or required by applicable bankruptcy law, postpetition interest shall not accrue or be paid on any Claims against the Debtors, and no Holder of a Claim against the Debtors shall be entitled to interest accruing on or after the Petition Date on any such Claim.
- 29. Reserve for Disputed General Unsecured Claims. On the Effective Date, the Disbursing Agent shall establish, and maintain thereafter, a reserve from the Unsecured Cash Fund for the benefit of Holders of Disputed General Unsecured Claims. Such reserve shall consist of an amount of Cash equal to the amount that would be distributable to all Holders of such Disputed General Unsecured Claims, in respect of all distributions made to that date, if those Claims were Allowed in the Maximum Amount. In the event any such Disputed General Unsecured Claim becomes an Allowed Claim, the amount of such Allowed Claim shall never exceed the Maximum Amount of such Disputed General Unsecured Claim, and the Disbursing Agent shall distribute to the Holder of such Allowed Claim from the reserve the aggregate amount of Cash that such Holder would have received as of the date of such distribution in respect of such Allowed Claim had such Claim been an Allowed Claim as of the Effective Date.

If a Disputed General Unsecured Claim is disallowed, the Cash reserved for such claim shall be distributed, on the next anniversary of the Effective Date (or as soon as practicable thereafter), to Holders of Allowed Claims in the applicable class.

- 30. <u>Payment of Statutory Fees</u>. All outstanding fees payable pursuant to section 1930 of title 28, United States Code shall be paid on, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, the Effective Date. All such fees payable after the Effective Date shall be paid prior to the closing of the Chapter 11 Cases when due or as soon thereafter as practicable.
- 21. <u>Dissolution of the Committee</u>. The Committee shall be dissolved on the Effective Date and shall not continue to exist thereafter except for the limited purposes of filing any remaining fee applications, and the Professionals retained by the Committee shall be entitled to compensation for services performed and reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection therewith. Upon dissolution of the Committee, the members of the Committee shall be released and discharged of and from all duties, responsibilities and obligations related to and arising from and in connection with the Debtors' Chapter 11 Cases.
- 32. <u>Termination of Interests</u>. On the Effective Date, except as otherwise provided in the Plan or this Confirmation Order, the Interests in BMHC shall be terminated, cancelled, and extinguished.
- Olaims. In accordance with Bankruptcy Rules 2002(f)(7), 2002(k), and 3020(c), as soon as reasonably practicable after the Effective Date, the Debtors shall serve the Notice of Confirmed Plan, Effective Date and Deadline for Filing Certain Claims, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 3, by first-class mail, postage prepaid on all known creditors, equity security holders, and other parties in interest in the Chapter 11 Cases; provided, however, that such notice

need not be given or served under or pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, the Local Rules or this Confirmation Order to any Person or entity to whom the Debtors mailed a notice of the Confirmation Hearing, but received such notice returned marked "undeliverable as addressed," "moved-left no forwarding address" or "forwarding order expired," or similar reason, unless the Debtors have been informed in writing by such Person or entity of that Person's or entity's new mailing address. The notice described herein is adequate and appropriate under the particular circumstances and no other or further notice is necessary or required.

- 34. No Liability for Protected Parties. Based on the factual findings described in this Confirmation Order, the Protected Parties are not, and on account of or with respect to the offer or issuance of any security under the Plan, and/or solicitation of votes on the Plan, will not be, liable at any time for any violation of any applicable law, rule, or regulation governing the solicitation of acceptances or rejections of the Plan or the offer and issuance of any securities under the Plan. The Protected Parties have solicited votes on the Plan in good faith and in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, the Local Rules and all other applicable rules, laws, and regulations and are, therefore, entitled to, and are hereby granted, the protections afforded by section 1125(e) of the Bankruptcy Code and the exculpation, release, and limitation of liability provisions set forth in Article IX of the Plan.
- 35. <u>Substantial Consummation</u>. "Substantial Consummation" of the Plan, as defined in 11 U.S.C. § 1101(2), shall be deemed to occur on the Effective Date.
- 36. <u>Estimation Proceedings and Other Rights</u>. Any and all rights of the Debtors and Reorganized Debtors under Section 502(c) and Section 502(e) of the Bankruptcy Code are reserved.

- Reversal or Modification of Confirmation Order. Except as otherwise provided in this Confirmation Order, if any or all of the provisions of this Confirmation Order are hereafter reversed, modified, vacated, or stayed by subsequent order of this Court, or any other court of competent jurisdiction, such reversal, stay, modification, or vacatur shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any act, obligation, indebtedness, liability, priority, or Lien incurred or undertaken by the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, prior to the date that the Debtors received actual written notice of the effective date of such reversal, stay, modification, or vacatur. Notwithstanding any such reversal, stay, modification, or vacatur of this Confirmation Order, any such act or obligation incurred or undertaken pursuant to, or in reliance on, this Confirmation Order prior to the date that the Debtors received actual written notice of the effective date of such reversal, stay, modification, or vacatur shall be governed in all respects by the provisions of this Confirmation Order and the Plan, or any amendments or modifications thereto, in effect prior to the date that the Debtors received such actual written notice.
- 38. <u>Failure to Consummate Plan</u>. In the event that the Effective Date does not occur, the Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction with respect to any request to extend the deadline for assuming or rejecting unexpired leases pursuant to section 365(d)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- Bankruptcy Code, and notwithstanding the entry of this Confirmation Order or the occurrence of the Effective Date, this Court shall retain jurisdiction over the Chapter 11 Cases and all matters arising under, arising in, or related to, the Chapter 11 Cases and the Plan to the fullest extent permitted by law, including, among other things, jurisdiction over the matters set forth in Article

XI of the Plan. This Court shall retain jurisdiction to hear and determine all matters arising from the implementation of this Confirmation Order. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Order to the contrary, any dispute arising under or in connection with the Exit Credit Facilities and/or the Term Loan Credit Agreement shall be dealt with in accordance with the provisions of the applicable document; provided, however, that the Bankruptcy Court shall retain exclusive jurisdiction over any dispute regarding the parties' compliance with their respective obligations under that certain Financing Commitment letter dated as of December 14, 2009 between Building Materials Holding Corporation and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC and that certain Financing Commitment Letter dated as of December 14, 2009 between Building Materials Holding Corporation and DK Acquisition Partners, L.P.

- 40. <u>Headings</u>. The headings contained within this Confirmation Order are used for the convenience of the parties and shall not alter or affect the meaning of the text of this Confirmation Order.
- 41. <u>Securities and Exchange Commission</u>. Notwithstanding anything that may be construed to the contrary in the Plan or this Confirmation Order, nothing in the Plan or this Confirmation Order shall act as a release of any claims or causes of action of the Securities and Exchange Commission against any non-Debtors.
- California Franchise Tax Board. Notwithstanding anything that may be construed to the contrary in the Plan or this Confirmation Order, (i) the setoff and recoupment rights of the California Franchise Tax Board, if any, are preserved and may be exercised to the extent authorized by §§ 362(b)(26), 363(e) or 553 of the Bankruptcy Code or order of this Court; and (ii) pursuant to § 106(a)(3) of the Bankruptcy Code, punitive damages may not be awarded against the California Franchise Tax Board by this Court.

- Notwithstanding anything that may be construed to the contrary in the Plan or this Confirmation Order, solely with respect to the claims of the objecting Texas Ad Valorem Tax Claimants [See D.I. 983] and the Local Texas Tax Authorities [See D.I. 986], the Texas Ad Valorem Tax Claimants and the Local Texas Tax Authorities, to the extent they hold Allowed claims, (i) shall retain any property tax liens they may hold, at the priority they now hold, until all taxes, penalties and interest protected by those liens have been paid; and (ii) to the extent they are oversecured pursuant to section 506(b), are entitled to interest from the Petition Date through the Effective Date, as well as from the Effective Date until paid in full, both at the statutory rate of 1% per month pursuant to section 511 of the Bankruptcy Code and Texas Property Tax Code § 33.01(c).
- anything that may be construed to the contrary in the Plan or this Confirmation Order, the Cure Claims, if any, of Robert R. Thomas or The Restated Thomas Trust Dated April 14, 2009 under the Acquisition Agreement (as defined in the Objection By Robert R. Thomas and The Restated Thomas Trust Dated April 14, 2009 to Confirmation of Joint Plan of Reorganization as Amended October 22, 2009 [D.I. 1008]) shall be resolved by proceedings consistent with the Alternative Dispute Resolution provisions of the Acquisition Agreement.
- 45. <u>Juan M. Navarro and Letitia Ramirez</u>. Notwithstanding anything that may be construed to the contrary in the Plan or this Confirmation Order, no personal injury claim(s) of Juan M. Navarro and/or Letitia Ramirez shall be (i) liquidated or estimated by the Bankruptcy Court for purposes of distribution under the Plan, or (ii) tried in the Bankruptcy Court.

- 46. <u>Liberty Mutual Insurance Company</u>. That certain General Agreement of Indemnity dated April 15, 2004, and that certain General Agreement of Indemnity—Commercial Surety dated December 21, 2004, by and between certain Debtors and Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, are Assumed Contracts under the Plan.
- The Debtors have resolved the Westchester Fire Insurance Company. 47. informal objection of Westchester Fire Insurance Company ("Westchester Fire") as follows: Westchester Fire and the reorganized parent/holding company, BMHC, shall enter into, effective as of the Effective Date, a new indemnity agreement in favor of Westchester Fire, substantially in the form of the indemnity agreement entered into by Westchester Fire and BMHC The Reorganized Debtors will execute an agreement of indemnity on October 2, 2007, which agreement will indemnify Westchester Fire and affiliated entities for any claims that may arise under surety bonds executed for the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors by Westchester Fire, whether executed prior or subsequent to the Petition Date, or following the Effective Date of the Plan. The Debtors and the Reorganized Debtors acknowledge that: Westchester Fire currently holds a letter of credit issued by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., No. NZS621797 in the amount of \$12,500,000, which letter of credit shall continue to secure all indemnification or other obligations arising either prepetition, postpetition or postconfirmation in connection with Westchester Fire's surety bonds.
- 48. Allowed Priority Tax Claims. Payments made with respect to Allowed Priority Tax Claims under section 2.3 of the Plan shall be paid in equal monthly installments; provided, however, that nothing in the Plan or this Confirmation Order shall prevent the Reorganized Debtors, in their discretion, from paying any Allowed Priority Tax Claims in full at any time, on or after the Effective Date.

- 49. <u>Department of Justice</u>. Nothing in this Order or the Plan discharges, releases, precludes, or enjoins: (i) any environmental liability to any governmental unit that is not a Claim; (ii) any environmental Claim of any governmental unit arising on or after the Effective Date; (iii) any environmental liability to any governmental unit that any entity would be subject to as the owner or operator of property arising or springing anew on or after the Effective Date; or (iv) any liability to the United States on the part of any Person other than the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors.
- 50. <u>Voting Stipulations</u>. The stipulations with respect to voting on the Plan that were presented at the Confirmation Hearing are approved in all respects.
- 51. References to Plan Provisions. The failure specifically to include or reference any particular provision of the Plan in this Confirmation Order shall not diminish or impair the effectiveness of such provision, it being the intent of this Court that the Plan (and the exhibits and schedules thereto) be confirmed in its entirety and incorporated herein by reference.
- 52. <u>Confirmation Order Controlling</u>. If there is any conflict or inconsistency between the Plan and this Confirmation Order, the terms of this Confirmation Order shall control and govern.
- 53. <u>Immediate Effectiveness of this Confirmation Order</u>. Pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 3020(e), the ten day stay of this Confirmation Order imposed thereby is waived and the Debtors are hereby authorized to consummate the Plan and the transactions contemplated

thereby immediately upon the entry of this Confirmation Order upon the docket and upon the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions set forth in Section 10.1.2 of the Plan.

Dated: December 17, 2009 Wilmington, Delaware

kevin J. Carey

United States Bank uptcy Judge

Exhibit 1

[Plan of Reorganization]

DB02:9046181.1 068301.1001

IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

IN RE:) Chapter 11
BUILDING MATERIALS HOLDING) Case No. 09-12074 (KJC)
CORPORATION, et al.,1) Jointly Administered
Debtors.)
·	<u> </u>

JOINT PLAN OF REORGANIZATION FOR THE DEBTORS <u>UNDER CHAPTER 11 OF THE BANKRUPTCY CODE AMENDED DECEMBER 14, 2009</u> (WITH TECHNICAL MODIFICATIONS)

GIBSON, DUNN & CRUTCHER LLP

Michael A. Rosenthal (admitted pro hac vice) Matthew K. Kelsey (admitted pro hac vice)

Aaron G. York (admitted pro hac vice)

200 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10166-0193

Telephone:

212.351.4000 212.351.4035

Facsimile: 212.351.4035
Email: mrosenthal@gibsondunn.com

mkelsey@gibsondunn.com ayork@gibsondunn.com

ATTORNEYS FOR THE DEBTORS AND DEBTORS IN POSSESSION

YOUNG CONAWAY STARGATT & TAYLOR, LLP

Sean M. Beach (No. 4070)

Donald J. Bowman, Jr. (No. 4383)

Robert F. Poppiti, Jr. (No. 5052)

1000 West Street, 17th Floor

Wilmington, Delaware 19801

Telephone: 3

302.571.6600

Facsimile: 302.571.1253 Email: sbeach@ycst.com

dbowman@ycst.com

rpoppiti@ycst.com

Dated: Wilmington, Delaware December 14, 2009

The Debtors, along with the last four digits of each Debtor's tax identification number, are as follows: Building Materials Holding Corporation (4269), BMC West Corporation (0454), SelectBuild Construction, Inc. (1340), SelectBuild Northern California, Inc. (7579), Illinois Framing, Inc. (4451), C Construction, Inc. (8206), TWF Construction, Inc. (3334), H.N.R. Framing Systems, Inc. (4329), SelectBuild Southern California, Inc. (9378), SelectBuild Nevada, Inc. (8912), SelectBuild Arizona, LLC (0036), and SelectBuild Illinois, LLC (0792). The mailing address for the Debtors is 720 Park Boulevard, Suite 200, Boise, Idaho 83712.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	TIME	ED TERMS, RULES OF INTERPRETATION, AND COMPUTATION OF	5
	1.1.	Definitions	5
	1.2.	Rules of Construction.	5
	1.3.	Computation of Time	5
П.	CYT A TR	TMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE CLAIMS, PRIORITY TAX MS AND PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION CLAIMS AGAINST THE ORS	6
	2.1.	Administrative Expense Claims	6
	2.2.	Professional Compensation Claims.	6
	2.3.	Priority Tax Claims.	6
	2.4.	DIP Facility.	7
	2.5.	U.S. Trustee Fees.	7
III.	CLAS	SIFICATION OF CLAIMS AGAINST AND INTERESTS IN DEBTORS	7
	3.1.	Classification of Claims.	7
	3.2.	Classes	7
	3.3.	Effect of Non-Voting; Modifications	15
IV.	TREA RESP	TMENT OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS AND DESIGNATION WITH ECT TO IMPAIRMENT	15
	4.1.	Treatment of Classes I(a)-(l): Other Priority Claims	15
	4.2.	Treatment of Classes 2(a)-(l): Funded Lender Claims.	15
-	4.3.	Treatment of Classes 3(a)-(l): L/C Lender Claims	16
	4.4.	Treatment of Classes 4(a)-(l) - Other Secured Claims	17
	4.5.	Treatment of Classes 5(a)-(l): L/C General Unsecured Claims.	18
	4.6.	Treatment of Classes 6(a)-(l): General Unsecured Claims.	18
	4.7.	Treatment of Classes 7(a)-(l): Intercompany Claims	22
	4.8.	Treatment of Classes 8(a)-(l) - Small Unsecured Claims	22
	4.9.	Treatment of Classes 9(a)-(l): Interests.	23
	4.10.	TOTAL CONTRACTOR OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPER	23
٧.	PRO' CLA	VISIONS REGARDING VOTING, EFFECT OF REJECTION BY IMPAIRED SSES, AND CONSEQUENCES OF NON-CONFIRMABILITY	23
	5.1.	Voting Rights.	2
	5.2.	Acceptance Requirements.	24

	5.3.	Cramdown	24
	5.4.	Tabulation of the Votes.	24
	5. 4 . 5.5.	Non-Confirmability.	24
		UTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES	
VI.	EXEC	UTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES	24
		Assumption and Rejection of Contracts and Unexpired Leases	25
	6.2.	Vacation/Personal Time Off Programs and Agreements.	25
	6.3.	Claims Based on Rejection of Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases	25
	6.4.	Cure of Defaults.	26
	6.5.	Contracts and Leases Entered into after the Petition Date.	20
	6.6.	Modifications, Amendments, Supplements, Restatements, or Other Agreements	20
	6.7.	Reservation of Rights.	26
VII.	MEAN	NS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PLAN	26
ν ш.	7.1.	General Settlement of Claims.	26
	7.2.	Sources of Consideration for Plan Distributions.	27
	7.4.	Continued Corporate Existence.	28
		Revesting of Assets.	28
·	T.5.	Merger	29
	7 .6.	Merger Cancellation of Securities and Agreements	29
	7.7.	Reorganized BMHC.	29
	7.8.	Post Effective Date Management	29
	7.9.	Post Effective Date Management Directors and Officers of the Reorganized Debtors	29
	7.10.	Directors and Officers of the Reorganized Debtors	.30
	7.11.	New Certificates of Incorporation and New Bylaws of the Reorganized Debtors	30
	7.12.	New Employment, Retirement, Indemnification, and Other Related Agreements	2n
	7.13.		 Λε
	7.14.	Corporate Action	
	7.15.	Section 1146 Exemption	31
	7.16.	Preservation of Causes of Action.	31
	7.17.	Insurance Policies and Agreements.	31
	7.18.	Nonoccurrence of Effective Date.	32
	7.19.	Collective Bargaining Agreements	32
3 /T(T	<i>አ ለፒሚ</i>	THOR OF DISTRIBUTIONS LINDER THE PLAN AND CLAIMS	
VIII.	REC	ONCILIATION	32
	8.1.	Dicharsing Agent	32
	R 2	Distribution Record Date.	32

	8.3.	Cash Payments	32
	8.4.	Delivery of Distributions.	32
	8.5.	Minimum Cash Distributions.	32
	8.6.	Withholding Taxes	33
	8.7.	Unclaimed Property.	33
	8.9	Disputed Claims.	33
7,14-19,152	8.10	Objections to Claims.	33
	8.11.	Compromises and Settlements.	34
	8.12.	Reservation of Debtors' Rights.	34
	8.13.	No Distributions Pending Allowance	34
	8.14.	No Postpetition Interest on Claims.	34
	" 8	Claims Paid or Payable by Third Parties.	34
ľX.	EFFE	CT OF CONFIRMATION OF PLAN	35
	9.1.	Discharge	35
	9.2.	Releases.	35
	9.3.	No Successor Liability	38
	9.4,	Release of Liens.	38
	9.5.	Term of Injunctions.	38
	9.6	Rinding Effect.	38
	9.7.	Dissolution of the Committee	39
	9.8.	Post-Confirmation Date Retention of Professionals	39
X.		CTIVENESS OF THE PLAN	
7 L.	10.1.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	39
	10.2.	and the second second	40
X1.	RET	ENTION OF JURISDICTION	
4	11.1.	Bankruptcy Court.	40
XII.	MISO	CELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	42
AII.	12.1.	· _ · ·	47
	12.2.	- De la stan Demolramente	42
,	12.3	_	43
	12.4		43
	12.5		43
	12.5	. Severability	4
	14.0	·	

		43
12.7.	Revocation or Withdrawal of Plan	47
12.8.	Rules Governing Conflicts Between Documents.	43
12.9.	Governing Law	44
12.10.	Notices.	44
12.11.	Interest and Attorneys' Fees	44
12.12.	Binding Effect.	44
12.13.	No Admissions.	45
12.17	T-bihite	,7,

INTRODUCTION

Building Materials Holding Corporation, BMC West Corporation, SelectBuild Construction, Inc., SelectBuild Northern California, Inc., Illinois Framing, Inc., C Construction, Inc., TWF Construction, Inc., H.N.R. Framing Systems, Inc., SelectBuild Southern California, Inc., SelectBuild Nevada, Inc., SelectBuild Arizona, LLC, and SelectBuild Illinois, LLC, as debtors and debtors in possession (collectively, the "Debtors"), respectfully propose the following Joint Plan of Reorganization pursuant to section 1121(a) of the Bankruptcy Code for the resolution of outstanding Claims against and Interests in each of the Debtors (the "Plan").

Reference is made to the Disclosure Statement with respect to the Plan, distributed contemporaneously herewith, for a discussion of the Debtors' history, businesses, properties, operations, risk factors, a summary and analysis of the Plan, and certain related matters including the securities to be issued under the Plan. Subject to certain restrictions and requirements set forth in section 1127 of the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rule 3019, the Debtors respectfully reserve the right to alter, amend, modify, revoke, or withdraw the Plan prior to consummation of the Plan. The Debtors are the proponents of the Plan within the meaning of section 1129 of the Bankruptcy Code.

NO SOLICITATION MATERIALS, OTHER THAN THE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND RELATED MATERIALS TRANSMITTED THEREWITH AND APPROVED BY THE BANKRUPTCY COURT, HAVE BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE BANKRUPTCY COURT FOR USE IN SOLICITING ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF THE PLAN.

DEFINED TERMS, RULES OF INTERPRETATION, AND COMPUTATION OF TIME

- 1.1. Definitions. As used in the Plan, capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings specified in Appendix A. Unless the context otherwise requires, any capitalized term used and not defined in the Plan, but that is defined in the Bankruptcy Code, shall have the meaning assigned to that term in the Bankruptcy Code. Unless otherwise specified, all section, article, schedule, or exhibit references in the Plan are to the respective section in, article of, or schedule or exhibit to, the Plan, as the same may be amended, waived, or modified from time to time.
- 1.2. Rules of Construction. For purposes of the Plan, unless otherwise provided herein: (i) any reference in the Plan to a contract, instrument, release, indenture, or other agreement, whether existing or contemplated, or document being in a particular form or on particular terms and conditions means that such document shall be substantially in such form or substantially on such terms and conditions, (ii) unless otherwise specified, all references in the Plan to the Introduction, Articles, and Sections are references to the Introduction, Articles, and Sections of or to the Plan, (iii) captions and headings to Articles and Sections are intended for convenience of reference only and are not intended to be part of or to affect interpretation of the Plan, (iv) the words "herein," "hereof," "hereunder," "hereto," and other words of similar import refer to the Plan in its entirety rather than to a particular portion of the Plan, (v) whenever it appears appropriate from the context, each pronoun stated in the masculine, feminine, or neuter includes the masculine, feminine, and neuter, and (vi) the rules of construction set forth in section 102 of the Bankruptcy Code and in the Bankruptcy Rules shall apply.
- 1.3. Computation of Time. In computing time prescribed or allowed by the Plan, unless otherwise expressly provided, Bankruptcy Rule 9006(a) shall apply.

П.

TREATMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE CLAIMS, PRIORITY TAX CLAIMS AND PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION CLAIMS AGAINST THE DEBTORS

- Administrative Expense Claims. On the later of (i) the Effective Date or (ii) if 2.1. the Administrative Expense Claim is not Allowed as of the Effective Date, 30 days after the date on which an Administrative Expense Claim becomes Allowed, the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors shall either (x) pay to each Holder of an Allowed Administrative Expense Claim, in Cash, the full amount of such Allowed Administrative Expense Claim, or (y) satisfy and discharge such Administrative Expense Claim in accordance with such other terms that the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors and such Holder shall have agreed upon; provided, however, that such agreed-upon treatment shall not be more favorable than the treatment provided in clause (x). Other than with respect to Professional Compensation Claims and Cure Claims, notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary (including, without limitation, any other provision that purports to be preemptory or supervening or grants an injunction or release), (a) if an Administrative Expense Claim arises (i) based on liabilities incurred in, or to be paid in, the ordinary course of business during the Postpetition Period or (ii) pursuant to an Executory Contract (including, but not limited to, the Debtors' Insurance Policies and Agreements that are treated as Executory Contracts under the Plan), or (iii) based on an Administrative Expense described in Bankruptcy Code §-503(b)(1)(B) or (C), the Holder of such Administrative Expense Claim shall be paid in Cash by the applicable Debtor (or after the Effective Date, by the applicable Reorganized Debtor) pursuant to the terms and conditions of the particular transaction and/or agreements giving rise to such Administrative Expense Claim without the need or requirement for the Holder of such Administrative Expense Claim to file a motion, application, claim or request for allowance or payment of an Administrative Expense Claim with the Bankruptcy Court and (b) such Administrative Expense Claims shall be Allowed Claims; provided, however, that nothing limits the ability of any applicable Debtor or Reorganized Debtor to dispute (or the Holder of such Administrative Expense Claim to assert and/or defend) the validity or amount of any such Administrative Expense Claim and/or to bring an action in the appropriate forum.
- Professional Compensation Claims. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan dealing with Administrative Expense Claims, any Person asserting a Professional Compensation Claim shall, no later than thirty (30) days after the Confirmation Date, file a final application for allowance of compensation for services rendered and reimbursement of expenses incurred through the Confirmation Date. To the extent that such an award is granted by the Bankruptcy Court, the requesting Person shall receive: (i) payment of Cash in an amount equal to the amount Allowed by the Bankruptcy Court less all interim compensation paid to such Professional during the Chapter 11 Cases, such payment to be made within the later of (a) the Effective Date or (b) three (3) business days after the Order granting such Person's final fee application becomes a Final Order; (ii) payment on such other terms as may be mutually agreed upon by the Holder of the Professional Compensation Claim and BMHC or Reorganized BMHC, as applicable (but in no event shall the payment exceed the amount Allowed by the Bankruptcy Court); or (iii) payment in accordance with the terms of any applicable administrative procedures orders entered by the Bankruptcy Court, including the Interim Compensation Order, dated July 16, 2009. All Professional Compensation Claims for services rendered after the Confirmation Date shall be paid by Reorganized BMHC (or the Debtors prior to the Effective Date) upon receipt of an invoice therefor, or on such other terms as Reorganized BMHC (or the Debtors prior to the Effective Date) and the Professional may agree, without the requirement of any order of the Bankruptcy Court.
- 2.3. Priority Tax Claims. Except to the extent that a Holder of an Allowed Priority
 Tax Claim agrees to a less favorable treatment, in full and final satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of and in exchange for each Allowed Priority Tax Claim, each Holder of such Allowed Priority
 Tax Claim shall be treated in accordance with the terms set forth in section 1129(a)(9)(C) of the

Bankruptcy Code, with the Petition Date as the commencement date of the five year period, and any interest required to be paid on Allowed Priority Tax Claims will be paid in accordance with section 511 of the Bankruptcy Code. If the Reorganized Debtors substantially default on the payment of a tax due to the Internal Revenue Service under the Plan, the entire tax debt owed to the Internal Revenue Service shall become due and payable immediately, and the Internal Revenue Service may collect these unpaid tax liabilities through the administrative collection provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. If the Reorganized Debtors substantially default on the payment of a tax due to a state or local taxing authority under the Plan, including the California Franchise Tax Board, the entire tax debt owed to such taxing authority shall become due and payable immediately, and the taxing authority may collect these unpaid tax liabilities in accordance with applicable state law remedies.

- 2.4. DIP Facility. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan dealing with Administrative Expense Claims, Administrative Expense Claims arising under the DIP Facility shall be Allowed Administrative Expense Claims on the Effective Date and shall be paid in full in Cash on the Effective Date, and all excess Cash in the Cash Collateral Account shall remain with Reorganized BMHC.
- 2.5. U.S. Trustee Fees. U.S. Trustee Fees incurred by the U.S. Trustee prior to the Effective Date shall be paid on the Effective Date in accordance with the applicable schedule for payment of such fees. Until each of the Chapter 11 Cases is closed by entry of a final decree of the Bankruptcy Court, the Reorganized Debtors shall pay additional U.S. Trustee Fees incurred in accordance with the applicable schedule for the payment of such fees.

III. CLASSIFICATION OF CLAIMS AGAINST AND INTERESTS IN DEBTORS3.1. Classification of Claims. Pursuant to section 1122 of the Bankruptcy

Code, set forth below is a designation of Classes of Claims against and Interests in the Debtors. A Claim or Interest is placed in a particular Class for the purposes of voting on the Plan and receiving Distributions pursuant to the Plan only to the extent that such Claim or Interest is an Allowed Claim or Allowed Interest in that Class and such Claim or Interest has not been paid, released, withdrawn, or otherwise settled prior to the Effective Date. In accordance with section 1123(a)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, Administrative Expense Claims and Priority Tax Claims of the kinds specified in sections 507(a)(2) and 507(a)(8), respectively, of the Bankruptcy Code have not been classified and their treatment is set forth in Article II.

The Plan constitutes a separate chapter 11 subplan for each of the Debtors. Pursuant to section 1122 of the Bankruptcy Code, set forth below is a designation of Classes of Claims against and Interests in the Debtors.

3.2. Classes. The Claims against and Interests in the Debtors are classified as follows:

3.2.1. Classes 1(a)-(l): Other Priority Claims.

 I see the first season and additional tempts. 	Claims and Interests Other Priority Claims against BMHC	Status Unimpaired	Voting Rights Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 1(b)	Other Priority Claims against BMC West	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(c)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(d)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(e)	Other Priority Claims against Illinois Framing	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(f)	Other Priority Claims against C Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(g)	Other Priority Claims against TWF Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(h)	Other Priority Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(i)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(j)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(k)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(l)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

3.2.2. Classes 2(a)-(l): Funded Lender Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 2(a)	Funded Lender Claims against BMHC	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(b)	Funded Lender Claims against BMC West	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(c)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(d)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(e)	Funded Lender Claims against Illinois Framing	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(f)	Funded Lender Claims against C Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 2(g)	Funded Lender Claims against TWF Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(h)	Funded Lender Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(i)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(j)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(k)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(1)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Impaired	Entitled to vote

3.2.3. Classes 3(a)-(l): L/C Lender Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 3(a)	L/C Lender Claims against BMHC	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(b)	L/C Lender Claims against BMC West	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(c)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Construction	ĭmpaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(d)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(e)	L/C Lender Claims against Illinois Framing	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(f)	L/C Lender Claims against C Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(g)	L/C Lender Claims against TWF Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(h)	L/C Lender Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(i)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(j)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(k)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(l)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Impaired	Entitled to vote

3.2.4. Classes 4(a)-(l): Other Secured Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 4(a)	Other Secured Claims against BMHC	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(b)	Other Secured Claims against BMC West	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(c)	Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(d)	Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(c)	Other Secured Claims against Illinois Framing	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(f)	Other Secured Claims against C Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(g)	Other Secured Claims against TWF Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(h)	Other Secured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(i)	Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(j)	Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(k)	Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(l)	Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

3.2.5. Classes 5(a)-(l): L/C General Unsecured Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 5(a)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against BMHC	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(b)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against BMC West	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(c)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(d)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 5(e)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against Illinois Framing	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(f)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against C Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(g)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against TWF Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(h)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(i)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
-Class 5(j)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(k)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(l)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

3.2.6. Classes 6(a)-(l): General Unsecured Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 6(a)	General Unsecured Claims against BMHC	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(b)	General Unsecured against BMC West	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(c)	General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(d)	General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(e)	General Unsecured Claims against Illinois Framing	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(f)	General Unsecured Claims against C Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(g)	General Unsecured Claims against TWF Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(h)	General Unsecured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(i)	General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote

Class Class 6(j)	Claim's and Interests General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Status Impaired	Voting Rights Entitled to vote
Class 6(k)	General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(1)	General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Impaired	Entitled to vote

3.2.7. Classes 7(a)-(l): Intercompany Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 7(a)	Intercompany Claims against BMHC	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(b)	Intercompany Claims against BMC West	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(c)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(d)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(e)	Intercompany Claims against Illinois Framing	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(f)	Intercompany against C Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(g)	Intercompany Claims against TWF Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(h)	Intercompany Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(i)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(j)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(k)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(l)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

3.2.8. Classes 8(a)-(l): Small Unsecured Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests.	Status	Voting Rights
Class 8(a)	Small Unsecured Claims against	Impaired	Entitled to vote
	ВМНС	. *	
1		<u> </u>	

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 8(b)	Small Unsecured against BMC West	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(c)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(d)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(e)	Small Unsecured Claims against Illinois Framing	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(f)	Small Unsecured Claims against C Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(g)	Small Unsecured Claims against TWF Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(h)	Small Unsecured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(i)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(j)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(k)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(l)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Impaired	Entitled to vote

3.2.9. Classes 9(a)-(l): Interests.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 9(a)	Interests in BMHC	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 9(b)	Interests in BMC West	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(c)	Interests in SelectBuild Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(d)	Interests in SelectBuild Northern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(e)	Interests in Illinois Framing	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(f)	Interests in C Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 9(g)	Interests in TWF Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(h)	Interests in H.N.R. Framing Systems	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(i)	Interests in SelectBuild Southern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(j)	Interests in SelectBuild Nevada	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(k)	Interests in SelectBuild Arizona	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(1)	Interests in SelectBuild Illinois	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

3.2.10. Class 10(a)-(l): Section 510(b) Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 10(a)	Section 510(b) Claims against BMHC	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(b)	Section 510(b) Claims against BMC West	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(c)	Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(d)	Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(e)	Section 510(b) Claims against Illinois Framing	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(f)	Section 510(b) Claims against C Construction	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(g)	Section 510(b) Claims against TWF Construction	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(h)	Section 510(b) Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(i)	Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(j)	Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(k)	Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)

	Claims and Interests Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Status Impaired	Voting Rights Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)	
1				

3.3. Effect of Non-Voting; Modifications. At the Confirmation Hearing, the Debtors will seek a ruling that if no Holder of a Claim or Interest eligible to vote in a particular Class timely votes to accept or reject the Plan, the Plan will be deemed accepted by the Holders of such Claims or Interests in such Class for the purposes of section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code. Subject to section 1127 of the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rule 3019, the Debtors reserve the right to modify the Plan to the extent that Confirmation pursuant to section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code requires modification, provided such modifications are consistent with Section 12.5 of the Plan.

IV. TREATMENT OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS AND DESIGNATION WITH RESPECT TO IMPAIRMENT

4.1. Treatment of Classes 1(a)-(l): Other Priority Claims.

4.1.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 1(a)-(l) are Unimpaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed Other Priority Claim is conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

4.1.2. Treatment. On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed Other Priority Claim shall receive in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim: (i) payment of Cash in an amount equal to the unpaid portion of such Allowed Other Priority Claim, or (ii) such other treatment that the Debtors and such Holder shall have agreed upon in writing; provided, however, that such agreed-upon treatment shall not be more favorable than the treatment provided in clause (i).

4.2. Treatment of Classes 2(a)-(l): Funded Lender Claims.

4.2.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 2(a)-(l) are Impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed Funded Lender Claim as of the Record Date is entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

4.2.2. Treatment. Each Holder of an Allowed Funded Lender Claim shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive (i) the Funded Lender's Share of Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount as to such Claim, (ii) a Term Note issued by Reorganized BMHC under the Term Loan Credit Agreement in an original principal amount equal to the Maximum Funded Lenders Term Note Cap multiplied by such Holder's Pro Rata share of all Allowed Funded Lender Claims, and (iii) its Pro Rata share of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Funded Lender Issuance, subject to dilution by (a) any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued on the Effective Date and from time to time thereafter to the Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims and (b) any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued after the Effective Date in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan. All Liens with respect to the Prepetition Credit Agreement shall be released, discharged, and extinguished as of the Effective Date. To preserve the Debtors' corporate structure for the benefit of the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims and Allowed L/C Lender Claims, Intercompany Interests in each of BMC West, SelectBuild Construction, SelectBuild Northern California, Illinois Framing, C Construction, TWF Construction, H.N.R. Framing Systems, SelectBuild Southern California, SelectBuild Nevada, SelectBuild Arizona and SelectBuild Illinois shall be reinstated. In the

event that section 5.5.2 is applicable, each Holder of an Allowed Funded Lender Claim shall be deemed to be distributed its Pro Rata Share of the Reorganized Subsidiary Equity Interests, and to have contributed such Reorganized Subsidiary Equity Interests to the applicable Holders of Equity Interests in Classes 9(b)-9(l) as provided in such section 5.5.2.

4.3. Treatment of Classes 3(a)-(l): L/C Lender Claims.

4.3.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 3(a)-(I) are Impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed L/C Lender Claim as of the Record Date is entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

4.3.2. Treatment. Allowed L/C Lender Claims shall be treated as follows:

- 4.3.2.1. From and after the Effective Date, obligations of the Prepetition L/C Lenders (whether WFB, as the letter of credit issuer under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, or the Prepetition Revolving Lenders in respect of their several reimbursement obligations to WFB arising under the Prepetition Credit Agreement) shall continue to be governed by the lender reimbursement provisions of the Prepetition Credit Agreement. Reorganized BMHC shall have no obligations whatsoever in respect of the letter of credit reimbursement obligations arising in respect of the Prepetition Letters of Credit, except (a) the Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims shall be entitled to the L/C Lender Fee and (b) as expressly set forth in the following Section 4.3.2.2. All Liens with respect to the Prepetition Credit Agreement shall be released, discharged, and extinguished as of the Effective Date.
- 4.3.2.2. To the extent any Allowed L/C Lender Claim is liquidated on or after the Petition Date, each Holder of an Allowed L/C Lender Claim shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for the Liquidated L/C Amount of such Claim, receive the following on the Effective Date and thereafter from time to time if, as and when Allowed L/C Lender Claims are liquidated:
 - (A) a Term Note issued by Reorganized BMHC under the Term Loan Credit Agreement in an original principal amount equal to the Maximum L/C Lenders Term Note Cap multiplied by the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that such Liquidated L/C Amount of such Claim bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed L/C Lender Claims; and
 - (B) with respect to any Allowed L/C Lender Claim liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date, its Pro Rata share of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest L/C Lender Issuance, subject to dilution by (a) the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued on the Effective Date to the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims, (b) any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued from time to time after the Effective Date to the Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims and (c) any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued after the Effective Date in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan; and
 - (C) with respect to any Allowed L/C Lender Claim liquidated after the Effective Date, an amount of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, rounded to the nearest whole number, equal to the Liquidated L/C Amount of such Claim multiplied by the L/C Lender Claim Equity Conversion Ratio, subject to dilution

by any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued after the Effective Date in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan; and

- (D) On the Effective Date only, the L/C Lender's Share of the Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount as to such Liquidated L/C Amount of such Claim on the Effective Date.
- 4.3.2.3. If, and only to the extent, a Prepetition L/C Lender fails to reimburse in full WFB in respect of its reimbursement obligation to WFB arising under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, WFB shall be entitled to receive the distribution described in the preceding Section 4.3.2.2 which would otherwise be payable to such defaulting Prepetition L/C Lender.
- 4.3.2.4. Prepetition Letters of Credit shall not be used by the Reorganized Debtors to collateralize obligations that do not exist as of the Effective Date; provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, Prepetition Letters of Credit shall continue to collateralize all obligations under Insurance Policies and Agreements and/or performance bonds and surety bonds (and any agreements, documents or instruments relating thereto) secured by such Prepetition Letters of Credit, whether such obligations exist as of the Effective Date or arise thereafter, and such Prepetition Letters of Credit and obligations shall survive the Effective Date unaffected and unaltered by the Plan. No issuer of Prepetition Letters of Credit shall have any obligation to renew a Prepetition Letter of Credit for a period beyond the Maturity Date under the Term Loan Credit Agreement (as such term is defined therein); provided that this sentence shall not impair or affect the rights of any beneficiary under any Prepetition Letter of Credit.
- 4.3.2.5. On or prior to the Maturity Date of the Term Loan Credit Agreement (as defined therein), unless waived by all of the Prepetition L/C Lenders in writing, any Prepetition Letters of Credit then outstanding shall be cancelled and, at the discretion of the Reorganized Debtors, replaced by the Reorganized Debtors. Any Allowed L/C Lender Claims or portions thereof that are not liquidated on or prior to such Maturity Date shall be extinguished; provided that the outstanding Prepetition Letters of Credit have been cancelled or replaced in accordance with the foregoing sentence.

4.4. Treatment of Classes 4(a)-(l) - Other Secured Claims.

- 4.4.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 4(a)-(l) are Unimpaired by the Plan.

 Each Holder of an Allowed Other Secured Claim is conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
- 4.4.2. Treatment. Except to the extent that a Holder of an Other Secured Claim, including a secured tax claim, agrees to a less favorable treatment, in full satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of and in exchange for each Other Secured Claim, each Allowed Other Secured Claim shall be reinstated or otherwise rendered Unimpaired as of the Effective Date, and Liens related thereto, including property tax liens, shall remain in effect. If the Reorganized Debtors substantially default on the payment of a tax due to the Internal Revenue Service under the Plan, the entire tax debt owed to the Internal Revenue Service shall become due and payable immediately, and the Internal Revenue Service may collect these unpaid tax liabilities through the administrative collection provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. If the Reorganized Debtors substantially default on the payment of a tax due to a state or local taxing authority under the Plan, the entire tax debt owed to such taxing authority shall become due

and payable immediately, and the taxing authority may collect these unpaid tax liabilities in accordance with applicable state law remedies.

4.5. Treatment of Classes 5(a)-(l): L/C General Unsecured Claims.

- 4.5.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 5(a)-(l) are Unimpaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed L/C General Unsecured Claim is conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
- 4.5.2. Treatment. Except to the extent that a Holder of an L/C General Unsecured Claim agrees to a less favorable treatment, each L/C General Unsecured Claim shall be reinstated, paid in full, or otherwise rendered Unimpaired and the applicable Reorganized Debtors shall remain liable for the L/C General Unsecured Claim, whether now existing or hereafter arising.

4.6. Treatment of Classes 6(a)-(l): General Unsecured Claims.

4.6.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 6(a)-(l) are Impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim as of the Record Date is entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

4.6.2. Treatment.

- 4.6.2.1. Class 6(a). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against BMHC shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the BMHC Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against BMHC shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.
- 4.6.2.2. Class 6(b). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against BMC West shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the BMC West Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against BMC West shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such Allowed General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of

such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

- 4.6.2.3. Class 6(c). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Construction shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the SelectBuild Construction Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Construction shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such Allowed General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.
- On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed 4.6.2.4. Class 6(d). General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Northern California shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the SelectBuild Northern California Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Northern California shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.
- 4.6.2.5. Class 6(e). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against Illinois Framing shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the Illinois Framing Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against Illinois Framing shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held

by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.6.2.6. Class 6(f). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against C Construction shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the C Construction Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against C Construction shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.6.2.7. Class 6(g). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against TWF Construction shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the TWF Construction Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against TWF Construction shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.6.2.8. Class 6(h). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against H.N.R. Framing Systems shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the H.N.R. Framing Systems Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against H.N.R. Framing Systems shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any

Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.6.2.9. Class 6(i). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Southern California shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the SelectBuild Southern California Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Southern California shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

Class 6(j). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed 4.6.2.10. General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Nevada shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the SelectBuild Nevada Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Nevada shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.6.2.11. Class 6(k). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Arizona shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the SelectBuild Arizona Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Arizona shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General

Unsecured Claims, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan...

Class 6(1). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed 4.6.2,12. General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Illinois shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the SelectBuild Illinois Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Illinois shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.7. Treatment of Classes 7(a)-(l): Intercompany Claims.

- 4.7.1. Impairment and Voting. Except as provided in section 5.5.2, Classes 7(a)-(I) are Unimpaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed Intercompany Claim is conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
- 4.7.2. Treatment. Except as provided in section 5.5.2, to preserve the Debtors' corporate structure, Intercompany Claims may be reinstated as of the Effective Date or, at the Debtors' or Reorganized Debtors' option, be cancelled, and no distributions shall be made on account of such Claims.
 - 4.8. Treatment of Classes 8(a)-(l) Small Unsecured Claims.
- 4.8.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 8(a)-(l) are Impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of a Small Unsecured Claim as of the Record Date is entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
- 4.8.2. Treatment. On the Distribution Date, each Holder of a Small Unsecured Claim shall receive, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors, Cash equal to the lesser of (i) 25% of the Allowed Amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors (excluding any interest) or (ii) \$1,250; provided, however, that the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall only be effective upon entry of the Confirmation Order and the occurrence of the Effective

Date; provided, further, however, that the aggregate payments to Holders of Allowed Small Unsecured Claims shall not exceed \$700,000 and payment to each Holder of an Allowed Small Unsecured Claim shall be reduced proportionately to the extent aggregate payments would otherwise exceed \$700,000.

4.9. Treatment of Classes 9(a)-(l): Interests.

4.9.1. Impairment and Voting.

- 4.9.1.1. Class 9(a). Class 9(a) is Impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Interest in BMHC is conclusively presumed to have rejected the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
- 4.9.1.2. Classes 9(b)-(l). Except as provided in section 5.5.2, Classes 9(b)-(l) are Unimpaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Interest in BMC West, SelectBuild Construction, SelectBuild Northern California, Illinois Framing, C Construction, TWF Construction, H.N.R. Framing Systems, SelectBuild Southern California, SelectBuild Nevada, SelectBuild Arizona and/or SelectBuild Illinois is conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

4.9.2. Treatment.

- 4.9.2.1. Class 9(a). On the Effective Date, all Interests in BMHC shall be cancelled without further distribution.
- 4.9.2.2. Classes 9(b)-(l). Except as provided in section 5.5.2, to preserve the Debtors' corporate structure for the benefit of the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims and Allowed L/C Lender Claims, Intercompany Interests in each of BMC West, SelectBuild Construction, SelectBuild Northern California, Illinois Framing, C Construction, TWF Construction, H.N.R. Framing Systems, SelectBuild Southern California, SelectBuild Nevada, SelectBuild Arizona and SelectBuild Illinois shall be reinstated.

4.10. Treatment of Classes 10(a)-(l): Section 510(b) Claims.

- 4.10.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 10(a)-(l) are Impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of a Section 510(b) claim is conclusively presumed to have rejected the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
- 4.10.2. Treatment. On the Effective Date, all Section 510(b) Claims shall be cancelled and discharged without any distribution.

PROVISIONS REGARDING VOTING, EFFECT OF REJECTION BY IMPAIRED CLASSES, AND CONSEQUENCES OF NON-CONFIRMABILITY

5.1. Voting Rights. Each Holder of an Allowed Claim as of the Voting Deadline in an Impaired Class of Claims or Interests that is not deemed to have rejected the Plan, and that held such Claim or Interest as of the Record Date, shall be entitled to vote separately to accept or reject the Plan as provided in the order entered by the Bankruptcy Court establishing certain procedures with respect to the solicitation and tabulation of votes to accept or reject the Plan.

- 5.2. Acceptance Requirements. An Impaired Class of Claims shall have accepted the Plan if votes in favor of the Plan have been cast by at least two-thirds in amount and more than one-half in number of the Allowed Claims in such Class that have voted on the Plan. An Impaired Class of Interests shall have accepted the Plan if votes in favor of the Plan have been cast by at least two-thirds in amount of the Interests in such Class that have voted on the Plan.
- 5.3. Cramdown. If all applicable requirements for Confirmation of the Plan are met as set forth in section 1129(a)(1) through (13) of the Bankruptcy Code, except subsection (8) thereof, the Plan shall be treated as a request that the Bankruptcy Court confirm the Plan in accordance with section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, notwithstanding the failure to satisfy the requirements of section 1129(a)(8), on the basis that the Plan is fair and equitable and does not discriminate unfairly with respect to each Class of Claims that is Impaired under, and has not accepted, the Plan.
- 5.4. Tabulation of the Votes. The Debtors shall tabulate all votes on a non-consolidated basis by Class. If no Impaired Classes accept the Plan, the Debtors may modify the Plan to appropriately address the rights of the Holders of Allowed Claims.

5.5. Non-Confirmability.

1955年第

- 5.5.1. If the Plan has not been accepted by the requisite majorities and the Debtors determine that the Plan cannot be confirmed under section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, or if the Bankruptcy Court, upon consideration, declines to approve Confirmation of the Plan, the Debtors may in their sole discretion seek to either (i) propose a new plan or plans of reorganization, (ii) seek to amend the current Plan to satisfy all objections, if any, or (iii) seek to convert or dismiss the Chapter 11 Cases.
- Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, in the event that the Plan cannot be confirmed under section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code because the Plan proposes that the Holders of Equity Interests in Classes 9(b)-9(i) are unimpaired, the Plan shall, automatically and without the need for further solicitation from any Class, be amended to eliminate any distributions on account of such Equity Interests, such Equity Interests shall be cancelled and the Reorganized Subsidiary Equity Interests shall be issued and deemed to be distributed to the Holders of Class 2(b)-2(l) Claims, as may be applicable, which Holders shall be deemed to contribute such Reorganized Subsidiary Equity Interests to the Holders of Equity Interests in Classes 9(b)-9(1), as may be applicable, subject to the Restructuring Transactions described in the Restructuring Transactions Memorandum. In addition, in the event that the Plan cannot be confirmed under section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code because the Plan proposes that Holders of Intercompany Claims in Classes 7(a)-7(1) are unimpaired, the Plan stratt, automatically and without the need for further solicitation from any Class, be amended to eliminate any distributions on account of such Intercompany Claims and such Intercompany Claims shall be cancelled and discharged without any distribution.

VI. EXECUTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES

6.1. Assumption and Rejection of Contracts and Unexpired Leases. Except as otherwise provided herein or pursuant to the Confirmation Order, all Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases that exist between the Debtors and any person, including, but not limited to, all Intercompany

Contracts, shall be assumed pursuant to section 365(a) of the Bankruptcy Code as of the Effective Date, except for any such contract or lease (i) that has been assumed or rejected, or renegotiated and either assumed or rejected on renegotiated terms, pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court entered prior to the Effective Date, (ii) that has been entered into by the Debtors during the pendency of the Chapter 11 Cases in the ordinary course of business or pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court, (iii) that is the subject of a motion to reject, or a motion to approve renegotiated terms and to assume or reject on such renegotiated terms, that has been filed and served prior to the Effective Date, or (iv) that is identified on the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List; provided, however, that the applicable Debtors shall assume the Collective Bargaining Agreements on the Effective Date. Entry of the Confirmation Order shall constitute approval, pursuant to section 365(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, of the assumption of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases provided for herein. Each Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease assumed pursuant to this Section 6.1 or by any order of the Bankruptcy Court, which has not been assigned to a third party prior to the Confirmation Date, shall revest in and be fully enforceable by the Reorganized Debtors in accordance with its terms, except as such terms are modified by the provisions of the Plan or any order of the Bankruptcy Court authorizing and providing for its assumption under applicable federal law. All agreements that are rejected pursuant to the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List shall be rejected effective as of the date specified therein.

- anything in the Plan to the contrary, the applicable Debtors shall assume and adopt that certain BMHC-BMC West Vacation Policy 2009, which was in effect as of the Petition Date (the "Vacation Policy") and shall perform under the Vacation Policy in the ordinary course of business. All other agreements, plans or policies relating to vacation or personal time off, including agreements, plans or policies of Subsidiary Debtors that have been in effect from time to time and any contractual commitments or accepted offers of employment that contain more favorable vacation or personal time off terms than the Vacation Policy, exted effective as of the Confirmation Date.
- Proofs of Claim with respect to Claims arising from the rejection of Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases pursuant to the Plan or the Confirmation Order, including with respect to rejected vacation and/or paid time off programs or agreements and all Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases identified on the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List, must be filed with the Bankruptcy Court within 30 days after the Effective Date. Any Claims arising from the rejection of an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease not filed with the Bankruptcy Court within such time will be automatically disallowed, forever barred from assertion, and shall not be enforceable against the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, the Estates, or their property without the need for any objection by the Reorganized Debtors or further notice to, or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court. All Allowed Claims arising from the rejection of the Debtors' Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases shall be classified as General Unsecured Claims and shall be treated in accordance with Section 4.6 or 4.8 of the Plan, whichever may be applicable.
- 6.4. Cure of Defaults. Any monetary defaults under each Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease to be assumed pursuant to the Plan shall be satisfied, pursuant to section 365(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, by payment of the Cure Claim in Cash on the Effective Date, subject to the limitation described below, or on such other terms as the parties to such Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases may otherwise agree. In the event of a dispute regarding (i) the Cure Claim, (ii) the ability of the Reorganized Debtors or any assignee to provide "adequate assurance of future performance" (within the meaning of section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code) under the Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease to be assumed, or (iii) any other matter pertaining to assumption, the payments required by section 365(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code in respect of Cure Claims shall be made following the entry of a Final Order or orders resolving the dispute and approving the assumption. At least 20 days prior to the Confirmation

Hearing, the Debtors shall provide for notices of proposed assumption and proposed Cure Claims to be sent to applicable third parties. Any objection by a counterparty to an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease to a proposed assumption or related Cure Claim must be filed and served in accordance with, and otherwise comply with, the provisions of the Disclosure Statement Approval Order related to assumption of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases. Any counterparty to an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease that fails to object timely to the proposed assumption or Cure Claim will be deemed to have assented to such assumption and Cure Claim. If an objection to a proposed Cure Claim is sustained by the Bankruptcy Court, the Reorganized Debtors may elect to reject such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease in lieu of assuming it.

Assumption of any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease pursuant to the Plan or otherwise shall result in the full release and satisfaction of any Claims or defaults, whether monetary or nonmonetary, including defaults of provisions restricting the change in control or ownership interest composition or other bankruptcy-related defaults, arising under any assumed Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease at any time prior to the effective date of assumption. Any Proofs of Claim filed with respect to an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease that has been assumed shall be deemed disallowed and expunged, without further notice to or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court.

- 6.5. Contracts and Leases Entered into after the Petition Date. Contracts and leases entered into during the Postpetition Period by any Debtor, including any Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases assumed by such Debtor, will be performed by the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor liable thereunder in the ordinary course of its business. Accordingly, such contracts and leases (including any assumed Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases) will survive and remain unaffected by entry of the Confirmation Order.
- 6.6. Modifications, Amendments, Supplements, Restatements, or Other Agreements. Unless otherwise provided in the Plan, each Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease that is assumed shall include all modifications, amendments, supplements, restatements, or other agreements that in any manner affect such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease, and all Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases related thereto, if any, including all easements, licenses, permits, rights, privileges, immunities, options, rights of first refusal, and any other interests, unless any of the foregoing agreements has been previously rejected or repudiated or is rejected or repudiated under the Plan.

Modifications, amendments, supplements, and restatements to any prepetition Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases that have been executed by the Debtors during the Chapter 11 Cases shall not be deemed to alter the prepetition nature of the Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease, or the validity, priority, or amount of any Claims that may arise in connection therewith.

6.7. Reservation of Rights. Neither the exclusion nor inclusion of any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease on the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List, nor anything contained in the Plan, shall constitute an admission by the Debtors that any such contract or lease is in fact an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease or that any Reorganized Debtor has any liability thereunder. If there is a dispute regarding whether a contract or lease is or was executory or unexpired at the time of assumption or rejection, the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, shall have 30 days following entry of a Final Order resolving such dispute to alter their treatment of such contract or lease.

VII. MEANS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PLAN

7.1. General Settlement of Claims. As discussed in detail in the Disclosure
Statement and as otherwise provided herein, pursuant to section 1123 of the Bankruptcy Code and

Bankruptcy Rule 9019, and in consideration for the classification, Distribution, releases, and other benefits provided under the Plan, upon the Effective Date, the provisions of the Plan shall constitute a good faith compromise and settlement of all Claims and Interests and controversies resolved pursuant to the Plan. Subject to Article VIII, all Distributions made to Holders of Allowed Claims in any Class are intended to be and shall be final.

7.2. Sources of Consideration for Plan Distributions.

7.2.1. The Exit Credit Facilities. On the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors shall enter into the Exit Credit Facilities consisting of the Exit Revolver and the Exit Term Loan. Confirmation shall be deemed approval of the Exit Revolver and the Exit Term Loan (including the transactions contemplated thereby, and all actions to be taken, undertakings to be made, and obligations to be incurred by the Reorganized Debtors in connection therewith) and authorization for the Reorganized Debtors to enter into and execute the (i) Exit Revolver documents, subject to such modifications as the Reorganized Debtors and the Exit Revolver Lenders may deem to be reasonably necessary to consummate such Exit Revolver, and (ii) the Exit Term Loan documents, subject to such modifications as the Reorganized Debtors and the Exit Term Loan Lenders may deem to be reasonably necessary to consummate such Exit Term Loan. Proceeds from the Exit Credit Facilities, together with other cash available to the Debtors and Reorganized Debtors, shall be used by the Reorganized Debtors to (i) pay in full in Cash all non-contingent obligations under the DIP Facility, (ii) fund exit costs, including, without limitation, the funding of (a) the Cash Claims Reserve, (b) the Allowed Professional Compensation Claims, and (c) the Unsecured Cash Fund, and (iii) fund general working capital requirements of the Reorganized Debtors. Additionally, the Exit Revolver may be used for the issuance of letters of credit and the replacement of the then outstanding letters of credit issued under the DIP Facility.

Reorganized Debtors shall enter into the Term Loan Credit Agreement. Confirmation shall be deemed approval of the Term Loan Credit Agreement (including the transactions contemplated thereby, and all actions to be taken, undertakings to be made, and obligations to be incurred by the Reorganized Debtors in connection therewith) and authorization for the Reorganized Debtors to enter into and execute the Term Loan Credit Agreement documents, subject to such modifications as the Reorganized Debtors and the Term Loan Lenders may deem to be reasonably necessary to consummate such Term Loan Credit Agreement. The Term Notes shall be issued to the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims and L/C Lender Claims as provided in Sections 4.2 and 4.3 of the Plan. Holders of the Term Notes shall be entitled to receive, among other things, an amount equal to 100% of the Excess Cash Flow, determined on an annual basis based upon delivery of audited financial statements by Reorganized BMHC. All persons receiving Term Notes pursuant to the Plan are, by their acceptance of such Term Notes, deemed to be parties to and bound by the Term Loan Credit Agreement and all documents related thereto, including but not limited to the Intercreditor Agreement.

7.2.3. Issuance of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests.

7.2.3.1. The issuance of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, including Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issuable in respect of the L/C Lender Equity Reserve and for options, or other equity awards, if any, in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan, by Reorganized BMHC is authorized without the need for any further corporate action or without any further action by the Holders of Claims or Interests. An unlimited number of common shares shall be authorized under the New Certificate of Incorporation of Reorganized BMHC. The Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, less reserves for the L/C Lender Equity Reserve and for options, or other equity awards, if any, in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan, will be issued (i) to Holders of Allowed

Funded Lender Claims on the Effective Date and (ii) if applicable and as and to the extent provided in Section 4.3 of the Plan, to Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims on the Effective Date and from time to time thereafter.

- 7.2.3.2. All of the shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued pursuant to the Plan shall be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid, and non-assessable. Each distribution and issuance referred to in Article VIII hereof shall be governed by the terms and conditions set forth in the Plan applicable to such distribution or issuance and by the terms and conditions of the instruments evidencing or relating to such distribution or issuance, which terms and conditions shall bind each Person receiving such distributions or issuance.
- 7.2.3.3. The Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance shall be subject to adjustment in the reasonable discretion of Reorganized BMHC to effectuate the terms of the Plan. Shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issuable to Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims from time to time after the Effective Date pursuant to Section 4.3.2.2 shall be subject to adjustment from time to time for any stock splits, stock dividends, reverse stock splits, reclassifications and the like occurring after the Effective Date in respect of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests.
- 7.2.3.4. Upon the Effective Date, in the event that Reorganized BMHC determines that a Shareholder Agreement is advisable, then Reorganized BMHC shall enter into such agreement with each Person that is to be a counter-party thereto and such agreement shall be deemed to be valid, binding, and enforceable in accordance with its terms. All persons receiving Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests pursuant to the Plan, by their acceptance of such BMHC Equity Interests, are deemed to be parties to and bound by the Shareholder Agreement and all documents related thereto.
- 7.2.4. Avoidance Actions. Avoidance Actions are hereby expressly preserved and shall vest in the applicable Reorganized Debtor on the Effective Date.
- 7.2.5. Unsecured Cash Fund. On the Effective Date, or as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable, the Reorganized Debtors shall fund the Unsecured Cash Fund into the Unsecured Cash Distribution Account.
- 7.3. Rule 2004 Examinations. The power of the Debtors to conduct examinations pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 2004 shall be expressly preserved following the Effective Date.
- 7.4. Continued Corporate Existence. Except as provided herein, each Debtor will continue to exist on or after the Effective Date as a separate corporate entity, with all the powers of a corporation or limited liability company, as the case may be, under applicable law and without prejudice to any right to alter or terminate such existence (whether by merger, dissolution, or otherwise) under applicable law.
- 7.5. Revesting of Assets. Except as expressly provided herein, the Assets of each Debtor's Estate shall revest with the respective Reorganized Debtor on the Effective Date. The Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction to determine disputes as to property interests created or vested by the Plan. From and after the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors may operate their businesses, and may use, acquire, and dispose of property free of any restrictions of the Bankruptcy Code, except as provided herein. As of the Effective Date, all property of the Reorganized Debtors shall be free and clear of all Claims and Interests, except as, and to the extent, provided in the Plan.

- 7.6. Merger. On the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors may (i) effectuate the transactions described in the Restructuring Transactions Memorandum, if any (ii) merge, dissolve, transfer assets, or otherwise consolidate any of the Debtors in furtherance of the Plan or (iii) engage in any other transaction in furtherance of the Plan. Any such transaction may be effected on or subsequent to the Effective Date without any further action by Holders of Interests or the directors of any of the Debtors.
- Cancellation of Securities and Agreements. On the Effective Date, except as otherwise specifically provided for in the Plan: (i) the obligations of the Debtors under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, DIP Facility, and any other Certificate, Interest, Equity Security, share, note, bond, indenture, purchase right, option, warrant, or other instrument or document directly or indirectly evidencing or creating any indebtedness or obligation of or ownership interest in the Debtors giving rise to any Claim, Interest, or Equity Security (except such Certificates, notes, or other instruments or document evidencing indebtedness or obligation of or ownership interest in the Debtors that are reinstated pursuant to the Plan) shall be cancelled solely as to the Debtors and their affiliates, and the Reorganized Debtors shall not have any continuing obligations thereunder; and (ii) the obligations of the Debtors pursuant, relating, or pertaining to any agreements, indentures, certificates of designation, bylaws, or certificate or articles of incorporation or similar documents governing the shares, Certificates, notes, bonds, indentures, purchase rights, options, warrants, or other instruments or documents evidencing or creating any indebtedness or obligation of or ownership interest in the Debtors (except such agreements, Certificates, notes, or other instruments evidencing indebtedness or obligations of or ownership interest in the Debtors that are specifically reinstated pursuant to the Plan) shall be released and discharged; provided, however, that notwithstanding Confirmation or consummation, any such agreement that governs the rights of the Holder of a Claim shall continue in effect solely for purposes of allowing Holders to receive distributions under the Plan; provided, further, however, that the preceding proviso shall not affect the discharge of Claims or Interests pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, the Confirmation Order, or the Plan, or result in any expense or liability to the Reorganized Debtors; and provided, further, however, that the foregoing shall not effect the cancellation of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued pursuant to the Plan in Reorganized BMHC, nor any other shares held by one Debtor in another Debtor, except in connection with any Restructuring Transactions implemented by the Reorganized Debtors.
- 7.8. Reorganized BMHC. On the Effective Date, the New Board of Reorganized BMHC shall be established and Reorganized BMHC shall adopt its New Bylaws. As soon after the Effective Date as reasonably practicable, Reorganized BMHC shall adopt the Long Term Incentive Plan. Reorganized BMHC shall be authorized to adopt any other agreements, documents, and instruments and to take any other action contemplated by the Plan as necessary and desirable to consummate the Plan.
- 7.9. Post Effective Date Management. Except as expressly provided in the Plan and the Debtors' certificate of incorporation and the New Certificates of Incorporation, which may be amended from time to time, the operation, management, and control of the Reorganized Debtors shall be the general responsibility of its board of directors or managers and senior officers, which shall thereafter have the responsibility for the management, control, and operation of the Reorganized Debtors. Entry of the Confirmation Order shall ratify and approve all actions taken by each of the Debtors from the Petition Date through and until the Effective Date.
- 7.10. Directors and Officers of the Reorganized Debtors. On and after the Effective Date, the business and affairs of the Reorganized Debtors will be managed by the New Boards and the officers, directors or managers identified in the Plan Supplement. Biographical information regarding these proposed officers, directors, and managers will be set forth in the Plan Supplement. A schedule of

the annual compensation to be paid to persons serving as executives, officers, and directors or managers as of the Effective Date will be set forth in the Plan Supplement.

- 7.11. New Certificates of Incorporation and New Bylaws of the Reorganized Debtors. As of the Effective Date, the New Certificates of Incorporation and the New Bylaws shall be substantially in the forms included in the Plan Supplement, with such changes as may be necessary to conform to the applicable laws of the state of incorporation. The New Certificates of Incorporation and New Bylaws, among other things, shall prohibit the issuance of nonvoting equity securities to the extent required by section 1123(a) of the Bankruptcy Code. After the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors may amend and restate their New Certificates of Incorporation and New Bylaws, as permitted under applicable state laws, subject to the terms and conditions of such documents.
- 7.12. New Employment, Retirement, Indemnification, and Other Related Agreements. As of the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors shall have the authority, as determined by its governing Persons, to: (i) maintain, amend, or revise existing employment, retirement, welfare, incentive, severance, indemnification, and other agreements with its active and retired directors or managers, officers, and employees, subject to the terms and conditions of any such agreement; and (ii) enter into new employment, retirement, welfare, incentive, severance, indemnification, and other agreements for active and retired employees.
- 7.13. Effectuating Documents; Further Transactions. On and after the Effective Date, Reorganized BMHC and the other Reorganized Debtors, and the officers and members of the New Boards, are authorized to and may issue, execute, deliver, file, or record such contracts, securities, instruments, releases, and other agreements or documents and take such actions as may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate, implement, and further evidence the terms and conditions of the Plan and the securities issued pursuant to the Plan in the name of and on behalf of Reorganized BMHC and the other Reorganized Debtors, without the need for any approvals, authorization, or consents except for those expressly required pursuant to the Plan.
- Corporate Action. Upon the Effective Date, all actions contemplated by the Plan shall be deemed authorized and approved in all respects, including: (i) the adoption or assumption, as applicable, of the agreements with existing management; (ii) the selection of the directors and officers for the Reorganized Debtors; (iii) the distribution of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests in accordance with the Plan; (iv) the execution and entry into the Exit Revolver, the Exit Term Loan and the Term Loan Credit Agreement; (v) the establishment of the Long Term Incentive Plan and the issuance of any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests thereunder; and (vi) all other actions contemplated by the Plan (whether to occur before, on, or after the Effective Date). All matters provided for in the Plan involving the corporate structure of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, and any corporate action required by the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors in connection with the Plan shall be deemed to have occurred and shall be in effect without any requirement of further action by the security holders, directors, or officers of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors. On or (as applicable) prior to the Effective Date, the appropriate officers of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, shall be authorized and (as applicable) directed to issue, execute, and deliver the agreements, documents, securities, and instruments contemplated by the Plan (or necessary or desirable to effect the transactions contemplated by the Plan) in the name of and on behalf of the Reorganized Debtors, including the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Exit Term Loan and the Term Loan Credit Agreement, and any and all other agreements, documents, securities, and instruments relating to the foregoing. The authorizations and approvals contemplated herein shall be effective notwithstanding any requirements under non-bankruptcy law. The issuance of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests shall be exempt from the requirements of section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (pursuant to Rule 16b-3 promulgated thereunder) with respect to any

acquisition of securities by an officer or director (or a director deputized for purposes thereof) as of the new Effective Date.

- 7.15. Section 1146 Exemption. Pursuant to section 1146 of the Bankruptcy Code, any transfers of property pursuant hereto shall not be subject to any document recording tax, stamp tax, conveyance fee, intangibles or similar tax, mortgage tax, stamp act, real estate transfer tax, mortgage recording tax, or other similar tax or governmental assessment, and upon entry of the Confirmation Order, the appropriate state or local governmental officials or agents shall forgo the collection of any such tax or governmental assessment and accept for filing and recordation any of the foregoing instruments or other documents without the payment of any such tax, recordation fee, or governmental assessment.
- Preservation of Causes of Action. In accordance with section 1123(b) of the 7.16. Bankruptcy Code, the Reorganized Debtors shall retain and may enforce all rights to commence and pursue, as appropriate, any and all Causes of Action, whether arising before or after the Petition Date, including any actions specifically enumerated in the Plan Supplement, and the Reorganized Debtors' rights to commence, prosecute, or settle such Causes of Action shall be preserved notwithstanding the occurrence of the Effective Date. The Reorganized Debtors may pursue such Causes of Action, as appropriate, in accordance with the best interests of the Reorganized Debtors. No Person may rely on the absence of a specific reference in the Plan, the Plan Supplement, or the Disclosure Statement to any Cause of Action against them as any indication that the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, will not pursue any and all available Causes of Action against them. The Debtors or Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, expressly reserve all rights to prosecute any and all Causes of Action against any Person, except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan. Unless any Causes of Action against any Person are expressly waived, relinquished, exculpated, released, compromised, or settled in the Plan or a Bankruptcy Court order, the Reorganized Debtors expressly reserve all Causes of Action, for later adjudication, and, therefore, no preclusion doctrine, including the doctrines of res judicata, collateral estoppel, issue preclusion, claim preclusion, estoppel (judicial, equitable or otherwise), or laches, shall apply to such Causes of Action upon, after, or as a consequence of the Confirmation or consummation.

The Reorganized Debtors reserve and shall retain the Causes of Action notwithstanding the rejection or repudiation of any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease during the Chapter 11 Cases or pursuant to the Plan. In accordance with section 1123(b)(3) of the Bankruptcy Code, any Causes of Action that a Debtor may hold against any Person shall vest in the Reorganized Debtors, as the case may be. The applicable Reorganized Debtor, through its authorized agents or representatives, shall retain and may exclusively enforce any and all such Causes of Action. The Reorganized Debtors shall have the exclusive right, authority, and discretion to determine and to initiate, file, prosecute, enforce, abandon, settle, compromise, release, withdraw, or litigate to judgment any such Causes of Action and to decline to do any of the foregoing without the consent or approval of any third party or further notice to or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court.

7.17. Insurance Policies and Agreements. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary (including, without limitation, any other provision that purports to be preemptory or supervening or grants an injunction or release), Insurance Policies and Agreements are treated as Executory Contracts under the Plan; and all references to Executory Contracts shall include the Insurance Policies and Agreements. On the Effective Date, the applicable Debtors that are parties to such Insurance Policies and Agreements and the applicable Reorganized Debtors shall be deemed to have assumed in accordance with section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code all such Insurance Policies and Agreements, and the applicable Reorganized Debtors shall remain liable for all obligations under the Insurance Policies and Agreements, whether now existing or hereafter arising, and shall pay such obligations in the ordinary course of business. The applicable insurers shall be deemed to have consented to such assumption. Nothing in the Plan: (a) precludes or limits the rights of insurers to contest and/or litigate with any party,

including, without limitation, the Debtors, the existence, primacy and/or scope of available coverage under any alleged applicable policy; (b) permits any holder of an Insured Claim to recover the same amounts from an insurer and any other party including, but not limited to, the Debtors (or after the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors); (c) alters an insurer's rights and obligations under its Insurance Policies and Agreements or modifies the coverage provided thereunder; (d) alters the rights and obligations of the Debtors (or after the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors) or the insurers under the Insurance Policies and Agreements including, without limitation, any duty of the Debtors' to defend, at their own expense, against claims asserted under the Insurance Policies and Agreements; (e) discharges, releases or relieves the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors, after the Effective Date, from any debt or other liability under the Insurance Policies and Agreements; or (f) limits, diminishes, or otherwise alters or impairs the Debtors', Reorganized Debtors' and/or an insurer's defenses, claims, Causes of Action, or other rights under applicable non-bankruptcy law with respect to the Insurance Policies and Agreements. If an insurer objects to the proposed assumption of its Insurance Policies and Agreements, or any of them, or the proposed Cure Claim related thereto, the insurer must comply with the objection procedure specified in section 6.4 of the Plan and the Disclosure Statement Approval Order.

- 7.18. Nonoccurrence of Effective Date. In the event that the Effective Date does not occur, the Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction with respect to any request to extend the deadline for assuming or rejecting unexpired leases pursuant to section 365(d)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 7.19. Collective Bargaining Agreements. On the Effective Date, the applicable Debtors shall assume all of their Collective Bargaining Agreements.

VIII. METHOD OF DISTRIBUTIONS UNDER THE PLAN AND CLAIMS RECONCILIATION

- 8.1. Disbursing Agent. The Debtors shall act as the Disbursing Agent under the Plan with respect to distributions of Cash made on the Effective Date and the Reorganized Debtors shall act as the Disbursing Agent after the Effective Date. The Debtors and the Reorganized Debtors shall not be required to give any bond, surety or other security for the performance of duties as Disbursing Agent.
- 8.2. Distribution Record Date. For purposes of the Plan, as of the close of business on the Distribution Record Date, the records of ownership of Claims against the Debtors (including the claims register in the Chapter 11 Cases) will be closed. For purposes of the Plan, the Debtors, the Estates, and the Reorganized Debtors shall have no obligation to recognize the transfer of any of the Claims against the Debtors occurring after the Distribution Record Date, and shall be entitled for all purposes relating to the Plan to recognize and deal only with those Holders of record as of the close of business on the Distribution Record Date.
- 8.3. Cash Payments. Any Cash payments made pursuant to the Plan will be made in U.S. dollars. Cash payments made pursuant to the Plan in the form of a check shall be null and void if not cashed within 180 days of the date of issuance thereof.
- 8.4. Delivery of Distributions. If the Distribution to any Holder of an Allowed Claim is returned as undeliverable, the Disbursing Agent shall use commercially reasonable efforts to determine the current address of such Holder. Undeliverable Distributions shall be held by the Disbursing Agent, subject to Section 8.7.
- 8.5. Minimum Cash Distributions. No Cash payment less than fifty dollars shall be made to any Holder of a Claim unless a request therefor is made in writing to the Debtors.

8.6. Withholding Taxes.

- 8.6.1. The Disbursing Agent shall comply with all withholding, reporting, certification, and information requirements imposed by any federal, state, local, or foreign taxing authority and all distributions hereunder shall, to the extent applicable, be subject to any such withholding, reporting, certification, and information requirements.
- 8.6.2. Persons entitled to receive distributions hereunder shall, as a condition to receiving such distributions, provide such information and take such steps as the Disbursing Agent may reasonably require to ensure compliance with such withholding and reporting requirements, and to enable the Disbursing Agent to obtain the certifications and information as may be necessary or appropriate to satisfy the provisions of any tax law.
- 8.6.3. Any Person that does not provide the Disbursing Agent with requisite information after the Disbursing Agent has made at least three attempts (by written notice or request for such information, including on the ballots in these Chapter 11 Cases) to obtain such information, may be deemed to have forfeited such Person's right to such distributions, which shall be treated as unclaimed property under Section 8.7.
- 8.7. Unclaimed Property. Any Person that fails to claim any Distribution to be distributed hereunder within one year from the initial date for such distribution shall forfeit all rights to any such distributions under the Plan. Upon such forfeiture of Cash or other property, such Cash or property shall be the property of the applicable Disbursing Agent. Nothing herein shall require the Disbursing Agent to attempt to locate or notify any Person with respect to any forfeited property. Persons that fail to claim Cash or other property to be distributed under the Plan within such one-year period shall forfeit their rights thereto and shall have no claim whatsoever with respect thereto against the Debtors, their Estates, the Disbursing Agent, or any Holder of an Allowed Claim to which distributions are made.
- Agent shall establish, and maintain thereafter, a reserve from the Unsecured Cash Fund for the benefit of Holders of Disputed General Unsecured Claims. Such reserve shall consist of an amount of Cash equal to the amount that would be distributable to all Holders of such Disputed General Unsecured Claims, in respect of all distributions made to that date, if those Claims were Allowed in the Maximum Amount. In the event any such Disputed General Unsecured Claim becomes an Allowed Claim, the amount of such Allowed Claim shall never exceed the Maximum Amount of such Disputed General Unsecured Claim, and the Disbursing Agent shall distribute to the Holder of such Allowed Claim from the reserve the aggregate amount of Cash that such Holder would have received as of the date of such distribution in respect of such Allowed Claim had such Claim been an Allowed Claim as of the Effective Date. If a Disputed General Unsecured Claim is disallowed, the Cash reserved for such claim shall be distributed, on the next anniversary of the Effective Date (or as soon as practicable thereafter), to Holders of Allowed Claims in the applicable class.
- 8.9 Disputed Claims. If the Debtors or any other party in interest disputes any Claim against the Debtors, such dispute shall be determined, resolved, or adjudicated, as the case may be, under applicable law by the Bankruptcy Court. Among other things, (i) the Debtors (on or before the Effective Date), and (ii) the Reorganized Debtors (after the Effective Date) may each elect, at their respective sole option, to object to or seek estimation under section 502 of the Bankruptcy Code with respect to any Proof of Claim filed by or on behalf of a Holder of a Claim against the Debtors.
- 8.10. Objections to Claims. Unless a later or different time is set by Final Order or otherwise established by other provisions of the Plan, all objections to Claims must be filed by the Claims

Objection Bar Date; provided, however, that no such objection may be filed against any Claim after the Bankruptcy Court has determined by entry of a Final Order that such Claim is an Allowed Claim. The failure by any party in interest, including the Debtors and the Committee, to object to any Claim, whether or not unpaid, for purposes of voting shall not be deemed a waiver of such party's or the Disbursing Agent's rights to object to, or re-examine, any such Claim in whole or in part. After the Effective Date, no party in interest shall have the right to object to Claims against the Debtors or their Estates other than the Reorganized Debtors.

- 8.11. Compromises and Settlements. From and after the Effective Date, and without any further approval by the Bankruptcy Court, the Reorganized Debtors may compromise and settle Claims.
- 8.12. Reservation of Debtors' Rights. Prior to the Effective Date, the Debtors expressly reserve the right to compromise and settle (subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court) Claims against them or other claims they may have against other Persons.
- 8.13. No Distributions Pending Allowance. If a Claim or any portion of a Claim is disputed, no payment or Distribution will be made on account of the disputed portion of such Claim (or the entire Claim, if the entire Claim is disputed), unless such Disputed Claim or portion thereof becomes an Allowed Claim.
- 8.14. No Postpetition Interest on Claims. Unless otherwise specifically provided for in the Plan, the Confirmation Order, or other Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court, or required by applicable bankruptcy law, postpetition interest shall not accrue or be paid on any Claims against the Debtors, and no Holder of a Claim against the Debtors shall be entitled to interest accruing on or after the Petition Date on any such Claim.

8.15. Claims Paid or Payable by Third Parties.

- 8.15.1. Claims Paid by Third Parties. The Debtors or the Disbursing Agent, as applicable, shall reduce in full a Claim, and such Claim shall be disallowed without a Claims objection having to be Filed and without further notice to or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court, to the extent that the Holder of such Claim receives payment in full on account of such Claim from a party that is not a Debtor or the Disbursing Agent. Subject to the last sentence of this paragraph, to the extent a Holder of a Claim receives a distribution on account of such Claim and receives payment from a party that is not a Debtor or the Disbursing Agent on account of such Claim, such Holder shall, within two weeks of receipt thereof, repay or return the distribution to the applicable Disbursing Agent, to the extent the Holder's total recovery on account of such Claim from the third party and under the Plan exceeds the amount of such Claim as of the date of any such Distribution under the Plan. The failure of such Holder to timely repay or return such Distribution shall result in the Holder owing the applicable Disbursing Agent annualized interest at the Federal Judgment Rate on such amount owed for each Business Day after the two-week grace period specified above until the amount is repaid.
- 8.15.2. Claims Payable by Third Parties. Except with respect to payment of Insured Claims within the applicable deductible or self-insured retention under Insurance Policies and Agreements that are secured by Prepetition Letters of Credit, no Distributions under the Plan shall be made on account of an Insured Claim unless and until the Holder of such an Insured Claim has received proceeds, if any, of any applicable Insurance Policies and Agreements. To the extent that one or more of the Debtors' insurers agrees to settle or pay, in full or in part, an Insured Claim, then immediately upon such insurers' payment, the applicable portion of the Claim may be expunged without a Claims objection having to be Filed and without further notice to or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court.

8.15.3. Applicability of Insurance Policies and Agreements. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, distributions to Holders of Allowed Claims that are covered by the otherwise provided in the Plan, distributions to Holders of Allowed Claims that are covered by the

Debtors' Insurance Policies and Agreements shall be in accordance with the provisions of any applicable Insurance Policy and Agreement. Nothing contained in the Plan shall constitute or be deemed a waiver of any Cause of Action that the Debtors or any Person may hold against any other Person, including insurers under any Insurance Policies and Agreements, nor shall anything contained herein constitute or be deemed a waiver by such insurers of any rights, claims or defenses, including coverage defenses, held by such insurers.

IX. EFFECT OF CONFIRMATION OF PLAN

9.1. Discharge.

9.1.1. Discharge of Claims Against the Debtors and the Reorganized Debtors.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, the Confirmation of the Plan shall, as of the Effective Date: (i) discharge the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors or any of its or their Assets from all Claims, demands, liabilities, other debts and Interests that arose on or before the Effective Date, including all debts of the kind specified in sections 502(g), 502(h) or 502(i) of the Bankruptcy Code, whether or not (a) a Proof of Claim based on such debt is filed or deemed filed pursuant to section 501 of the Bankruptcy Code, (b) a Claim based on such debt is Allowed pursuant to section 502 of the Bankruptcy Code or (c) the Holder of a Claim based on such debt has accepted the Plan; and (ii) preclude all Persons from asserting against the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets, any other or further Claims or Interests based upon any act or omission, transaction, or other activity of any kind or nature that occurred prior to the Effective Date, all pursuant to sections 524 and 1141 of the Bankruptcy Code. The discharge provided in this provision shall void any judgment obtained against any of the Debtors at any time, to the extent that such judgment relates to a discharged Claim or cancelled Interest.

9.1.2. Injunction Related to the Discharge. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, all entities that have held, currently hold, or may hold Claims or other debts or liabilities against the Debtors, or an Interest or other right of an Equity Security Holder in any or all of the Debtors, that are discharged pursuant to the terms of the Plan, are permanently enjoined, on and after the Effective Date, from taking any of the following actions on account of any such Claims, debts, liabilities or Interests or rights: (i) commencing or continuing in any manner any action or other proceeding of any kind with respect to any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest, or right, other than to enforce any right to a Distribution pursuant to the Plan; (ii) enforcing, attaching, collecting, or recovering in any manner any judgment, award, decree or order against the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets on account of any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest, or right; (iii) creating, perfecting, or enforcing any Lien or encumbrance against the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets on account of any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest or right; (iv) asserting any right of setoff, subrogation, or recoupment of any kind against any debt, liability, or obligation due to the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets on account of any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest, or right; and (v) commencing or continuing any action, in any manner, in any place that does not comply with or is inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan or the Confirmation Order. Such injunction shall extend to any successor of the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets. Any Person injured by any willful violation of such injunction shall recover actual damages, including costs and attorneys' and experts' fees and disbursements, and, in appropriate circumstances, may recover punitive damages, from the willful violator.

9.2. Releases.

9.2.1. Releases by the Debtors. As of the Effective Date, for good and valuable consideration, the adequacy of which is hereby confirmed, the Debtors in their individual capacity and as debtors in possession will be deemed to release and forever waive and discharge all Claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities whether liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or contingent, matured or unmatured, known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, then existing or thereafter arising, in law, equity or otherwise that are based in whole or part on any act, omission, transaction, event, or other occurrence taking place on or prior to the Effective Date (including prior to the Petition Date) in any way relating to the Debtors, the Chapter 11 Cases, the Plan, or the Disclosure Statement, the purchase, sale, or rescission of the purchase or sale of any security of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, the subject matter of, or the transactions or events giving rise to, any Claim or Interest that is treated in the Plan, the business or contractual arrangements between and Debtor and any Released Party, the restructuring of Claims and Interests prior to or in the Chapter 11 Cases, the negotiation, formulation, or preparation of the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the Disclosure Statement, or related agreements, instruments, or other documents, or upon any other act or omission, transaction, agreement, event, or other occurrence taking place before the Effective Date and that could have been asserted by or on behalf of the Debtors or their Estates at any time up to immediately prior to the Effective Date against the Released Parties, other than Claims or liabilities arising out of or relating to any act or omission of a Released Party that constitutes willful misconduct or gross negligence. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, the release set forth above does not release any post-Effective Date obligations of any party under the Plan or any document, instrument, or agreement (including those set forth in the Plan Supplement) executed to implement the Plan.

9.2.2. Certain Waivers. Although the Debtors do not believe that California law is applicable to the Plan, nevertheless, in an abundance of caution, each Debtor hereby understands and waives the effect of Section 1542 of the California Civil Code to the extent that such section is applicable to the Debtors. Section 1542 of the California Civil Code provides:

§1542. A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR.

EACH DEBTOR AGREES TO ASSUME THE RISK OF ANY AND ALL UNKNOWN, UNANTICIPATED OR MISUNDERSTOOD DEFENSES, CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, CONTRACTS, LIABILITIES, INDEBTEDNESS AND OBLIGATIONS WHICH ARE RELEASED BY THE PLAN AND EACH DEBTOR HEREBY WAIVES AND RELEASES ALL RIGHTS AND BENEFITS WHICH IT MIGHT OTHERWISE HAVE UNDER THE AFOREMENTIONED SECTION 1542 OF THE CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE WITH REGARD TO THE RELEASE OF SUCH UNKNOWN, UNANTICIPATED OR MISUNDERSTOOD DEFENSES, CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, CONTRACTS, LIABILITIES, INDEBTEDNESS AND OBLIGATIONS. TO THE EXTENT (IF ANY) ANY OTHER LAWS SIMILAR TO SECTION 1542 OF THE CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE MAY BE APPLICABLE, EACH DEBTOR WAIVES AND RELEASES ANY BENEFIT, RIGHT OR DEFENSE WHICH IT MIGHT OTHERWISE HAVE UNDER ANY SUCH LAW WITH REGARD TO THE RELEASE OF UNKNOWN, UNANTICIPATED OR MISUNDERSTOOD DEFENSES, CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, CONTRACTS, LIABILITIES, INDEBTEDNESS AND OBLIGATIONS.

9,2.3. Releases by Holders of Claims and Interests. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, as of the Effective Date of the Plan, each Holder of a Claim or an Interest that voted in favor of the Plan shall be deemed to have released and forever waived and discharged all Claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities whether liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or contingent, matured or unmatured, known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, then existing or thereafter arising, in law, equity, or otherwise that are based in whole or part on any act, omission, transaction, event, or other occurrence taking place on or prior to the Effective Date (including prior to the Petition Date) in any way relating to the Debtors, the Chapter 11 Cases, the Plan, or the Disclosure Statement, the purchase, sale, or rescission of the purchase or sale of any security of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, the subject matter of, or the transactions or events giving rise to, any Claim or Interest that is treated in the Plan, the business or contractual arrangements between any Debtor and any Released Party, the restructuring of Claims and Interests prior to or in the Chapter 11 Cases, the negotiations, formulation, or preparation of the Plan, the related Disclosure Statement, the related Plan Supplement, or related agreements, instruments, or other documents, or upon any other act or omission, transaction, agreement, event, or other occurrence taking place before the Effective Date and that could have been asserted by or on behalf of the Debtors or their Estates at any time up to immediately prior to the Effective Date against the Released Parties, other than Claims or liabilities arising out of or relating to any act or omission of a Released Party that constitutes willful misconduct or gross negligence. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, the release set forth above does not release any post-Effective Date obligations (except Cure Claims that have not been filed timely) of any party under the Plan or any document, instrument, or agreement (including those set forth in the Plan Supplement) executed to implement the Plan, or any obligation under any assumed contract or lease or any Prepetition Letters of Credit.

9.2.4. Exculpation. On and after the Effective Date, none of the Exculpated Parties shall have or incur any liability for, and each Exculpated Party is hereby released from, any claim, cause of action, or liability to any other Exculpated Party, to any Holder of a Claim or Interest, or to any other party in interest, for any act or omission that occurred during and in connection with the Chapter 11 Cases or in connection with the preparation and filing of the Chapter 11 Cases, the formulation, negotiation, and/or pursuit of confirmation of the Plan, the consummation of the Plan, and/or the administration of the Plan and/or the property to be distributed under the Plan, except for claims, causes of action or liabilities arising from the gross negligence, willful misconduct, fraud, or breach of the fiduciary duty of loyalty of any Exculpated Party, in each case subject to determination of such by final order of a court of competent jurisdiction and provided that any Exculpated Party shall be entitled to reasonably rely upon the advice of counsel with respect to its duties and responsibilities (if any) under the Plan. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Debtors, the Estates, the Committee, WFB, the Prepetition Lenders, the DIP Lenders, and their respective officers, directors, employees, members, attorneys, crisis managers, financial advisors, and professionals, shall be entitled to and granted the protections and benefits of section 1125(e) of the Bankruptcy Code. No provision of the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, or the Confirmation Order shall be deemed to act upon or release any claims, Causes of Action or liabilities that the Debtors, the Estates, or any party in interest may have against or to any Person for any act, omission, or failure to act that occurred prior to the Petition Date other than in connection with the preparation and filing of the Chapter 11 Cases, nor shall any provision of the Plan or the Confirmation Order be deemed to act to release any Avoidance Actions.

9.2.5. Injunction Related to Releases. To the fullest extent allowed by law, and except as otherwise provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, all Persons that have held,

currently hold, or may hold claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities that are released or exculpated pursuant to Section 9.2.1, 9.2.2, 9.2.3, and 9.2.4 are permanently enjoined, on and after the Effective Date, from taking any of the following actions on account of any such claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action and liabilities: (i) commencing or continuing in any manner any action or other proceeding of any kind against a Released Party or Exculpated Party with respect to any such claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities; (ii) enforcing, attaching, collecting, or recovering in any manner any judgment, award, decree, or order against any Released Party or any Exculpated Party or any of its or their Assets on account of any such claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities; (iii) creating, perfecting, or enforcing any Lien or encumbrance against any Released Party or any Exculpated Party or any of its or their assets on account of any such claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities; (iv) asserting any right of setoff, subrogation, or recoupment of any kind against any debt, liability, or obligation due to any Released Party or any Exculpated Party or any of its or their Assets on account of any such claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities; and (v) commencing or continuing any action, in any manner, in any place that does not comply with or is inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan or the Confirmation Order. Such injunction shall extend to any successor of any Released Party or any Exculpated Party or any of its or their assets. Any Person injured by any willful violation of such injunction shall recover actual damages, including costs and attorneys' and experts' fees and disbursements, and, in appropriate circumstances, may recover punitive damages, from the willful violator.

- 9.3. No Successor Liability. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, none of the Released Parties shall be determined to be successors to any of the Debtors or to any Person for which the Debtors may be held legally responsible, by reason of any theory of law or equity, and none can be responsible for any successor or transferee liability of any kind or character. The Released Parties do not agree to perform, pay, or indemnify creditors or otherwise have any responsibilities for any liabilities or obligations of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, whether arising before, on, or after the Confirmation Date, except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan.
- 9.4. Release of Liens. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan or in any contract, instrument, indenture, or other agreement or document expressly incorporated by reference in the Plan, the Confirmation Order will release any and all prepetition Liens against the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors or any of their Assets.
- 9.5. Term of Injunctions. All injunctions or stays provided in, or in connection with, the Chapter 11 Cases, whether pursuant to section 105, section 362, or any other provision of the Bankruptcy Code, other applicable law or court order, in effect immediately prior to Confirmation will remain in full force and effect until such injunctions or stays become effective and shall remain in full force and effect thereafter if so provided in the Plan, the Confirmation Order or by their own terms. In addition, on and after Confirmation Date, the Debtors may seek further orders to preserve the status quo during the time between the Confirmation Date and the Effective Date.
- 9.6. Binding Effect. The Plan shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the Debtors and all Holders of Claims and Interests, and their respective successors and assigns, whether or not the Claims and Interests of such Holders are Impaired under the Plan and whether or not such Holders have accepted the Plan.

- 9.7. Dissolution of the Committee. The Committee shall be dissolved on the Effective Date and shall not continue to exist thereafter except for the limited purposes of filing any remaining fee applications, and the Professionals retained by the Committee shall be entitled to compensation for services performed and reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection therewith. Upon dissolution of the Committee, the members of the Committee shall be released and discharged of and from all duties, responsibilities and obligations related to and arising from and in connection with the Debtors' Chapter 11 Cases.
- 9.8. Post-Confirmation Date Retention of Professionals. After the Confirmation

 Date, any requirement that Professionals employed by the Debtors comply with sections 327 through 331 of the Bankruptcy Code in seeking retailed or compensation for services rendered after such date will terminate, and the Reorganized Debtors will be authorized to employ and compensate Professionals in the ordinary course of business and without the need for Bankruptcy Court approval.

X. EFFECTIVENESS OF THE PLAN

10.1. Conditions Precedent. The Plan shall not become effective unless and until the following conditions have been satisfied:

10.1.1. Conditions to Confirmation.

- 10.1.1.1. Disclosure Statement. The Bankruptcy Court shall have approved a Disclosure Statement with respect to the Plan as containing adequate information within the meaning of section 1125 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 10.1.1.2. Plan Supplement. The Plan Documents to be provided in the Plan Supplement are in a form that is reasonably satisfactory to the Debtors and WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities.
- 10.1.1.3. Confirmation Order. The Confirmation Order must be in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Debtors, and WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities, and must provide for the confirmation of the Plan with respect to each Debtor.

10.1.2. Conditions to Effective Date.

- 10.1.2.1. Confirmation Order. At least 10 days shall have passed after the Bankruptcy Court shall have entered the Confirmation Order in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Debtors and WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities.
- 10.1.2.2. No Stay of Confirmation. There shall not be in force any order, decree, or ruling of any court or governmental body having jurisdiction, restraining, enjoining, or staying the consummation of, or rendering illegal the transactions contemplated by, the Plan.
- 10.1.2.3. Receipt of Required Governmental Authorization. All governmental authorizations, consents, and regulatory approvals (if any) necessary to effectuate the Plan shall have been obtained.

- 10.1.2.4. Exit Revolver. The documents evidencing the Exit Revolver shall be in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Debtors and the Exit Revolving Lenders, shall have been executed and delivered by the respective parties thereto, and all conditions precedent to the effectiveness of such document shall have been satisfied or waived.
- 10.1.2.5. Term Loan Credit Agreement. The documents evidencing the Term Loan Credit Agreement shall be in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Debtors and the Exit Term Loan Lenders, shall have been executed and delivered by the respective parties thereto, and all conditions precedent to the effectiveness of each such document shall have been satisfied or waived.
- 10.1.2.6. **Plan Supplement.** All documents to be contained in the Plan Supplement shall be completed and in final form and, to the extent necessary, shall have been executed and delivered by the respective parties thereto.
- 10.1.2.7. Required Transactions. All transactions required by the Plan have been completed to the reasonable satisfaction of the Debtors and WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities.
- 10.1.2.8. IRS Tax Refund Claim. The Internal Revenue Service's Claims filed in the Chapter 11 Cases with respect to the Form 1139 Carryback Refunds that were received in 2009 shall either be withdrawn or disallowed.
- 10.1.2.9 Restructuring Transactions. At the discretion of the Debtors and with the consent of WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities. (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld), the Restructuring Transactions described in the Restructuring Transactions Memorandum have been completed to the reasonable satisfaction of the Debtors and WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities.
- 10.1.3. Waiver. Any of the conditions set forth in Sections 10.1.1 and 10.1.2 hereof may be waived by the party benefiting from such condition to the extent that such waiver does not affect the distributions hereunder.
- 10.2. Effect of Failure of Conditions. In the event that the conditions specified in Section 10.1, have not been satisfied or waived on or before 120 days after the Confirmation Date, then the Debtors may seek an order from the Bankruptcy Court vacating the Confirmation Order. Such request shall be served upon counsel for the administrative agent under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, the administrative agent under the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Committee, and the U.S. Trustee. If the Confirmation Order is vacated, (i) the Plan shall be null and void in all respects; (ii) any settlement of Claims or Interests provided for hereby shall be null and void without further order of the Bankruptcy Court; and (iii) the time within which the Debtors may assume and assign or reject all Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases shall be extended for a period of 60 days after the date the Confirmation Order is vacated.

XL RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

11.1. Bankruptcy Court. Pursuant to sections 105(c) and 1142 of the Bankruptcy Code and notwithstanding entry of the Confirmation Order and the occurrence of the Effective Date, the Bankruptcy Court will retain exclusive jurisdiction over all matters arising out of, and related to, the

- Chapter 11 Cases and the Plan to the fullest extent permitted by law, including, among other things, jurisdiction to:
- 11.1.1. allow, disallow, determine, liquidate, classify, estimate, or establish the priority or secured or unsecured status of any Claim or Interest, including, without limitation, the resolution of any request for payment of any Administrative Expense Claim or Priority Tax Claim and the resolution of any objections to the allowance or priority of Claims or Interests;
- 11.1.2. hear and rule upon all Causes of Action retained by the Debtors and commenced and/or pursued by the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors;
- 11.1.3. resolve any matters related to the rejection, assumption, or assumption and assignment of any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease to which any Debtor is a party or with respect to which the Debtors may be liable and to hear, determine, and, if necessary, liquidate any Claims arising therefrom;
- 11.1.4. ensure that Distributions on account of Allowed Claims are accomplished pursuant to the provisions of the Plan;
- 11.1.5. decide or resolve any motions, adversary proceedings, contested, or litigated matters and any other matters and grant or deny any applications involving the Debtors that may be pending on the Effective Date;
- 11.1.6. enter such orders as may be necessary or appropriate to implement or consummate the provisions of the Plan and all contracts, instruments, releases, and other agreements or documents created in connection with the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the Disclosure Statement, or the Confirmation Order,
- 11.1.7. resolve any cases, controversies, suits, or disputes that may arise in connection with the consummation, interpretation, or enforcement of the Plan or any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement or document that is executed or created pursuant to the Plan, or any Person's rights arising from or obligations incurred in connection with the Plan or such documents;
- 11.1.8. approve any modification of the Plan before or after the Effective Date pursuant to section 1127 of the Bankruptcy Code or approve any modification of the Disclosure Statement, the Confirmation Order, or any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement or document created in connection with the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, or the Confirmation Order, or remedy any defect or omission or reconcile any inconsistency in any Bankruptcy Court order, the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, the Confirmation Order, or any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement or document created in connection with the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, or the Confirmation Order, in such manner as may be necessary or appropriate to consummate the Plan;
- 11.1.9. hear and determine all applications for compensation and reimbursement of expenses of Professionals under the Plan or under sections 330, 331, 363, 503(b), 1103, and 1129(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code, which shall be payable by the Debtors, or the Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, only upon allowance thereof pursuant to the order of the Bankruptcy Court; provided, however, that the fees and expenses of the Debtors incurred after the Confirmation Date, including attorneys' fees, may be paid by the Reorganized Debtors in the ordinary course of business and shall not be subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court;

- 11.1.10. issue injunctions, enter and implement other orders, or take such other actions as may be necessary or appropriate to restrain interference by any Person with consummation of the Plan, implementation, or enforcement of the Plan or the Confirmation Order;
- 11.1.11. hear and determine matters concerning state, local, and federal taxes in accordance with sections 346, 505, and 1146 of the Bankruptcy Code;
- 11.1.12. enter and implement such orders as are necessary or appropriate if the Confirmation Order is for any reason or in any respect modified, stayed, reversed, revoked, or vacated, or if Distributions pursuant to the Plan are enjoined or stayed;
- 11.1.13. determine any other matters that may arise in connection with or relate to the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the Disclosure Statement, the Confirmation Order, or any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement, or document created in connection with the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, or the Confirmation Order;
- 11.1.14. enforce all orders, judgments, injunctions, releases, exculpations, indemnifications, and rulings entered in connection with the Chapter 11 Cases;
- 11.1.15. hear and determine all matters related to (i) the property of the Debtors and the Estates from and after the Confirmation Date and (ii) the activities of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors; and
- 11.1.16. hear and determine such other matters as may be provided in the Confirmation Order or as may be authorized under the Bankruptcy Code.
- 11.1.17. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Plan to the contrary, any dispute arising under or in connection with the Exit Credit Facilities and/or Term Loan Credit Agreement shall be dealt with in accordance with the provisions of the applicable document; provided, however, that the Bankruptcy Court shall retain exclusive jurisdiction over any dispute regarding the parties' compliance with their respective obligations under that certain Financing Commitment letter dated as of December 14, 2009 between Building Materials Holding Corporation and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC and that certain Financing Commitment letter dated as of December 14, 2009 between Building Materials Holding Corporation and DK Acquisition Partners, L.P.

XII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 12.1. Plan Supplement. No later than 10 days prior to the Voting Deadline, the Debtors shall File with the Bankruptcy Court the Plan Supplement, which shall contain such agreements and other documents as may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate and further evidence the terms and conditions of the Plan. Holders of Claims or Interests may obtain a copy of the Plan Supplement upon written request to the Debtors' counsel.
- 12.2. Exemption for Registration Requirements. Pursuant to section 1145 of the Bankruptcy Code, the offering, issuance and Distribution of any securities contemplated by the Plan shall be exempt from, among other things, the registration requirements of Section 5 of the Securities Act and any state or local law requiring registration prior to the offering, issuance, distribution or sale of securities. In addition, any securities contemplated by the Plan will be tradable by the recipients thereof, subject to (i) the provisions of section 1145(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code; and (ii) the restrictions, if any, on the transferability of such securities and instruments.

- 12.3. Statutory Fees. All fees payable pursuant to section 1930 of title 28 of the United States Code, as determined by the Bankruptcy Court at the Confirmation Hearing, shall be paid by the Debtors on or before the Effective Date.
- 12.4. Third Party Agreements. The Distributions to the various Classes of Claims and Interests hereunder shall not affect the right of any Person to levy, garnish, attach, or employ any other legal process with respect to such Distributions by reason of any claimed subordination rights or otherwise. All of such rights and any agreements relating thereto shall remain in full force and effect, except as compromised and settled pursuant to the Plan. Distributions shall be subject to and modified by any Final Order directing distributions other than as provided in the Plan.
- Bankruptcy Code, modification of the Plan may be proposed in writing by the Debtors at any time before Confirmation, provided that the Plan, as modified, meets the requirements of sections 1122 and 1123 of the Bankruptcy Code, and the Debtors shall have complied with section 1125 of the Bankruptcy Code. The Debtors may modify the Plan at any time after Confirmation and before consummation of the Plan, provided that the Plan, as modified, meets the requirements of sections 1122 and 1123 of the Bankruptcy Code and the Bankruptcy Court, after notice and a hearing, confirms the Plan as modified, under section 1129 of the Bankruptcy Code, and the circumstances warrant such modifications. A Holder of a Claim that has accepted the Plan shall be deemed to have accepted such Plan as modified if the proposed alteration, amendment or modification does not materially and adversely change the treatment of the Claim or Interest of such Holder.
- 12.6. Severability. In the event that the Bankruptcy Court determines, prior to the Confirmation Date, that any provision in the Plan is invalid, void or unenforceable, the Reorganized Debtors may, at their option, (a) treat such provision as invalid, void or unenforceable with respect to the Holder or Holders of such Claims or Interests that the provision is determined to be invalid, void or unenforceable, in which case such provision shall in no way limit or affect the enforceability and operative effect of any other provision of the Plan, or (b) alter, amend, revoke, or withdraw the Plan.
- withdraw the Plan or to adjourn the Confirmation Hearing at any time prior to the occurrence of the Effective Date. If the Debtors revoke or withdraw the Plan, or if Confirmation or consummation does not occur, then (i) the Plan shall be null and void in all respects, (ii) any settlement or compromise embodied in the Plan, assumption or rejection of Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases under the Plan, and any document or agreement executed pursuant to the Plan, shall be deemed null and void, and (iii) nothing contained in the Plan shall (A) constitute a waiver or release of any Claims by or against, or Interests in, such Debtors or any other Person, (B) prejudice in any manner the rights of such Debtors or any other Person, or (C) constitute an admission of any sort by the Debtors or any other Person.

For the avoidance of doubt, if the Confirmation Hearing is adjourned, the Debtors reserve the right to amend, modify, revoke or withdraw the Plan and/or submit any new plan of reorganization at such times and in such manner as they consider appropriate, subject to the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code.

between the terms or provisions of the Plan and the Plan Documents, the terms of the Plan shall control over the Plan Documents. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Plan or the Plan Documents, on the one hand, and the terms of the Confirmation Order, on the other hand, the terms of the Confirmation Order shall control. In the event of a conflict between the information contained in the

Disclosure Statement and the Plan or any other Plan Document, the Plan or other Plan Document (as the case may be) will control.

- 12.9. Governing Law. Except to the extent that federal law (including, but not limited to, the Bankruptcy Code and the Bankruptcy Rules) is applicable or the Plan provides otherwise, the rights and obligations arising under the Plan shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York without giving effect to its conflicts of law principles.
- 12.10. Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be provided under the Plan shall be in writing and served by either (a) certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (b) hand delivery, or (c) reputable overnight delivery service, freight prepaid. If to the Debtors, any such notice shall be directed to the following at the addresses set forth below:

Building Materials Holding Corporation 720 Park Boulevard Boise, Idaho 83712 Attention: Paul Street

- with copies to --

Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP 200 Park Avenue New York, New York 10166-0193 Attention: Michael A. Rosenthal and Matthew K. Kelsey

-- and --

Young Conaway Stargatt & Taylor, LLP
The Brandywine Building
1000 West Street
17th Floor
Wilmington, Delaware 19801
Attention: Sean M. Beach and Robert F. Poppiti

- 12.11. Interest and Attorneys' Faes. Interest accrued after the Petition Date will accrue and be paid on Claims only to the extent specifically provided for in the Plan, the Confirmation Order or as otherwise required by the Bankruptcy Court or by applicable law. No award or reimbursement of attorneys' fees or related expenses or disbursements shall be allowed on, or in connection with, any Claim, except as set forth in the Plan or as ordered by the Bankruptcy Court.
- 12.12. Binding Effect. The Plan shall be binding upon the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, the Holders of all Claims and Interests, parties in interest, Persons, and Governmental Units and their respective successors and assigns. To the extent any provision of the Disclosure Statement or any other solicitation document may be inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, the terms of the Plan shall be binding and conclusive.
- 12.13. No Admissions. As to contested matters, adversary proceedings and other Causes of Action or threatened Causes of Action, nothing in the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the Disclosure Statement, or other Plan Documents shall constitute or be construed as an admission of any fact or liability, stipulation, or waiver, but rather as a statement made in settlement negotiations. The Plan shall not be construed to be conclusive advice on the tax, securities, and other legal effects of the Plan as

to Holders of Claims against, or Interests in, the Debtors or any of their subsidiaries and affiliates, as debtors and debtors in possession in the Chapter 11 Cases.

- 12.14. Exhibits. All Exhibits and Schedules to the Plan are incorporated into and are a part of the Plan as if set forth in full herein.

-- The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank --

The undersigned have executed this Joint Plan of Reorganization For the Debtors Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code as of the 14th day of December, 2009.

Respectfully submitted,

Dated: Wilmington, Delaware December 14, 2009

> BUILDING MATERIALS HOLDING CORPORATION, on behalf of itself and all the other Debtors

By Paul S. Street

Title: Senior Vice President,

General Counsel Chief Administrative Officer, and Corporate Secretary

COUNSEL

YOUNG CONAWAY STARGATT &

TAYLOR, LLP

Sean M. Beach (No. 4070)

Donald J. Bowman Jr. (No. 4383)

Robert F. Poppiti, Jr. (No. 5052)

The Brandywine Building

1000 West St., 17th Floor

Wilmington, DE 19801

Telephone:

302.571.6600

Facsimile:

302,571,1253

--- and ----

GIBSON, DUNN & CRUTCHER LLP Michael A. Rosenthal (admitted pro hac vice) Matthew K. Kelsey (admitted pro hac vice) Aaron G. York (admitted pro hac vice) 200 Park Ave, 47th Floor New York, NY 10166-0193

Telephone:

212.351.4000

Facsimile:

212.351.4035

ATTORNEYS FOR DEBTORS AND DEBTORS IN POSSESSION

PLAN APPENDIX A

Uniform Glossary of Defined Terms for Plan Documents

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms, when used in initially capitalized form in the Plan, Disclosure Statement, related exhibits, and Plan Documents, shall have the following meanings. Such meanings shall be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of such terms. Any term used in capitalized form that is not defined herein but that is defined in the Bankruptcy Code or the Bankruptcy Rules shall have the meaning ascribed to such term by the Bankruptcy Code or the Bankruptcy Rules (with the Bankruptcy Code controlling in the event of a conflict or ambiguity). Certain defined terms used in only one Section of the Disclosure Statement are defined in such Section. The rules of construction set forth herein and in section 102 of the Bankruptcy Code shall apply. All references to the "Plan" shall be construed, where applicable, to include references to the Plan and all its exhibits, appendices, schedules, and annexes (and any amendments made in accordance with their terms or applicable law).

- 1. Administrative Expense means any cost or expense of administration of the Chapter 11 Cases incurred before the Effective Date and allowable under section 503(b) of the Bankruptcy Code and entitled to priority under section 507(a)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code including: (i) any actual and necessary postpetition cost or expense of preserving the Estates or operating the businesses of the Debtors; (ii) any payment required to cure a default on an assumed executory contract or unexpired lease; (iii) any postpetition cost, indebtedness, or contractual obligation duly and validly incurred or assumed by a Debtor in the ordinary course of its business; and (iv) compensation or reimbursement of expenses of Professionals to the extent allowed by the Bankruptcy Court under sections 330(a) or 331 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 2. Administrative Expense Claim means any Claim for the payment of an Administrative Expense.
 - 3. Affiliate has the meaning set forth in section 101(2) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- Claim that is scheduled by the Debtors on their Schedules as neither disputed, contingent, nor unliquidated, and as to which the Debtors or other party in interest have not Filed an objection by the Claims Objection Bar Date; (ii) a Claim that either is not a Disputed Claim or has been Allowed by a Final Order; (iii) a Claim that is Allowed (a) pursuant to the Plan, (b) in any stipulation that is approved by the Bankruptcy Court, or (c) pursuant to any contract, instrument, indenture, or other agreement entered into or assumed in connection with the Plan; (iv) a Claim relating to a rejected Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease that either (a) is not a Disputed Claim or (b) has been Allowed by Final Order; (v) a Claim that is Allowed pursuant to the terms of the Plan; or (vi) a Claim as to which a Proof of Claim has been timely Filed and as to which no objection has been filed by the Claims Objection Bar Date.
- 5. Allowed Amount of any Claim or Interest means the amount at which that Claim or Interest is Allowed.
- 6. Allowed Claim; Allowed Interest means any Claim or Interest in any of the Debtors or their respective Estates, (i) proof of which was filed on or before the Bar Date, (ii) if no such proof of Claim or Interest has been timely filed, which has been or hereafter is listed by such Debtor in its Schedules as liquidated in amount and not disputed or contingent, or (iii) any Interest registered in the stock or membership register, as the case may be, maintained by or on behalf of the Debtor as of the

Record Date, in each such case in clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) above, a Claim or Interest as to which no objection to the allowance thereof, or action to equitably subordinate or otherwise seek recovery from the Holder of the Claim or Interest, has been interposed within the applicable period of limitation fixed by the Plan, the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, or a Final Order, or as to which an objection has been interposed and such Claim has been allowed in whole or in part by a Final Order.

- 7. Assets means all property in which the Debtors hold a legal or equitable interest, including all property described in section 541 of the Bankruptcy Code and all property disclosed in Debtors' respective Schedules and the Disclosure Statement.
- 8. Avoidance Actions means any and all actual or potential Claims to avoid a transfer of property or an obligation incurred by the Debtors pursuant to any applicable section of the Bankruptcy Code, including, without limitation, sections 544, 545, 547, 548, 549, 550, 551, 553(b), and 724(a) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 9. Ballot means each of the ballot forms for voting to accept or reject the Plan distributed to all Holders of Impaired Claims entitled to vote on the Plan.
- 10. Balloting and Claims Agent means The Garden City Group, Inc., retained by the Debtors in the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 11. Bankruptcy Code means title 11 of the United States Code, 11 U.S.C. sections 101-1532, as in effect on the Petition Date, together with all amendments and modifications thereto subsequently made, to the extent applicable to the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 12. Bankruptcy Court means the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware or any other court having jurisdiction over the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 13. Bankruptcy Rules means the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and the local rules and general orders of the Bankruptcy Court, as in effect on the Petition Date, together with all amendments and modifications thereto subsequently made applicable to the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 14. Bar Date means the date(s) by which any Entity asserting certain Claims against the Debtors must have filed a Proof of Claim or be forever barred from asserting such Claims against the Debtors or their Estates, as established by any order(s) of the Bankruptcy Court or the Plan.
- 15. Bar Date Order means the Final Order entered by the Bankruptcy Court on July 16, 2009 establishing August 31, 2009 as the general Bar Date and December 16, 2009 as the Bar Date applicable to Governmental Units, and any subsequent order by the Bankruptcy Court amending, revising, rescinding, or superseding the same.
 - 16. BMC West means BMC West Corporation, a Debtor.
- 17. BMC West Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against BMC West bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 18. BMHC means Building Materials Holding Corporation, a Debtor.

- 19. BMHC Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against BMHC bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
- 20. Business Day means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday (as such term is defined in Bankruptcy Rule 9006(a)).
 - 21. C Construction means C Construction, Inc., a Debtor.
- 22. C Construction Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against C Construction bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 23. Cash means the legal tender of the United States of America.
- 24. Cash Claims means Administrative Claims, Cure Claims, Professional Compensation Claims, Other Priority Claims and Other Secured Claims.
- 25. Cash Claims Reserve means an amount of Cash equal to the sum of (i) the Maximum Amount of each Disputed Cash Claim, plus (ii) an amount determined by the Debtors sufficient to pay the unpaid estimated Administrative Claims that accrue on or after the Petition Date through the Confirmation Date.
- 26. Cash Collateral Account shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the DIP Facility.
- 27. Causes of Action means all actions, causes of action, liabilities, obligations, rights, suits, damages, judgments, remedies, demands, setoffs, defenses, recoupments, crossclaims, counterclaims, third-party claims, indemnity claims, contribution claims, or any other claims whatsoever, in each case held by the Debtors, whether known or unknown, matured or unmatured, fixed or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated, disputed or undisputed, suspected or unsuspected, foreseen or unforeseen, direct or indirect, choate or inchoate, existing or hereafter arising, in law, equity, or otherwise, based in whole or in part upon any act or omission or other event occurring prior to the Petition Date or during the course of the Chapter 11 Cases, including through the Effective Date.
 - 28. Certificate means any instrument evidencing a Claim or an Interest.
- 29. Chapter 11 Cases means (i) when used with reference to a particular Debtor, the chapter 11 case pending for that Debtor under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the Bankruptcy Court, and (ii) when used with reference to all Debtors, the procedurally consolidated chapter 11 cases pending for the Debtors in Bankruptcy Court.
- 30. Claim has the meaning set forth in section 101(5) of the Bankruptcy Code, against any Debtor or any Estate whether or not asserted.
 - 31. Claimant means the Holder of a Claim.
- 32. Claims Objection Bar Date means, with respect to any Claim, the 180th day following the latest of the Effective Date, the date such Claim is Filed, and such later date as may be

established from time to time by the Bankruptcy Court as the last date for filing objections to such Claims.

- 33. Class means a category of Holders of Claims or Interests, as set forth in Article III of the Plan, pursuant to section 1122 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- or Cash Claim arising from those certain lawsuits styled as follows: (i) Eduardo Acevedo, et al. v. Building Materials Holding Corporation, et al., Case No. CV 08-06227 SJO (Cwx) pending in the District Court for the Central District of California and (ii) Pedro Alvarado, an individual, on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated v. Building Materials Holding Corporation, a Delaware Corporation, SelectBuild Construction, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, SelectBuild Southern California, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, and Does 1 through 50, inclusive, Case No. BC391029 pending in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles.
- 35. Collateral means any property or interest in property of an Estate that is subject to a Lien to secure the payment or performance of a Claim, which Lien is not subject to avoidance or otherwise invalid under the Bankruptcy Code or applicable state law.
- agreements entered into by certain of the Debtors from time to time to with the following Persons: (i) Chicago Regional Council of Carpenters and Residential Construction Employers Council; (ii) U.B.C. Industrial Local Union No. 2218; (iii) Lumber, Production & Industrial Workers Union Local No. 2633; (iv) General Teamsters Local Union No. 174; (v) General Teamsters Local Union No. 313; (vi) General Teamsters Local Union No. 431; and (vii) Western Council of Industrial Workers Union Local No. 2633.
- 37. Committee means the official committee of unsecured creditors for the Debtors appointed by the U.S. Trustee on June 26, 2009, as presently constituted.
- 38. Confirmation, Confirmation of the Plan, or Plan Confirmation means the approval of the Plan by the Bankruptcy Court at the Confirmation Hearing.
- 39. Confirmation Date means the date on which the Confirmation Order is entered on the docket of the Bankruptcy Court.
- 40. Confirmation Hearing means the hearing held by the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to section 1128 of the Bankruptcy Code to consider Confirmation of the Plan, as such hearing may be adjourned or continued from time to time.
- 41. Confirmation Order means the order of the Bankruptcy Court confirming the Plan pursuant to section 1129 and other applicable sections of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 42. Creditor means any Person holding a Claim against a Debtor's Estate or pursuant to section 102(5) of the Bankruptcy Code against property of the Debtor that arose or is deemed to have arisen on or prior to the Petition Date.
- 43. Cure Claim means a Claim based upon the Debtors' defaults on an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease at the time such contract or lease is assumed by the Debtors pursuant to section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code; provided, however, that the Cure Claim for Insurance Policies and Agreements shall be the liquidated amount due and owing at the time of the assumption thereof and the

applicable Debtor (or after the Effective Date, the applicable Reorganized Debtor) shall remain liable for any Claim under Insurance Policies and Agreements that becomes liquidated, or is due and owing, after the time of assumption (regardless of when the underlying cause of action and/or claim arose) and shall pay such Claim in the ordinary course of business.

- 44. Debtor means any of the Debtors.
- 45. Debtors has the meaning ascribed to such term in the "Introduction" of the Plan.
- 46. *DIP Facility* means the Senior Secured Super-Priority Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement, which was approved by the DIP Order.
 - 47. DIP Lenders means those Persons committed to fund the DIP Facility.
- 48. *DIP Order* means the Final Order dated July 1, 2009 entered by the Bankruptcy Court authorizing the Debtors to enter into the DIP Facility.
 - 49. Disbursing Agent means the Persons identified as such in Section 8.1 of the Plan.
- 50. Disclosure Statement means the Disclosure Statement in Support of the Joint Plan of Reorganization for the Debtors Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code amended October 22, 2009, including all exhibits attached thereto or referenced therein, as submitted by the Debtors pursuant to section 1125 of the Bankruptcy Code and approved by the Bankruptcy Court in the Disclosure Statement Approval Order, as such Disclosure Statement may be further amended, supplemented, or modified from time to time with the further approval of the Bankruptcy Court.
- 51. Disclosure Statement Approval Order means the order of the Bankruptcy Court, dated October 22, 2009, approving the Disclosure Statement.
 - 52. Disputed Cash Claim means any Cash Claim that is not yet Allowed.
 - 53. Disputed Claim means any Claim that is not yet Allowed.
- 54. Disputed General Unsecured Claims means any General Unsecured Claim that is a Disputed Claim.
- 55. Distribution means any distribution by the Disbursing Agent to the Holders of Allowed Claims pursuant to Article VIII of the Plan.
- than a Small Unsecured Claim), the date that is as soon as practicable after the later of: (i) the Effective Date, (ii) the date a Claim becomes payable pursuant to any agreement with the Disbursing Agent, or (iii) solely with respect to Disputed Claims as of the Effective Date, no later than 30 days after the date upon which the Claim or Interest becomes an Allowed Claim, and (b) when used with respect to a Small Unsecured Claim, the date that is as soon as practicable after all Small Unsecured Claims that are Disputed Claims as of the Effective Date become Allowed Claims.
- 57. Distribution Record Date means the record date for purposes of making distributions under the Plan on account of Allowed Claims, which date shall be five Business Days after the Confirmation Date.

068301.1001

- 58. Effective Date means the date specified by the Debtors in a notice filed with the Bankruptcy Court as the date on which the Plan shall take effect, which date shall be not more than 10 Business Days after the later of (i) the date on which the Confirmation Order shall have been entered and is no longer subject to any stay; and (ii) the date on which the conditions to the Effective Date provided for in Section 10.1.2 of the Plan have been satisfied or waived.
- 59. Equity Security means any equity security as defined in section 101(16) of the Bankruptcy Code in a Debtor.
- 60. Estate means, as to each Debtor, the estate created for such Debtor in its Chapter 11 Case pursuant to section 541 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 61. Excess Cash Flow shall have the meaning assigned to such term in, and be calculated in accordance with, the Term Loan Credit Agreement.
- 62. Exculpated Parties means (i) the Debtors and each of the Debtors' respective officers, directors, employees, Professionals, and agents, (ii) the Committee, its members, and Professionals, (iii) WFB, in its capacity as Agent under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, and its officers, directors, employees, professionals, and agents, (iii) the Prepetition Lenders and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, professionals, and agents, and (iv) the DIP Lenders and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, professionals, and agents.
- 63. Executory Contracts means a contract to which one or more of the Debtors is a party and that is subject to assumption or rejection under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.
 - 64. Exit Credit Facilities means the Exit Revolver and the Exit Term Loan.
- 65. Exit Credit Facilities Lenders means, collectively, the Exit Revolver Lenders and the Exit Term Loan Lenders.
- 66. Exit Revolver means that certain revolving credit facility in an amount equal to \$50,000,000 effectuated pursuant to the Revolving Credit Agreement, substantially in the form contained in the Plan Supplement.
- 67. Exit Revolver Lenders means the Person(s) who have committed to providing the Exit Revolver.
- 68. Exit Term Loan means that certain term loan facility in an amount equal to \$40,000,000 effectuated pursuant to the Exit Term Loan Credit Agreement, substantially in the form contained in the Plan Supplement.
- 69. Exit Term Loan Lenders means the Person(s) who have committed to providing the Exit Term Loan.
- 70. Exit Term Loan Credit Agreement means the exit term loan credit agreement, and all documents related thereto, including the Intercreditor Agreement, to be entered into by the Reorganized Debtors and the Exit Term Loan Lenders, the provisions of which shall give effect to the Exit Term Loan. The Exit Term Loan Credit Agreement shall be substantially in the form contained in the Plan Supplement.

068301.1001

- 71. Federal Judgment Rate means the federal judgment rate of .51%, which was in effect as of the Petition Date.
- 72. File or Filed means file, filed, or filing with the Bankruptcy Court or its authorized designee in the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 73. Final Order means, as applicable, an order or judgment of the Bankruptcy Court or other court of competent jurisdiction with respect to the relevant subject matter, which has not been reversed, stayed, modified, or amended, and as to which the time to appeal, seek certiorari, or move for a new trial, reargument, or rehearing has expired and no appeal, petition for certiorari, or motion for a new trial, reargument, or rehearing has been timely filed, or as to which any appeal that has been taken, any petition for certiorari, or motion for a new trial, reargument, or rehearing that has been or may be Filed has been resolved by the highest court to which the order or judgment was appealed or from which certiorari was sought.
- Funded Lender Claim means a Claim arising under the Prepetition Revolving Credit Facility and the Prepetition Term Loan that are held by the Prepetition Revolving Lenders and the Prepetition Term Loan Lenders, respectively, including, without limitation, any claims of the Prepetition L/C Lenders under the Prepetition Letters of Credit that have been liquidated prior to the Petition Date, all accrued and unpaid interest, fees, and expenses, claims arising from swap agreements contemplated by the Prepetition Credit Agreement, accrued and unpaid interest payable in kind under the Prepetition Term Loan as of the Petition Date, and other liquidated Obligations (as such term is defined in the Prepetition Credit Agreement) arising as of the Petition Date under the Prepetition Revolving Credit Facility and the Prepetition Term Loan.
- 75. Funded Lender's Share of Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount means, as to each Allowed Funded Lender Claim, that amount equal to the Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount multiplied by that ratio (expressed as a percentage) that such Allowed Funded Lender Claim on the Effective Date bears to the aggregate of (i) all Liquidated L/C Amounts of Allowed L/C Lender Claims on the Effective Date and (ii) all Allowed Funded Lender Claims on the Effective Date.
- 76. General Unsecured Claim means any Unsecured Claim that is not an L/C General Unsecured Claim, an Intercompany Claim, or a Section 510(b) Claim.
- 77. Governmental Unit has the meaning ascribed to such term in section 101(27) of the Bankruptcy Code.
 - 78. H.N.R. Framing Systems means H.N.R. Framing Systems, Inc., a Debtor.
- 79. H.N.R. Framing Systems Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 80. Holder means any Person holding an Interest or Claim.
 - 81. Illinois Framing means Illinois Framing, Inc., a Debtor.
- 82. Illinois Framing Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the

amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against Illinois Framing bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.

- 83. Impaired means a Claim or a Class of Claims that is impaired within the meaning of section 1124 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 84. Insurance Policies and Agreements means all of the Debtors' insurance policies and any agreements, documents, or instruments relating thereto including, without limitation, all payment and collateral agreements.
- 85. *Insured Claim* means a Claim covered by one or more of the Debtors' Insurance Policies and Agreements, including, but not limited to, tort claims, property damage claims, personal injury claims, general liability claims, automobile liability claims and employer liability and workers' compensation claims within or above the applicable deductible or self insured retention under the applicable policy.
- 86. Intercompany Claim means any Claim held by a Debtor against another Debtor or any Claim held by an Affiliate against a Debtor.
- 87. Intercompany Contracts means any Executory Contract by or between or among any of the Debtors.
- 88. Intercompany Interest means an Interest in a Debtor held by another Debtor or an Interest in a Debtor held by an Affiliate of a Debtor.
- 89. Intercreditor Agreement means the agreement to be entered into, or deemed to be entered into, by the Reorganized Debtors, the Exit Credit Facilities Lenders and the Prepetition Lenders (as parties to the Term Loan Credit Agreement), and/or the agents for such parties, setting forth, among other things, the intercreditor agreements related to the Exit Credit Facilities and the Term Loan Credit Agreement.
- 90. Interim Compensation Order means the order entered by the Bankruptcy Court on July 16, 2009 establishing procedures for interim compensation and reimbursement of expenses of Professionals of the Debtors and the Committee.
- 91. Interest means any: (i) Equity Security, including all issued, unissued, authorized, or outstanding shares of capital stock of the Debtors, together with any warrants, options, or contractual rights to purchase or acquire such Equity Securities at any time and all rights arising with respect thereto; and (ii) partnership, limited liability company, or similar interest in a Debtor.
- 92. L/C General Unsecured Claim means an Unsecured Claim for which (a) the Holder is a beneficiary of a Prepetition Letter of Credit; or (b), the Holder both (i) has an Insured Claim or a claim that is covered by a performance bond, and (ii) the nonpayment of such claim by the Debtors would entitle an insurer or surety under an Insurance Policy and Agreement to draw under one or more Prepetition Letters of Credit.
- 93. L/C Lender Claim means the Claim held by a Prepetition L/C Lender pursuant to the Prepetition Letters of Credit, which Claim has not been liquidated prior to the Petition Date and which shall be estimated and Allowed solely for purposes of voting under the Plan at the face amount of a Prepetition L/C Lender's Pro Rata share of the outstanding Prepetition Letters of Credit as of the Petition

Date and shall be Allowed for purposes of distributions under the Plan in the Liquidated L/C Amount to the extent a Prepetition Letter of Credit is drawn after the Petition Date.

- 94. L/C Lender Claim Equity Conversion Ratio means the ratio of (i) the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance, divided by (ii) the sum of the aggregate amount of all Allowed Funded Lender Claims and the aggregate amount of all Allowed L/C Lender Claims liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date.
- 95. L/C Lender Equity Reserve means the number of shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests that may be issuable from time to time after the Effective Date under Section 4.3.2.2 of the Plan to Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims.
- 96. L/C Lender's Share of Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount means, as to any Liquidated L/C Amount of an Allowed L/C Lender Claim on the Effective Date, that amount equal to the Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount multiplied by that ratio (expressed as a percentage) that such Liquidated L/C Amount on the Effective Date bears to the aggregate of (i) all Liquidated L/C Amounts of Allowed L/C Lender Claims on the Effective Date and (ii) all Allowed Funded Lender Claims on the Effective Date.
- 97. L/C Lender Fee means that certain standby letter of credit fee equal to 2.5% per annum, which fee shall accrue quarterly in arrears and shall, at Reorganized BMHC's option, be paid in kind for the first eight quarters after the Effective Date and, thereafter, be paid quarterly in arrears in Cash.
 - 98. Lien has the meaning set forth in section 101(37) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 99. Life Insurance Policies means those life insurance policies purchased by the Debtors on the lives of the participants in the Supplemental Employee Retirement Programs.
- Prepetition Letter of Credit whether by WFB, as the letter of credit issuer under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, or by the Prepetition Revolving Lenders in respect of their several reimbursement obligations to WFB arising under the Prepetition Credit Agreement; if and to the extent that WFB is reimbursed by a Prepetition Revolving Lender in respect of its several reimbursement obligation to WFB arising under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, the Liquidated L/C Amount paid shall be deemed to have been paid by such Prepetition Revolving Lender and not by WFB.
- 101. Liquidation Analysis means the liquidation analysis attached as $\underline{\textbf{Exhibit E}}$ to the Disclosure Statement.
- equity incentive plan that shall be implemented by the New Board of Reorganized BMHC as soon after the Effective Date as reasonably practicable, and shall consist of restricted stock units, stock options, and/or stock appreciation rights in an amount up to 10% of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, measured on a fully-diluted basis (including after giving effect to the L/C Lender Equity Reserve), some portion of which shall be allocated to management by the New Board of Reorganized BMHC within 90 days of the Effective Date.
- 103. Maximum Amount means, with respect to any Disputed Claim: (i) the amount agreed to by the Disbursing Agent and the Holder of such Claim; (ii) the amount, if any, estimated or determined by the Bankruptcy Court in accordance with section 502(c) of the Bankruptcy Code; or (iii) absent any

068301.1001

such agreement, estimation, or determination, the liquidated amount set forth in the proof of claim Filed by the Holder of such Claim or, if no amount is so set forth, the amount estimated by the Disbursing Agent.

- 104. Maximum L/C Lenders Term Note Cap means that amount equal to (i) the Peak Prepetition Letters of Credit Exposure Prior to the Confirmation Date multiplied by that ratio (expressed as a percentage) that \$135,000,000 bears to the aggregate Allowed Funded Lender Claims, less (ii) the aggregate L/C Lender's Share of Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount as to all Allowed L/C Lender Claims.
- 105. Maximum Funded Lenders Term Note Cap means that amount equal to \$135,000,000 less the aggregate Funded Lender's Share of Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount as to all Allowed Funded Lender Claims.
 - 106. New Boards means the initial boards of directors of the Reorganized Debtors.
- 107. New Bylaws means the form of the bylaws of each of Reorganized BMHC and the other Reorganized Debtors, which form shall be included in the Plan Supplement.
- 108. New Certificate of Incorporation means the form of the certificates of incorporation or other formation document of each of Reorganized BMHC and the other Reorganized Debtors, which form shall be included in the Plan Supplement.
- 109. Other Priority Claim means any Claim, other than an Administrative Claim or a Priority Tax Claim, entitled to priority in right of payment under section 507(a) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 110. Other Secured Claim means any Secured Claim that is not a Funded Lender Claim or an L/C Lender Claim.
- 111. Peak Prepetition Letters of Credit Exposure Prior to the Confirmation Date means the highest aggregate exposure under the Prepetition Letters of Credit occurring prior to the Confirmation Date.
- 112. Person means any person, including without limitation, any individual, entity, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, joint venture, association, joint stock company, estate, trust, unincorporated association or organization, official committee, ad hoc committee or group, governmental agency or political subdivision thereof, the U.S. Trustee, and any successors or assigns of any of the foregoing.
- 113. Petition Date means June 16, 2009, the date on which the Chapter 11 Cases were commenced with the filing of voluntary petitions for relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 114. Plan means the Joint Plan of Reorganization for the Debtors Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code Amended December 14, 2009 (With Technical Modifications), and all exhibits attached thereto or referenced therein including, without limitation, the Plan Supplement, as the same may be amended, modified, or supplemented from time to time.
- 115. Plan Documents means the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the Disclosure Statement, and all documents, attachments, and exhibits attached to the Plan or the Disclosure Statement that aid in effectuating the Plan, as the same may be amended, modified, or supplemented, in accordance with their terms.

- 116. Plan Supplement means the supplement to the Plan in form and substance satisfactory to the Debtors to be filed with the Bankruptcy Court not later than 10 days prior to the Voting Deadline (as it may be subsequently amended), which shall contain, among other things, forms of final documents described in the Plan.
- 117. Postpetition Period means the period of time following the Petition Date through the Confirmation Date.
- 118. Prepetition Credit Agreement means that certain Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2006 (as amended from time to time) by and among BMHC, as borrower, the Subsidiary Debtors, as guarantors, WFB, as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto.
- 119. Prepetition L/C Lenders means those Persons responsible to make payments in respect of draws on the Prepetition Letters of Credit.
- 120. Prepetition Lenders means the Prepetition Revolving Lenders, the Prepetition Term Loan Lenders, and the Prepetition L/C Lenders.
- 121. Prepetition Letters of Credit means those certain letters of credit in favor of certain of the Debtors' creditors issued by WFB under the terms of the Prepetition Credit Agreement.
- 122. Prepetition Revolving Credit Facility means that \$200,000,000 revolving credit facility under the Prepetition Credit Agreement maturing November 2011.
- 123. Prepetition Revolving Lenders means those Persons who have committed to fund the Prepetition Revolving Credit Facility.
- 124. Prepetition Term Loan means that \$340,000,000 term loan facility under the Prepetition Credit Agreement maturing November 2011.
- 125. Prepetition Term Loan Lenders means those Persons who hold the Prepetition Term Loan.
- 126. Priority Tax Claim means a Claim of a kind specified in section 507(a)(8) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 127. *Pro Rata* means, with reference to any Distribution on account of any Allowed Claim or Allowed Interest in a Class, a Distribution equal in amount to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of such claim bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed Claims in the same Class.
- 128. Professional Compensation Claim means all Administrative Expense Claims for compensation, indemnification, or reimbursement of expenses incurred by Professionals through the Confirmation Date pursuant to section 327, 328, 330, 331, 363, or 503(b) of the Bankruptcy Code in connection with the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 129. *Professionals* means those Persons (a) employed pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court in accordance with sections 327, 328, 363, or 1103 of the Bankruptcy Code and to be compensated for services pursuant to sections 327, 328, 329, 330, 331, and 363 of the Bankruptcy Code, for which compensation and reimbursement has been allowed by the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to

section 503(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code and/or (b) for which compensation and reimbursement has been allowed by the Bankruptcy Court or is sought pursuant to section 503(b)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code.

- 130. *Proof of Claim* means any proof of claim filed with the Bankruptcy Court or the Balloting and Claims Agent with respect to a Debtor pursuant to section 501 of the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rules 3001 or 3002.
 - 131. Record Date means the date of entry of the Disclosure Statement Approval Order.
- 132. Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List means the list (as may be amended or modified from time to time prior to the Effective Date), as determined by the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases (including any amendments or modifications thereto) that will be rejected by the Debtors pursuant to Article VI of this Plan.
- 133. Released Parties means (i) each of the Debtors' respective officers, directors, Professionals, agents, and employees, (ii) WFB, in its capacity as Agent under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, and its officers, directors, employees, professionals, and agents, and (iii) the Prepetition Lenders and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, professionals, and agents.
- 134. Reorganized means, when used with reference to the Debtor, such Debtor on and after the Effective Date.
- 135. Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests means up to 200 million shares of the common voting stock, par value of \$.01 per share, of Reorganized BMHC authorized under the New Certificate of Incorporation of Reorganized BMHC, a portion of which shall initially be issued to Holders of Allowed Claims in Classes 2 and 3 in accordance with the provisions of the Plan, subject to dilution by (i) future issuances to Holders of Allowed Claims in Class 3 in accordance with the provisions of the Plan, and (ii) future issuances in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan.
- shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance means the number of shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, rounded to the nearest whole number, issued (or deemed issued under the terms of the Plan) on the Effective Date, 100% of which will be issued (or deemed issued under the terms of the Plan) to (i) the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims and (ii) the Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date (if any). The number of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued in connection with the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance shall reserve for the number of shares issuable in respect of the L/C Lender Equity Reserve and the Long Term Incentive Plan.
- 137. Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Funded Lender Issuance means the number of shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, rounded to the nearest whole number, issued (or deemed issued under the terms of the Plan) on the Effective Date to the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims equal to (i) the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance, multiplied by (ii) the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that (a) the aggregate amount of all Allowed Funded Lender Claims bears to (b) the sum of the aggregate amount of all Allowed Funded Lender Claims and the aggregate amount of all Allowed L/C Lender Claims liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date.
- 138. Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest L/C Lender Issuance means the number of shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, rounded to the nearest whole number, issued (or deemed issued under the terms of the Plan) on the Effective Date to the Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims equal to (i) the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance, multiplied by (ii) the ratio

(expressed as a percentage) that (a) the aggregate amount of all Allowed L/C Lender Claims liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date bears to (b) the sum of the aggregate amount of all Allowed Funded Lender Claims and the aggregate amount of all Allowed L/C Lender Claims liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date.

- 139. Reorganized Debtors Operating Cash Minimum shall mean the sum of \$6,000,0000.
- 140. Reorganized Subsidiary Equity Interests means 100% of the shares of the common voting stock or limited liability company interests, as applicable, of each of the respective Reorganized Subsidiary Debtors which may be issued to Holders of Allowed Claims in Classes 2(b)-2(l) in accordance with section 5.5.2 of the Plan.
- 141. Restructuring Transactions means those mergers, amalgamations, consolidations, arrangements, continuances, restructurings, transfers, conversions, dispositions, liquidations, dissolutions, or other corporate transactions that the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors determine to be necessary or appropriate to effect a restructuring of a Debtor's business or a restructuring of the overall corporate structure of the Reorganized Debtors, including those described in the Restructuring Transactions Memorandum.
- 142. Restructuring Transactions Memorandum means the memorandum describing the Restructuring Transactions, if any, which will be included in the Plan Supplement.
- 143. Revolving Credit Agreement means the revolving credit agreement, and all documents related thereto, including the Intercreditor Agreement, to be entered into by the Reorganized Debtors and the Exit Revolver Lenders, the provisions of which shall give effect to the Exit Revolver. The Revolving Credit Agreement shall be substantially in the form filed in the Plan Supplement.
- 144. Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the DIP Facility.
- 145. Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount means the amount of Cash in the Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account, less (i) amounts required to repay the DIP Facility in full and (ii) amounts required to fund the Reorganized Debtors Operating Cash Minimum.
- 146. Schedules means the schedules, statements, and lists filed by the Debtors with the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 1007, as may be amended or supplemented from time to time.
- 147. Section 510(b) Claims means any Claim against the Debtors arising from rescission of a purchase or sale of a security of the Debtors or an Affiliate of the Debtors, for damages arising from the purchase or sale of such a security, or for reimbursement or contribution allowed under section 502 of the Bankruptcy Code on account of such a Claim.
- 148. Secured means when referring to a Claim: (i) secured by a Lien on property in which an Estate has an interest, which Lien is valid, perfected, and enforceable pursuant to applicable law or by reason of a Bankruptcy Court order, or that is subject to setoff pursuant to section 553 of the Bankruptcy Code, to the extent of the value of the creditor's interest in the Estate's interest in such property or to the extent of the amount subject to setoff, as applicable, as determined pursuant to section 506(a) of the Bankruptcy Code or (ii) Allowed as such pursuant to the Plan.

068301.1001

- 149. Securities Act means the Securities Act of 1933, 15 U.S.C. §§ 77a-77m, as in effect on the Petition Date, together with all amendments and modifications thereto subsequently made applicable to the Chapter 11 Cases.
 - 150. SelectBuild Arizona means SelectBuild Arizona, LLC, a Debtor.
- 151. SelectBuild Arizona Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 152. SelectBuild Construction means SelectBuild Construction, Inc., a Debtor.
- 153. SelectBuild Construction Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Construction bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 154. SelectBuild Illinois means SelectBuild Illinois, LLC, a Debtor.
- 155. SelectBuild Illinois Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 156. SelectBuild Nevada means SelectBuild Nevada, Inc., a Debtor.
- 157. SelectBuild Nevada Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
- 158. SelectBuild Northern California means SelectBuild Northern California, Inc., a Debtor.
- 159. SelectBuild Northern California Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
- 160. SelectBuild Southern California means SelectBuild Southern California, Inc., a Debtor.
- 161. SelectBuild Southern California Rejection Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims..
- 162. Shareholder Agreement means that certain agreement, if any, by and among Reorganized BMHC and certain holders of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, to be entered into on the Effective Date, substantially in the form to be included in the Plan Supplement.

- against all Debtors if the aggregate Allowed Amount of such Claims is less than or equal to \$5,000 and (ii) all General Unsecured Claims of a single creditor against all Debtors if the aggregate Allowed Amount of such Claims is greater than \$5,000 and the Holder of such Claims elects to reduce the aggregate Allowed Amount of its General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to \$5,000 or less by making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election on the Ballot within the time fixed by the Bankruptcy Court.
- 164. Small Unsecured Claims Class Election means an election by a Holder of General Unsecured Claims against the Debtors on its Ballot to reduce the aggregate Amount of such Claims against all Debtors to \$5,000 or less and have such Claim treated as a Small Unsecured Claim.
- 165. Subsidiary Debtors means BMC West, SelectBuild Construction, SelectBuild Northern California, Illinois Framing, & Construction, TWF Construction, H.N.R. Framing Systems, SelectBuild Southern California, SelectBuild Nevada, SelectBuild Arizona, and SelectBuild Illinois.
 - 166. Supplemental Employee Retirement Programs means those certain non-qualified employee retirement programs implemented by the Debtors prior to the Petition Date.
 - 167. Term Loan Credit Agreement means the term loan credit agreement, and all documents related thereto, including the Intercreditor Agreement, to be entered into, or deemed to be entered into, by the Reorganized Debtors and the Prepetition Lenders. The Term Loan Credit Agreement shall be substantially in the form contained in the Plan Supplement.
 - $168. \ \textit{Term Notes}$ means those certain term notes issued pursuant to the Term Loan Credit Agreement.
 - 169. TWF Construction means TWF Construction, Inc., a Debtor.
 - 170. TWF Construction Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against TWF Construction bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 171. Unexpired Lease means a lease to which one or more of the Debtors is a party that is subject to assumption or rejection under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.
 - 172. Unimpaired means, with respect to a Class of Claims or Interests, a Class of Claims or Interests that is unimpaired within the meaning of section 1124 of the Bankruptcy Code.
 - 173. Unsecured Cash Distribution Account means that certain segregated account maintained at WFB and designated as the "BMHC Unsecured Creditors' Cash Distribution Account" from which distributions of available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund will be made, as provided in the Plan, to the Holders of Allowed General Unsecured Claims by the Reorganized Debtors, as Disbursing Agent.
 - 174. Unsecured Cash Fund means \$5,500,000.
 - 175. Unsecured Claim means any Claim that is neither Secured nor entitled to priority under the Bankruptcy Code or any order of the Bankruptcy Court, including any Claim arising from the rejection of an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.

- 176. U.S. Trustee means the United States Trustee for the District of Delaware.
- 177. U.S. Trustee Fees means all fees and charges assessed against the Estates under section 1930 of title 28 of the United States Code, and interest, if any, for delinquent quarterly fees pursuant to section 3717 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- 178. Voting Deadline means the deadline set by the Bankruptcy Court for submitting Ballots.
 - 179. WFB means Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

Exhibit 2

[Redline of Plan of Reorganization]

068301.1001

IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

IN RE:) Chapter 11
BUILDING MATERIALS HOLDING) Case No. 09-12074 (KJC)
CORPORATION, et aL, ¹	Jointly Administered
Debtors.) }
	ý

JOINT PLAN OF REORGANIZATION FOR THE DEBTORS UNDER CHAPTER 11 OF THE BANKRUPTCY CODE AMENDED OCTOBER 22 DECEMBER 14, 2009 (WITH TECHNICAL MODIFICATIONS)

GIBSON, DUNN & CRUTCHER LLP

Michael A. Rosenthal (admitted pro hac vice)
Matthew K. Kelsey (admitted pro hac vice)
Aaron G. York (admitted pro hac vice)
200 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10166-0193 Telephone: 212.351.4000 Facsimile: 212.351.4035

Email: mrosenthal@gibsondunn.com

mkelsey@gibsondunn.com ayork@gibsondunn.com

ATTORNEYS FOR THE DEBTORS AND DEBTORS IN POSSESSION

YOUNG CONAWAY STARGATT & TAYLOR, LLP

Sean M. Beach (No. 4070)
Donald J. Bowman, Jr. (No. 4383)
Robert F. Poppiti, Jr. (No. 5052)
1000 West Street, 17th Floor
Wilmington, Delaware 19801
Telephone: 302.571.6600
Facsimile: 302.571.1253

Email: sbeach@ycst.com dbowman@ycst.com rpoppiti@ycst.com

Dated: Wilmington, Delaware
October 22, December 14, 2009

The Debtors, along with the last four digits of each Debtor's tax identification number, are as follows: Building Materials Holding Corporation (4269), BMC West Corporation (0454), SelectBuild Construction, Inc. (1340), SelectBuild Northern California, Inc. (7579), Illinois Framing, Inc. (4451), C Construction, Inc. (8206), TWF Construction, Inc. (3334), H.N.R. Framing Systems, Inc. (4329), SelectBuild Southern California, Inc. (9378), SelectBuild Nevada, Inc. (8912), SelectBuild Arizona, LLC (0036), and SelectBuild Illinois, LLC (0792). The mailing address for the Debtors is 720 Park Boulevard, Suite 200, Boise, Idaho 83712.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Ľ	DEFINED TERMS, RULES OF INTERPRETATION, AND COMPUTATION OF TIME.			
	1,1.	Definitions.	5	
	1.2.	Rules of Construction	5	
	1.3.	Computation of Time	5	
П.	TREAT	IMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE CLAIMS, PRIORITY TAX MS AND PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION CLAIMS AGAINST THE ORS	6	
	2.1.	Administrative Expense Claims	6	
	2.2.	Professional Compensation Claims.	6	
	2.3.	Priority Tax Claims.	6	
	2.4.	DIP Facility.	7	
	2.5.	U.S. Trustee Fees.	7	
ш.	CLAS	SIFICATION OF CLAIMS AGAINST AND INTERESTS IN DEBTORS	7	
	3.1.	Classification of Claims.	7	
	3.2.	Classes	7	
	3.3.	Effect of Non-Voting; Modifications.	<u>1415</u>	
IV.	TREA RESP	TREATMENT OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS AND DESIGNATION WITH RESPECT TO IMPAIRMENT 1		
	4.1.	Treatment of Classes 1(a)-(l): Other Priority Claims	15	
	4.2.	Treatment of Classes 2(a)-(l): Funded Lender Claims	15	
	4.3.	Treatment of Classes 3(a)-(l): L/C Lender Claims	<u>1516</u>	
	4.4.	Treatment of Classes 4(a)-(l) — Other Secured Claims	17	
	4.5.	Treatment of Classes 5(a)-(l): L/C General Unsecured Claims.	17	
	4.6.	Treatment of Classes 6(a)-(l): General Unsecured Claims	18	
	4.7.	Treatment of Classes 7(a)-(l): Intercompany Claims.	27	
	4.8.	Treatment of Classes 8(a)-(l) - Small Unsecured Claims.	22	
	4.9.	Treatment of Classes 9(a)-(l): Interests	22	
	4.10.	and a distant state of the stat	23	
V.	PROV CLAS	VISIONS REGARDING VOTING, EFFECT OF REJECTION BY IMPAIRED SSES, AND CONSEQUENCES OF NON-CONFIRMABILITY	2	
	5.1.	Voting Rights.	2	
	5 2	Accentance Requirements	2	

	5.3.	Cramdown	23
	5.4.	Tabulation of the Votes.	24
	5.5.	Non-Confirmability.	24
VI.		UTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES	
V 1.	6.1.	Assumption and Rejection of Contracts and Unexpired Leases	24
	6.2.	Vacation/Personal Time Off Programs and Agreements.	25
	6.3.	Claims Based on Rejection of Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases.	25
	6.4.	Cure of Defaults	25
	6.5.	Contracts and Leases Entered into after the Petition Date.	26
	6.6.	Modifications, Amendments, Supplements, Restatements, or Other Agreements	26
	6.7.	Reservation of Rights.	26
VΠ.	MEA	NS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PLAN	26
	7.1.	General Settlement of Claims.	26
	7.2.	Sources of Consideration for Plan Distributions	20
	7.4.	Continued Corporate Existence.	ە∠
	7.5.	Revesting of Assets.	
	7.6.	Merger.	28
	7.7.	Cancellation of Securities and Agreements.	28 29
	7.8.	Reorganized BMHC.	29
	7.9.	Post Effective Date Management.	29
	7.10.	Directors and Officers of the Reorganized Debtors.	29
	7.11.	New Certificates of Incorporation and New Bylaws of the Reorganized Debtors	29
	7.12.	New Employment, Retirement, Indemnification, and Other Related Agreements	29 30
	7.13.		30
	7,14.	Corporate Action.	30
	7.15.	Section 1146 Exemption.	30
	7.16.	Preservation of Causes of Action.	<u>30</u> 31
	7.1 7 .	Insurance Policies and Agreements.	31
	7.18.	Nonoccurrence of Effective Date	32
	7 .19 .		32
VIII.	METHOD OF DISTRIBUTIONS UNDER THE PLAN AND CLAIMS		
		ONCILIATION	
	8.1.	Disbursing Agent	
	8.2.	Distribution Record Date.	

	8.3. Cash Payments.	32
	8.4. Delivery of Distributions.	32
	8.5. Minimum Cash Distributions.	32
	8.6. Withholding Taxes.	32
	8.7. Unclaimed Property.	33
	8.7. Oncidined Troperty	33
	8.10. Objections to Claims.	33
	8.11. Compromises and Settlements.	23 34
	8.12. Reservation of Debtors' Rights	3334
	8.13. No Distributions Pending Allowance.	34
		34
		34
IX.	EFFECT OF CONFIRMATION OF PLAN	35
	9.1. Discharge.	35
	9.2. Releases.	
	9.3. No Successor Liability	
	9.4. Release of Liens.	
	9.5. Term of Injunctions	20
	9.6. Binding Effect.	30
	9.7. Dissolution of the Committee.	
	9.8. Post-Confirmation Date Retention of Professionals	
X.	EFFECTIVENESS OF THE PLAN	39
A	10.1. Conditions Precedent.	39
	10.2. Effect of Failure of Conditions	40
	RETENTION OF JURISDICTION	
XI.	11.1. Bankruptcy Court.	40
XII_{-}	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	4.4
	12.1. Plan Supplement.	42
	12.2. Exemption for Registration Requirements.	42
	12.3. Statutory Fees	42
	12.4. Third Party Agreements.	42
	12.5. Amendment or Modification of Plan.	474
	12.6. Severability	43

12.7.	Revocation or Withdrawal of Plan.	43
12.8.	Rules Governing Conflicts Between Documents.	43
12.9.	Governing Law.	43
12.10	Notices	4344
12.11	Interest and Attorneys' Fees.	44
10.10	Binding Effect.	44
12.12.	No Admissions.	44
	Freihits	
17 14	HYBIDIE	

INTRODUCTION

Building Materials Holding Corporation, BMC West Corporation, SelectBuild Construction, Inc., SelectBuild Northern California, Inc., Illinois Framing, Inc., C Construction, Inc., TWF Construction, Inc., H.N.R. Framing Systems, Inc., SelectBuild Southern California, Inc., SelectBuild Nevada, Inc., SelectBuild Arizona, LLC, and SelectBuild Illinois, LLC, as debtors and debtors in possession (collectively, the "Debtors"), respectfully propose the following Joint Plan of Reorganization pursuant to section 1121(a) of the Bankruptcy Code for the resolution of outstanding Claims against and Interests in each of the Debtors (the "Plan").

Reference is made to the Disclosure Statement with respect to the Plan, distributed contemporaneously herewith, for a discussion of the Debtors' history, businesses, properties, operations, risk factors, a summary and analysis of the Plan, and certain related matters including the securities to be issued under the Plan. Subject to certain restrictions and requirements set forth in section 1127 of the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rule 3019, the Debtors respectfully reserve the right to alter, amend, modify, revoke, or withdraw the Plan prior to consummation of the Plan. The Debtors are the proponents of the Plan within the meaning of section 1129 of the Bankruptcy Code.

NO SOLICITATION MATERIALS, OTHER THAN THE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND RELATED MATERIALS TRANSMITTED THEREWITH AND APPROVED BY THE BANKRUPTCY COURT, HAVE BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE BANKRUPTCY COURT FOR USE IN SOLICITING ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF THE PLAN.

I. DEFINED TERMS, RULES OF INTERPRETATION, AND COMPUTATION OF TIME

- 1.1. Definitions. As used in the Plan, capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings specified in Appendix A. Unless the context otherwise requires, any capitalized term used and not defined in the Plan, but that is defined in the Bankruptcy Code, shall have the meaning assigned to that term in the Bankruptcy Code. Unless otherwise specified, all section, article, schedule, or exhibit references in the Plan are to the respective section in, article of, or schedule or exhibit to, the Plan, as the same may be amended, waived, or modified from time to time.
- 1.2. Rules of Construction. For purposes of the Plan, unless otherwise provided herein: (i) any reference in the Plan to a contract, instrument, release, indenture, or other agreement, whether existing or contemplated, or document being in a particular form or on particular terms and conditions means that such document shall be substantially in such form or substantially on such terms and conditions, (ii) unless otherwise specified, all references in the Plan to the Introduction, Articles, and Sections are references to the Introduction, Articles, and Sections of or to the Plan, (iii) captions and headings to Articles and Sections are intended for convenience of reference only and are not intended to be part of or to affect interpretation of the Plan, (iv) the words "herein," "hereof," "hereunder," "hereto," and other words of similar import refer to the Plan in its entirety rather than to a particular portion of the Plan, (v) whenever it appears appropriate from the context, each pronoun stated in the masculine, feminine, or neuter includes

- the masculine, feminine, and neuter, and (vi) the rules of construction set forth in section 102 of the Bankruptcy Code and in the Bankruptcy Rules shall apply.
- 1.3. Computation of Time. In computing time prescribed or allowed by the Plan, unless otherwise expressly provided, Bankruptcy Rule 9006(a) shall apply.

П.

TREATMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE CLAIMS, PRIORITY TAX CLAIMS AND PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION CLAIMS AGAINST THE DEBTORS

- Administrative Expense Claims. On the later of (i) the Effective Date or (ii) if 2.1. the Administrative Expense Claim is not Allowed as of the Effective Date, 30 days after the date on which an Administrative Expense Claim becomes Allowed, the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors shall either (x) pay to each Holder of an Allowed Administrative Expense Claim, in Cash, the full amount of such Allowed Administrative Expense Claim, or (y) satisfy and discharge such Administrative Expense Claim in accordance with such other terms that the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors and such Holder shall have agreed upon; provided, however, that such agreed-upon treatment shall not be more favorable than the treatment provided in clause (x). Other than with respect to Professional Compensation Claims and Cure Claims, notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary (including, without limitation, any other provision that purports to be preemptory or supervening or grants an injunction or release), (a) if an Administrative Expense Claim arises (i) based on liabilities incurred in, or to be paid in, the ordinary course of business during the Postpetition Period or (ii) pursuant to an Executory Contract (including, but not limited to, the Debtors' Insurance Policies and Agreements that are treated as Executory Contracts under the Plan), or (iii) based on an Administrative Expense described in Bankruptcy Code § 503(b)(1)(B) or (C) the Holder of such Administrative Expense Claim shall be paid in Cash by the applicable Debtor (or after the Effective Date, by the applicable Reorganized Debtor) pursuant to the terms and conditions of the particular transaction and/or agreements giving rise to such Administrative Expense Claim without the need or requirement for the Holder of such Administrative Expense Claim to file a motion, application, claim or request for allowance or payment of an Administrative Expense Claim with the Bankruptcy Court and (b) such Administrative Expense Claims shall be Allowed Claims; provided, however, that nothing limits the ability of any applicable Debtor or Reorganized Debtor to dispute (or the Holder of such Administrative Expense Claim to assert and/or defend) the validity or amount of any such Administrative Expense Claim and/or to bring an action in the appropriate forum.
 - 2.2. Professional Compensation Claims. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan dealing with Administrative Expense Claims, any Person asserting a Professional Compensation Claim shall, no later than thirty (30) days after the Confirmation Date, file a final application for allowance of compensation for services rendered and reimbursement of expenses incurred through the Confirmation Date. To the extent that such an award is granted by the Bankruptcy Court, the requesting Person shall receive: (i) payment of Cash in an amount equal to the amount Allowed by the Bankruptcy Court less all interim compensation paid to such Professional during the Chapter 11 Cases, such

payment to be made within the later of (a) the Effective Date or (b) three (3) business days after the Order granting such Person's final fee application becomes a Final Order; (ii) payment on such other terms as may be mutually agreed upon by the Holder of the Professional Compensation Claim and BMHC or Reorganized BMHC, as applicable (but in no event shall the payment exceed the amount Allowed by the Bankruptcy Court); or (iii) payment in accordance with the terms of any applicable administrative procedures orders entered by the Bankruptcy Court, including the Interim Compensation Order, dated July 16, 2009. All Professional Compensation Claims for services rendered after the Confirmation Date shall be paid by Reorganized BMHC (or the Debtors prior to the Effective Date) upon receipt of an invoice therefor, or on such other terms as Reorganized BMHC (or the Debtors prior to the Effective Date) and the Professional may agree, without the requirement of any order of the Bankruptcy Court.

- Priority Tax Claims. Except to the extent that a Holder of an Allowed Priority 2.3. Tax Claim agrees to a less favorable treatment, in full and final satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of and in exchange for each Allowed Priority Tax Claim, each Holder of such Allowed Priority Tax Claim shall be treated in accordance with the terms set forth in section 1129(a)(9)(C) of the Bankruptcy Code, with the Petition Date as the commencement date of the five year period. and any interest required to be paid on Allowed Priority Tax Claims will be paid. in accordance with section 511 of the Bankruptcy Code. If the Reorganized Debtors substantially default on the payment of a tax due to the Internal Revenue Service under the Plan, the entire tax debt owed to the Internal Revenue Service shall become due and payable immediately, and the Internal Revenue Service may collect these unpaid tax liabilities through the administrative collection provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. If the Reorganized Debtors. substantially default on the payment of a tax due to a state or local taxing authority under the Plan, including the California Franchise Tax Board, the entire tax debt owed to such taxing authority shall become due and payable immediately, and the taxing authority may collect these unpaid tax liabilities in accordance with applicable state law remedies.
- 2.4. DIP Facility. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan dealing with Administrative Expense Claims, Administrative Expense Claims arising under the DIP Facility shall be Allowed Administrative Expense Claims on the Effective Date and shall be paid in full in Cash on the Effective Date, and all excess Cash in the Cash Collateral Account shall remain with Reorganized BMHC.
- 2.5. U.S. Trustee Fees. U.S. Trustee Fees incurred by the U.S. Trustee prior to the Effective Date shall be paid on the DistributionEffective Date in accordance with the applicable schedule for payment of such fees. Until each of the Chapter 11 Cases is closed by entry of a final decree of the Bankruptcy Court, the Reorganized Debtors shall pay additional U.S. Trustee Fees incurred in accordance with the applicable schedule for the payment of such fees.

Щ.

CLASSIFICATION OF CLAIMS AGAINST AND INTERESTS IN DEBTORS3.1.

Classification of Claims.

Pursuant to section 1122 of the Bankruptcy Code, set forth below is a designation of Classes of Claims against and Interests in the Debtors. A Claim or Interest is placed in a particular Class for the purposes of voting on the Plan and receiving Distributions pursuant to the Plan only to the extent that such Claim or Interest is an Allowed Claim or Allowed Interest in that Class and such Claim or Interest has not been paid, released, withdrawn, or otherwise settled prior to the Effective Date. In accordance with section 1123(a)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, Administrative Expense Claims and Priority Tax Claims of the kinds specified in sections 507(a)(2) and 507(a)(8), respectively, of the Bankruptcy Code have not been classified and their treatment is set forth in Article II.

The Plan constitutes a separate chapter 11 subplan for each of the Debtors. Pursuant to section 1122 of the Bankruptcy Code, set forth below is a designation of Classes of Claims against and Interests in the Debtors.

3.2. Classes. The Claims against and Interests in the Debtors are classified as follows:

3.2.1. Classes 1(a)-(l): Other Priority Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Yoting Rights
Class 1(a)	Other Priority Claims against BMHC	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(b)	Other Priority Claims against BMC West	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(c)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(d)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(e)	Other Priority Claims against Illinois Framing	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(f)	Other Priority Claims against C Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(g)	Other Priority Claims against TWF Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(h)	Other Priority Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(i)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(j)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(k)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 1(l)	Other Priority Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

3.2.2. Classes 2(a)-(l): Funded Lender Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 2(a)	Funded Lender Claims against BMHC	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(b)	Funded Lender Claims against BMC West	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(c)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(d)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(e)	Funded Lender Claims against Illinois Framing	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(f)	Funded Lender Claims against C Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(g)	Funded Lender Claims against TWF Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(h)	Funded Lender Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(i)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(j)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(k)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 2(l)	Funded Lender Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Impaired	Entitled to vote

3.2.3. Classes 3(a)-(l): L/C Lender Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 3(a)	L/C Lender Claims against BMHC	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(b)	L/C Lender Claims against BMC West	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(c)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(d)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(e)	L/C Lender Claims against Illinois Framing	Impaired	Entitled to vote

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 3(f)	L/C Lender Claims against C Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(g)	L/C Lender Claims against TWF Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(h)	L/C Lender Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(i)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(j)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(k)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 3(I)	L/C Lender Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Impaired	Entitled to vote

3.2.4. Classes 4(a)-(l): Other Secured Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 4(a)	Other Secured Claims against BMHC	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(b)	Other Secured Claims against BMC West	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(c)	Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(d)	Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(e)	Other Secured Claims against Illinois Framing	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(f)	Other Secured Claims against C Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(g)	Other Secured Claims against TWF Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(h)	Other Secured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(i)	Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(j)	Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 4(k)	Other Secured Claims against	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Philadella Philadella Commission	SelectBuild Arizona		(Deemed to accept)
Class 4(1)	Other Secured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

3.2.5. Classes 5(a)-(l): L/C General Unsecured Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 5(a)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against BMHC	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(b)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against BMC West	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(c)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(d)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(e)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against Illinois Framing	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(f)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against C Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(g)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against TWF Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(h)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(i)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(j)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(k)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 5(1)	L/C General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

3.2.6. Classes 6(a)-(l): General Unsecured Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 6(a)	General Unsecured Clatins against BMHC	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(b)	General Unsecured against BMC	Impaired	Entitled to vote

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
	West		
Class 6(c)	General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(d)	General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	<u>Imp</u> aired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(e)	General Unsecured Claims against Illinois Framing	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(f)	General Unsecured Claims against C Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(g)	General Unsecured Claims against TWF Construction	. Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(h)	General Unsecured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(i)	General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(j)	General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(k)	General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 6(l)	General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Impaired	Entitled to vote

3.2.7. Classes 7(a)-(l): Intercompany Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 7(a)	Intercompany Claims against BMHC	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(b)	Intercompany Claims against BMC West	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(c)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(d)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(e)	Intercompany Claims against Illinois Framing	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(f)	Intercompany against C Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(g)	Intercompany Claims against TWF Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 7(h)	Intercompany Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(i)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(j)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(k)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 7(i)	Intercompany Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

3.2.8. Classes 8(a)-(l): Small Unsecured Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 8(a)	Small Unsecured Claims against BMHC	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(b)	Small Unsecured against BMC West	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(c)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(d)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(e)	Small Unsecured Claims against Illinois Framing	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(f)	Small Unsecured Claims against C Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(g)	Small Unsecured Claims against TWF Construction	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(h)	Small Unsecured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(i)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(j)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(k)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Impaired	Entitled to vote
Class 8(l)	Small Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Impaired	Entitled to vote

3.2.9. Classes 9(a)-(l): Interests.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 9(a)	Interests in BMHC	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 9(b)	Interests in BMC West	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(c)	Interests in SelectBuild Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(d)	Interests in SelectBuild Northern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(e)	Interests in Illinois Framing	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(f)	Interests in C Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(g)	Interests in TWF Construction	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(h)	Interests in H.N.R. Framing Systems	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(i)	Interests in SelectBuild Southern California	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(j)	Interests in SelectBuild Nevada	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(k)	Interests in SelectBuild Arizona	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)
Class 9(1)	Interests in SelectBuild Illinois	Unimpaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to accept)

3.2.10. Class 10(a)-(l): Section 510(b) Claims.

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
Class 10(a)	Section 510(b) Claims against BMHC	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(b)	Section 510(b) Claims against BMC West	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(c)	Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Construction	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(d)	Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Northern California	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(e)	Section 510(b) Claims against Illinois	Impaired	Not entitled to vote

Class	Claims and Interests	Status	Voting Rights
	Framing		(Deemed to reject)
Class 10(f)	Section 510(b) Claims against C Construction	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(g)	Section 510(b) Claims against TWF Construction	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(h)	Section 510(b) Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(i)	Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Southern California	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(j)	Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Nevada	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(k)	Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Arizona	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)
Class 10(1)	Section 510(b) Claims against SelectBuild Illinois	Impaired	Not entitled to vote (Deemed to reject)

3.3. Effect of Non-Voting; Modifications. At the Confirmation Hearing, the Debtors will seek a ruling that if no Holder of a Claim or Interest eligible to vote in a particular Class timely votes to accept or reject the Plan, the Plan will be deemed accepted by the Holders of such Claims or Interests in such Class for the purposes of section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code. Subject to section 1127 of the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rule 3019, the Debtors reserve the right to modify the Plan to the extent that Confirmation pursuant to section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code requires modification, provided such modifications are consistent with Section 12.5 of the Plan.

IV. TREATMENT OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS AND DESIGNATION WITH RESPECT TO IMPAIRMENT

4.1. Treatment of Classes 1(a)-(l): Other Priority Claims.

- 4.1.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 1(a)-(1) are Unimpaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed Other Priority Claim is conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
- 4.1.2. Treatment. On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed Other Priority Claim shall receive in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim: (i) payment of Cash in an amount equal to the unpaid portion of such Allowed Other Priority Claim, or (ii) such other treatment that the Debtors and such Holder shall have agreed upon in writing; provided, however, that such agreed-upon treatment shall not be more favorable than the treatment provided in clause (i).
- 4.2. Treatment of Classes 2(a)-(l): Funded Lender Claims.

- 4.2.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 2(a)-(I) are Impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed Funded Lender Claim as of the Record Date is entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
- 4.2.2. Treatment. Each Holder of an Allowed Funded Lender Claim shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive (i) the Funded Lender's Share of Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount as to such Claim, (ii) a Term Note issued by Reorganized BMHC under the Term Loan Credit Agreement in an original principal amount equal to the Maximum Funded Lenders Term Note Cap multiplied by such Holder's Pro Rata share of all Allowed Funded Lender Claims, and (iii) its Pro Rata share of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Funded Lender Issuance, subject to dilution by (a) any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued on the Effective Date and from time to time thereafter to the Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims and (b) any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued after the Effective Date in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan. All Liens with respect to the Prepetition Credit Agreement shall be released, discharged, and extinguished as of the Effective Date. To preserve the Debtors' corporate structure for the benefit of the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims and Allowed L/C Lender Claims, Intercompany Interests in each of BMC West. SelectBuild Construction. SelectBuild Northern California, Illinois Framing, C Construction, TWF Construction, H.N.R. Framing Systems, SelectBuild Southern California, SelectBuild Nevada. SelectBuild Arizona and SelectBuild Illinois shall be reinstated. In the event that section 5.5.2 is applicable, each Holder of an Allowed Funded Lender Claim shall be deemed to be distributed its Pro Rata Share of the Reorganized Subsidiary Equity Interests, and to have contributed such Reorganized Subsidiary Equity Interests to the applicable Holders of Equity Interests in Classes 9(b)-9(l) as provided in such section 5.5.2.

4.3. Treatment of Classes 3(a)-(l): L/C Lender Claims.

4.3.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 3(a)-(l) are Impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed L/C Lender Claim as of the Record Date is entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

4.3.2. Treatment. Allowed L/C Lender Claims shall be treated as follows:

4.3.2.1. From and after the Effective Date, obligations of the Prepetition L/C Lenders (whether WFB, as the letter of credit issuer under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, or the Prepetition Revolving Lenders in respect of their several reimbursement obligations to WFB arising under the Prepetition Credit Agreement) shall continue to be governed by the lender reimbursement provisions of the Prepetition Credit Agreement. Reorganized BMHC shall have no obligations whatsoever in respect of the letter of credit reimbursement obligations arising in respect of the Prepetition Letters of Credit, except (a) the Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims shall be entitled to the L/C Lender Fee and (b) as expressly set forth in the following Section 4.3.2.2. All Liens with respect to the Prepetition Credit Agreement shall be released, discharged, and extinguished as of the Effective Date.

- 4.3.2.2. To the extent any Allowed L/C Lender Claim is liquidated on or after the Petition Date, each Holder of an Allowed L/C Lender Claim shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for the Liquidated L/C Amount of such Claim, receive the following on the Effective Date and thereafter from time to time if, as and when Allowed L/C Lender Claims are liquidated:
 - (A) a Term Note issued by Reorganized BMHC under the Term Loan Credit Agreement in an original principal amount equal to the Maximum L/C Lenders Term Note Cap multiplied by the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that such Liquidated L/C Amount of such Claim bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed L/C Lender Claims; and
 - (B) with respect to any Allowed L/C Lender Claim liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date, its Pro Rata share of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest L/C Lender Issuance, subject to dilution by (a) the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued on the Effective Date to the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims, (b) any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued from time to time after the Effective Date to the Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims and (c) any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued after the Effective Date in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan; and
 - (C) with respect to any Allowed L/C Lender Claim liquidated after the Effective Date, an amount of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, rounded to the nearest whole number, equal to the Liquidated L/C Amount of such Claim multiplied by the L/C Lender Claim Equity Conversion Ratio, subject to dilution by any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued after the Effective Date in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan; and
 - (D) On the Effective Date only, the L/C Lender's Share of the Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount as to such Liquidated L/C Amount of such Claim on the Effective Date.
 - 4.3.2.3. If, and only to the extent, a Prepetition L/C Lender fails to reimburse in full WFB in respect of its reimbursement obligation to WFB arising under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, WFB shall be entitled to receive the distribution described in the preceding Section 4.3.2.2 which would otherwise be payable to such defaulting Prepetition L/C Lender.
 - 4.3.2.4. Prepetition Letters of Credit shall not be used by the Reorganized Debtors to collateralize obligations that do not exist as of the Effective Date; provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, Prepetition Letters of Credit shall continue to collateralize all obligations under Insurance Policies and Agreements and/or performance bonds and surety bonds (and any agreements, documents or instruments relating thereto) secured by such Prepetition Letters of Credit, whether such obligations exist as of the Effective Date or arise thereafter; and such Prepetition Letters of Credit and obligations shall survive the Effective Date unaffected and unaltered by the Plan. No issuer of Prepetition Letters of Credit shall have any obligation to renew a Prepetition Letter of Credit for a period beyond the Maturity Date under the Term Loan Credit Agreement (as such term is defined therein); provided that this sentence shall not impair or affect the rights of any beneficiary under any Prepetition Letter of Credit.

- 4.3.2.5. On or prior to the Maturity Date of the Term Loan Credit Agreement (as defined therein), unless waived by all of the Prepetition L/C Lenders in writing, any Prepetition Letters of Credit then outstanding shall be cancelled and, at the discretion of the Reorganized Debtors, replaced by the Reorganized Debtors. Any Allowed L/C Lender Claims or any portions thereof that are not liquidated on or prior to the securrence of the Maturity Date of the Term Loan Credit Agreement (as such term is defined in the Term Loan Credit Agreement), such Maturity Date shall be extinguished, and any: provided that the outstanding Prepetition Letters of Credit at that time shall behave been cancelled andor replaced by the Reorganized Debtors as and to the extent necessary in accordance with their business judgment the foregoing sentence.
- 4.4. Treatment of Classes 4(a)-(l) Other Secured Claims.
 - **4.4.1.** Impairment and Voting. Classes 4(a)-(1) are Unimpaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed Other Secured Claim is conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
 - 4.4.2. Treatment. Except to the extent that a Holder of an Other Secured Claim, including a secured tax claim, agrees to a less favorable treatment, in full satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of and in exchange for each Other Secured Claim, each Allowed Other Secured Claim shall be reinstated or otherwise rendered Unimpaired as of the Effective Date, and Liens related thereto, including property tax liens, shall remain in effect. Allowed Secured Tax Claims may be treated in accordance with the terms set forth in section 1129(a)(9)(D) of the Bankruptey Code, with the Effective Date as the commencement date of the five year period, and any interest required to be paid on Allowed secured tax claims will be paid in accordance with section 511 of the Bankruptey Code. If the Reorganized Debtors substantially default on the payment of a tax due to the Internal Revenue Service under the Plan, the entire tax debt owed to the Internal Revenue Service shall become due and payable immediately, and the Internal Revenue Service may collect these unpaid tax liabilities through the administrative collection provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. If the Reorganized Debtors substantially default on the payment of a tax due to a state or local taxing authority under the Plan, the entire tax debt owed to such taxing authority shall become due and payable immediately, and the taxing authority may collect these unpaid tax liabilities in accordance with applicable state law remedies.
- 4.5. Treatment of Classes 5(a)-(l): L/C General Unsecured Claims.
 - 4.5.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 5(a)-(1) are Unimpaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed L/C General Unsecured Claim is conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
 - 4.5.2. Treatment. Except to the extent that a Holder of an L/C General Unsecured Claim agrees to a less favorable treatment, each L/C General Unsecured Claim shall be reinstated, paid in full, or otherwise rendered Unimpaired and the applicable Reorganized Debtors shall remain liable for the L/C General Unsecured Claim, whether now existing or hereafter arising.

CALEBOOK .

4.6. Treatment of Classes 6(a)-(l): General Unsecured Claims.

4.6.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 6(a)-(i) are Impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim as of the Record Date is entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

4.6.2. Treatment.

- 4.6.2.1. Class 6(a). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against BMHC shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the BMHC Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against BMHC shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.
- 4.6.2.2. Class 6(b). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against BMC West shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the BMC West Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against BMC West shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such Allowed General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.
- 4.6.2.3. Class 6(c). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Construction shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the SelectBuild Construction Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Construction shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such Allowed General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election.

Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed 4.6.2.4. Class 6(d). General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Northern California shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the SelectBuild Northern California Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Northern California shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.6.2.5. Class 6(e). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against Illinois Framing shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the Illinois Framing Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against Illinois Framing shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.6.2.6. Class 6(f). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against C Construction shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the C Construction Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against C Construction shall be entitled, by exercise

of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.6.2.7. Class 6(g). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against TWF Construction shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the TWF Construction Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against TWF Construction shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.6.2.8. Class 6(h). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against H.N.R. Framing Systems shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the H.N.R. Framing Systems Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against H.N.R. Framing Systems shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.6.2.9. Class 6(i). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Southern California shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro

Rata share of the SelectBuild Southern California Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Southern California shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an accountance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

- Class 6(j). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed 4.6.2.10. General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Nevada shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the SelectBuild Nevada Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Nevada shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.
- On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Class 6(k). 4.6.2.11. Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Arizona shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the SelectBuild Arizona Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Arizona shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan..

Class 6(1). On the Distribution Date, each Holder of an Allowed 4.6.2.12. General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Illinois shall, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for such Claim, receive its Pro Rata share of the SelectBuild Illinois Unsecured Distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Holder of an Allowed General Unsecured Claim against SelectBuild Illinois shall be entitled, by exercise of the election set forth on the Ballot with respect to such General Unsecured Claim, to make the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election is voluntary. By making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election for any Allowed General Unsecured Claim against any Debtor, such Holder will be deemed to have made such Election with respect to all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors and to have agreed to reduce the amount of its aggregate Allowed General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to the lesser of (a) the amount of such aggregate claims or (b) \$5,000. Making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall constitute an acceptance of the Plan and will indicate the Holder's agreement to waive Class 6 treatment; instead, such Holder shall have a Class 8 Small Unsecured Claim and receive the treatment specified in section 4.8 of the Plan.

4.7. Treatment of Classes 7(a)-(l): Intercompany Claims.

- 4.7.1. Impairment and Voting. Except as provided in section 5.5.2, Classes 7(a)-(l) are Unimpaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Allowed Intercompany Claim is conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
- 4.7.2. Treatment. Except as provided in section 5.5.2, to preserve the Debtors' corporate structure, Intercompany Claims may be reinstated as of the Effective Date or, at the Debtors' or Reorganized Debtors' option, be cancelled, and no distributions shall be made on account of such Claims.
- 4.8. Treatment of Classes 8(a)-(l) Small Unsecured Claims.
 - 4.8.1. Impairment and Voting. Classes 8(a)-(i) are Impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of a Small Unsecured Claim as of the Record Date is entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
 - 4.8.2. Treatment. On the Distribution Date, each Holder of a Small Unsecured Claim shall receive, in full satisfaction, release, and discharge of and in exchange for all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors, Cash equal to the lesser of (i) 25% of the Allowed Amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims held by such Holder against all Debtors (excluding any interest) or (ii) \$1,250; provided, however, that the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election shall only be effective upon entry of the Confirmation Order and the occurrence of the Effective Date; provided, further, however, that the aggregate payments to Holders of Allowed Small Unsecured Claims shall not exceed \$700,000 and payment to each Holder of an Allowed Small Unsecured Claim shall be reduced proportionately to the extent aggregate payments would otherwise exceed \$700,000.
- 4.9. Treatment of Classes 9(a)-(l): Interests.

4.9.1. Impairment and Voting.

- 4.9.1.1. Class 9(a). Class 9(a) is impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Interest in BMHC is conclusively presumed to have rejected the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
- 4.9.1.2. Classes 9(b)-(l). Except as provided in section 5.5.2, Classes 9(b)-(l) are Unimpaired by the Plan. Each Holder of an Interest in BMC West, SelectBuild Construction, SelectBuild Northern California, Illinois Framing, C Construction, TWF Construction, H.N.R. Framing Systems, SelectBuild Southern California, SelectBuild Nevada, SelectBuild Arizona and/or SelectBuild Illinois is conclusively presumed to have accepted the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.

4,9.2. Treatment

- 4.9.2.1. Class 9(a). On the Effective Date, all Interests in BMHC shall be cancelled without further distribution.
- 4.9.2.2. Classes 9(b)-(l). Except as provided in section 5.5.2, in full and final satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of and in exchange for each Intercompany Interest to preserve the Debtors' corporate structure for the benefit of the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims and Allowed L/C Lender Claims, Intercompany Interests in each of BMC West, SelectBuild Construction, SelectBuild Northern California, Illinois Framing, C Construction, TWF Construction, H.N.R. Framing Systems, SelectBuild Southern California, SelectBuild Nevada, SelectBuild Arizona and SelectBuild Illinois shall be reinstated-for the benefit of the Holders thereof.
- 4.10. Treatment of Classes 10(a)-(l): Section 510(b) Claims.
 - **4.10.1.** Impairment and Voting. Classes 10(a)-(l) are Impaired by the Plan. Each Holder of a Section 510(b) claim is conclusively presumed to have rejected the Plan and is not entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan.
 - 4.10.2. Treatment. On the Effective Date, all Section 510(b) Claims shall be cancelled and discharged without any distribution.

V. PROVISIONS REGARDING VOTING, EFFECT OF REJECTION BY IMPAIRED CLASSES, AND CONSEQUENCES OF NON-CONFIRMABILITY

- 5.1. Voting Rights. Each Holder of an Allowed Claim as of the Voting Deadline in an Impaired Class of Claims or Interests that is not deemed to have rejected the Plan, and that held such Claim or Interest as of the Record Date, shall be entitled to vote separately to accept or reject the Plan as provided in the order entered by the Bankruptcy Court establishing certain procedures with respect to the solicitation and tabulation of votes to accept or reject the Plan.
- 5.2. Acceptance Requirements. An Impaired Class of Claims shall have accepted the Plan if votes in favor of the Plan have been cast by at least two-thirds in amount and more than one-half in number of the Allowed Claims in such Class

that have voted on the Plan. An Impaired Class of Interests shall have accepted the Plan if votes in favor of the Plan have been cast by at least two-thirds in amount of the Interests in such Class that have voted on the Plan.

- 5.3. Cramdown. If all applicable requirements for Confirmation of the Plan are met as set forth in section 1129(a)(1) through (13) of the Bankruptcy Code, except subsection (8) thereof, the Plan shall be treated as a request that the Bankruptcy Court confirm the Plan in accordance with section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, notwithstanding the failure to satisfy the requirements of section 1129(a)(8), on the basis that the Plan is fair and equitable and does not discriminate unfairly with respect to each Class of Claims that is Impaired under, and has not accepted, the Plan.
- 5.4. Tabulation of the Votes. The Debtors shall tabulate all votes on a non-consolidated basis by Class. If no Impaired Classes accept the Plan, the Debtors may modify the Plan to appropriately address the rights of the Holders of Allowed Claims.

5.5. Non-Confirmability.

- 5.5.1. If the Plan has not been accepted by the requisite majorities and the Debtors determine that the Plan cannot be confirmed under section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, or if the Bankruptcy Court, upon consideration, declines to approve Confirmation of the Plan, the Debtors may in their sole discretion seek to either (i) propose a new plan or plans of reorganization, (ii) seek to amend the current Plan to satisfy all objections, if any, or (iii) seek to convert or dismiss the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 5.5.2. Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, in the event that the Plan cannot be confirmed under section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code because the Plan proposes that the Holders of Equity Interests in Classes 9(b)-9(l) are unimpaired, the Plan shall, automatically and without the need for further solicitation from any Class, be amended to eliminate any distributions on account of such Equity Interests, such Equity Interests shall be cancelled and the Reorganized Subsidiary Equity Interests shall be issued and deemed to be distributed to the Holders of Class 2(b)-2(l) Claims, as may be applicable, which Holders shall be deemed to contribute such Reorganized Subsidiary Equity Interests to the Holders of Equity Interests in Classes 9(b)-9(l), as may be applicable, subject to the Restructuring Transactions described in the Restructuring Transactions Memorandum. In addition, in the event that the Plan cannot be confirmed under section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code because the Plan proposes that Holders of Intercompany Claims in Classes 7(a)-7(l) are unimpaired, the Plan shall, automatically and without the need for further solicitation from any Class, be amended to eliminate any distributions on account of such Intercompany Claims and such Intercompany Claims shall be cancelled and discharged without any distribution.

VI. EXECUTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES

- Assumption and Rejection of Contracts and Unexpired Leases. Except as 6.1. otherwise provided herein or pursuant to the Confirmation Order, all Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases that exist between the Debtors and any person, including, but not limited to, all Intercompany Contracts, shall be assumed pursuant to section 365(a) of the Bankruptcy Code as of the Effective Date, except for any such contract or lease (i) that has been assumed or rejected, or renegotiated and either assumed or rejected on renegotiated terms, pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court entered prior to the Effective Date, (ii) that has been entered into by the Debtors during the pendency of the Chapter 11 Cases in the ordinary course of business or pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court, (iii) that is the subject of a motion to reject, or a motion to approve renegotiated terms and to assume or reject on such renegotiated terms, that has been filed and served prior to the Effective Date, or (iv) that is identified on the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List; provided, however, that the applicable Debtors shall assume the Collective Bargaining Agreements on the Effective Date. Entry of the Confirmation Order shall constitute approval, pursuant to section 365(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, of the assumption of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases provided for herein. Each Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease assumed pursuant to this Section 6.1 or by any order of the Bankruptcy Court, which has not been assigned to a third party prior to the Confirmation Date, shall revest in and be fully enforceable by the Reorganized Debtors in accordance with its terms, except as such terms are modified by the provisions of the Plan or any order of the Bankruptcy Court authorizing and providing for its assumption under applicable federal law. All agreements that are rejected pursuant to the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List shall be rejected effective as of the date specified therein.
- 6.2. Vacation/Personal Time Off Programs and Agreements. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the applicable Debtors shall assume and adopt that certain BMHC-BMC West Vacation Policy 2009, which was in effect as of the Petition Date (the "Vacation Policy") and shall perform under the Vacation Policy in the ordinary course of business. All other agreements, plans or policies relating to vacation or personal time off, including agreements, plans or policies of Subsidiary Debtors that have been in effect from time to time and any contractual commitments or accepted offers of employment that contain more favorable vacation or personal time off terms than the Vacation Policy, shall be rejected effective as of the Confirmation Date.
- 6.3. Claims Based on Rejection of Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases. All Proofs of Claim with respect to Claims arising from the rejection of Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases; pursuant to the Plan or the Confirmation Order, including with respect to rejected vacation and/or paid time off programs or agreements and all Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases identified on the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List, must be filed with the Bankruptcy Court within 30 days after the date of entry of an order of the Bankruptcy Court (including the Confirmation Order) approving such rejection Effective Date. Any Claims arising from the rejection of an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease not filed with the Bankruptcy Court within such time will be automatically disallowed, forever barred from assertion, and shall not be enforceable against the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, the Estates,

or their property without the need for any objection by the Reorganized Debtors or further notice to, or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court. All Allowed Claims arising from the rejection of the Debtors' Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases shall be classified as General Unsecured Claims and shall be treated in accordance with Section 4.6 or 4.8 of the Plan, whichever may be applicable.

Cure of Defaults. Any monetary defaults under each Executory Contract and 6.4. Unexpired Lease to be assumed pursuant to the Plan shall be satisfied, pursuant to section 365(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, by payment of the Cure Claim in Cash on the Effective Date, subject to the limitation described below, or on such other terms as the parties to such Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases may otherwise agree. In the event of a dispute regarding (i) the Cure Claim, (ii) the ability of the Reorganized Debtors or any assignee to provide "adequate assurance of future performance" (within the meaning of section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code) under the Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease to be assumed, or (iii) any other matter pertaining to assumption, the payments required by section 365(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code in respect of Cure Claims shall be made following the entry of a Final Order or orders resolving the dispute and approving the assumption. At least 20 days prior to the Confirmation Hearing, the Debtors shall provide for notices of proposed assumption and proposed Cure Claims to be sent to applicable third parties. Any objection by a counterparty to an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease to a proposed assumption or related Cure Claim must be filed and served in accordance with, and otherwise comply with, the provisions of the Disclosure Statement Approval Order related to assumption of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases. Any counterparty to an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease that fails to object timely to the proposed assumption or Cure Claim will be deemed to have assented to such assumption and Cure Claim. If an objection to a proposed Cure Claim is sustained by the Bankruptcy Court, the Reorganized Debtors may elect to reject such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease in lieu of assuming it.

Assumption of any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease pursuant to the Plan or otherwise shall result in the full release and satisfaction of any Claims or defaults, whether monetary or nonmonetary, including defaults of provisions restricting the change in control or ownership interest composition or other bankruptcy-related defaults, arising under any assumed Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease at any time prior to the effective date of assumption. Any Proofs of Claim filed with respect to an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease that has been assumed shall be deemed disallowed and expunged, without further notice to or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court.

- 6.5. Contracts and Leases Entered into after the Petition Date. Contracts and leases entered into during the Postpetition Period by any Debtor, including any Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases assumed by such Debtor, will be performed by the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor liable thereunder in the ordinary course of its business. Accordingly, such contracts and leases (including any assumed Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases) will survive and remain unaffected by entry of the Confirmation Order.
- 6.6. Modifications, Amendments, Supplements, Restatements, or Other
 Agreements. Unless otherwise provided in the Plan, each Executory Contract or Unexpired
 Lease that is assumed shall include all modifications, amendments, supplements, restatements, or

other agreements that in any manner affect such Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease, and all Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases related thereto, if any, including all easements, licenses, permits, rights, privileges, immunities, options, rights of first refusal, and any other interests, unless any of the foregoing agreements has been previously rejected or repudiated or is rejected or repudiated under the Plan.

Modifications, amendments, supplements, and restatements to any prepetition Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases that have been executed by the Debtors during the Chapter 11 Cases shall not be deemed to alter the prepetition nature of the Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease, or the validity, priority, or amount of any Claims that may arise in connection therewith.

6.7. Reservation of Rights. Neither the exclusion nor inclusion of any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease on the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List, nor anything contained in the Plan, shall constitute an admission by the Debtors that any such contract or lease is in fact an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease or that any Reorganized Debtor has any liability thereunder. If there is a dispute regarding whether a contract or lease is or was executory or unexpired at the time of assumption or rejection, the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, shall have 30 days following entry of a Final Order resolving such dispute to alter their treatment of such contract or lease.

VIL MEANS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PLAN

- 7.1. General Settlement of Claims. As discussed in detail in the Disclosure Statement and as otherwise provided herein, pursuant to section 1123 of the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rule 9019, and in consideration for the classification, Distribution, releases, and other benefits provided under the Plan, upon the Effective Date, the provisions of the Plan shall constitute a good faith compromise and settlement of all Claims and Interests and controversies resolved pursuant to the Plan. Subject to Article VIII, all Distributions made to Holders of Allowed Claims in any Class are intended to be and shall be final.
- 7.2. Sources of Consideration for Plan Distributions.
 - The Exit Credit Facilities. On the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors shall enter into the Exit Credit Facilities consisting of the Exit Revolver and the Exit Term Loan. Confirmation shall be deemed approval of the Exit Revolver and the Exit Term Loan (including the transactions contemplated thereby, and all actions to be taken, undertakings to be made, and obligations to be incurred by the Reorganized Debtors in connection therewith) and authorization for the Reorganized Debtors to enter into and execute the (i) Exit Revolver documents, subject to such modifications as the Reorganized Debtors and the Exit Revolver Lenders may deem to be reasonably necessary to consummate such Exit Revolver, and (ii) the Exit Term Loan documents, subject to such modifications as the Reorganized Debtors and the Exit Term Loan Lenders may deem to be reasonably necessary to consummate such Exit Term Loan. Proceeds from the Exit Credit Facilities, together with other cash available to the Debtors and Reorganized Debtors, shall be used by the Reorganized Debtors to (i) pay in full in Cash all non-contingent obligations under the DIP Facility, (ii) fund exit costs, including, without limitation, the

funding of (a) the Cash Claims Reserve, (b) the Allowed Professional Compensation Claims, and (c) the Unsecured Cash Fund, and (iii) fund general working capital requirements of the Reorganized Debtors. Additionally, the Exit Revolver may be used for the issuance of letters of credit and the replacement of the then outstanding letters of credit issued under the DIP Facility.

7.2.2. The Term Loan Credit Agreement. On the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors shall enter into the Term Loan Credit Agreement. Confirmation shall be deemed approval of the Term Loan Credit Agreement (including the transactions contemplated thereby, and all actions to be taken, undertakings to be made, and obligations to be incurred by the Reorganized Debtors in connection therewith) and authorization for the Reorganized Debtors to enter into and execute the Term Loan Credit Agreement documents, subject to such modifications as the Reorganized Debtors and the Term Loan Lenders may deem to be reasonably necessary to consummate such Term Loan Credit Agreement. The Term Notes shall be issued to the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims and L/C Lender Claims as provided in Sections 4.2 and 4.3 of the Plan. Holders of the Term Notes shall be entitled to receive, among other things, an amount equal to 100% of the Excess Cash Flow, determined on an annual basis based upon delivery of audited financial statements by Reorganized BMHC. All persons receiving Term Notes pursuant to the Plan are, by their acceptance of such Term Notes, deemed to be parties to and bound by the Term Loan Credit Agreement and all documents related thereto, including but not limited to the Intercreditor Agreement.

7.2.3. Issuance of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests.

- 7.2.3.1. The issuance of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, including Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issuable in respect of the L/C Lender Equity Reserve and for options, or other equity awards, if any, in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan, by Reorganized BMHC is authorized without the need for any further corporate action or without any further action by the Holders of Claims or Interests. An unlimited number of common shares shall be authorized under the New Certificate of Incorporation of Reorganized BMHC. The Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, less reserves for the L/C Lender Equity Reserve and for options, or other equity awards, if any, in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan, will be issued (i) to Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims on the Effective Date and (ii) if applicable and as and to the extent provided in Section 4.3 of the Plan, to Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims on the Effective Date and from time to time thereafter.
- 7.2.3.2. All of the shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued pursuant to the Plan shall be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid, and non-assessable. Each distribution and issuance referred to in Article VIII hereof shall be governed by the terms and conditions set forth in the Plan applicable to such distribution or issuance and by the terms and conditions of the instruments evidencing or relating to such distribution or issuance, which terms and conditions shall bind each Person receiving such distributions or issuance.
- 7.2.3.3. The Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance shall be subject to adjustment in the reasonable discretion of Reorganized BMHC to effectuate the terms of the Plan. Shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issuable to Holders

of Allowed L/C Lender Claims from time to time after the Effective Date pursuant to Section 4.3.2.2 shall be subject to adjustment from time to time for any stock splits, stock dividends, reverse stock splits, reclassifications and the like occurring after the Effective Date in respect of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests.

- 7.2.3.4. Upon the Effective Date, in the event that Reorganized BMHC determines that a Shareholder Agreement is advisable, then Reorganized BMHC shall enter into such agreement with each Person that is to be a counter-party thereto and such agreement shall be deemed to be valid, binding, and enforceable in accordance with its terms. All persons receiving Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests pursuant to the Plan, by their acceptance of such BMHC Equity Interests, are deemed to be parties to and bound by the Shareholder Agreement and all documents related thereto.
- 7.2.4. Avoidance Actions. Avoidance Actions are hereby expressly preserved and shall vest in the applicable Reorganized Debtor on the Effective Date.
- 7.2.5. Unsecured Cash Fund. On the Effective Date, or as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable, the Reorganized Debtors shall fund the Unsecured Cash Fund into the Unsecured Cash Distribution Account.
- 7.3. Rule 2004 Examinations. The power of the Debtors to conduct examinations pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 2004 shall be expressly preserved following the Effective Date.
 - 7.4. Continued Corporate Existence. Except as provided herein, each Debtor will continue to exist on or after the Effective Date as a separate corporate entity, with all the powers of a corporation or limited liability company, as the case may be, under applicable law and without prejudice to any right to alter or terminate such existence (whether by merger, dissolution, or otherwise) under applicable law.
 - 7.5. Revesting of Assets. Except as expressly provided herein, the Assets of each Debtor's Estate shall revest with the respective Reorganized Debtor on the Effective Date. The Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction to determine disputes as to property interests created or vested by the Plan. From and after the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors may operate their businesses, and may use, acquire, and dispose of property free of any restrictions of the Bankruptcy Code, except as provided herein. As of the Effective Date, all property of the Reorganized Debtors shall be free and clear of all Claims and Interests, except as, and to the extent, provided in the Plan.
 - 7.6. Merger. On the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors may (i) effectuate the transactions described in the Restructuring Transactions Memorandum, if any (ii) merge, dissolve, transfer assets, or otherwise consolidate any of the Debtors in furtherance of the Plan or (iii) engage in any other transaction in furtherance of the Plan. Any such transaction may be effected on or subsequent to the Effective Date without any further action by Holders of Interests or the directors of any of the Debtors.
 - 7.7. Cancellation of Securities and Agreements. On the Effective Date, except as otherwise specifically provided for in the Plan: (i) the obligations of the Debtors under the Propetition Credit Agreement, DIP Facility, and any other Certificate,

Interest, Equity Security, share, note, bond, indenture, purchase right, option, warrant, or other instrument or document directly or indirectly evidencing or creating any indebtedness or obligation of or ownership interest in the Debtors giving rise to any Claim, Interest, or Equity Security (except such Certificates, notes, or other instruments or document evidencing indebtedness or obligation of or ownership interest in the Debtors that are reinstated pursuant to the Plan) shall be cancelled solely as to the Debtors and their affiliates, and the Reorganized Debtors shall not have any continuing obligations thereunder, and (ii) the obligations of the Debtors pursuant, relating, or pertaining to any agreements, indentures, certificates of designation, bylaws, or certificate or articles of incorporation or similar documents governing the shares, Certificates, notes, bonds, indentures, purchase rights, options, warrants, or other instruments or documents evidencing or creating any indebtedness or obligation of or ownership interest in the Debtors (except such agreements, Certificates, notes, or other instruments evidencing indebtedness or obligations of or ownership interest in the Debtors that are specifically reinstated pursuant to the Plan) shall be released and discharged; provided, however, that notwithstanding Confirmation or consummation, any such agreement that governs the rights of the Holder of a Claim shall continue in effect solely for purposes of allowing Holders to receive distributions under the Plan; provided, further, however, that the preceding proviso shall not affect the discharge of Claims or Interests pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, the Confirmation Order, or the Plan, or result in any expense or liability to the Reorganized Debtors; and provided, further, however, that the foregoing shall not effect the cancellation of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued pursuant to the Plan in Reorganized BMHC, nor any other shares held by one Debtor in another Debtor, except in connection with any Restructuring Transactions implemented by the Reorganized Debtors.

- 7.8. Reorganized BMHC. On the Effective Date, the New Board of Reorganized BMHC shall be established and Reorganized BMHC shall adopt its New Bylaws. As soon after the Effective Date as reasonably practicable, Reorganized BMHC shall adopt the Long Term Incentive Plan. Reorganized BMHC shall be authorized to adopt any other agreements, documents, and instruments and to take any other action contemplated by the Plan as necessary and desirable to consummate the Plan.
- 7.9. Post Effective Date Management. Except as expressly provided in the Plan and the Debtors' certificate of incorporation and the New Certificates of Incorporation, which may be amended from time to time, the operation, management, and control of the Reorganized Debtors shall be the general responsibility of its board of directors or managers and senior officers, which shall thereafter have the responsibility for the management, control, and operation of the Reorganized Debtors. Entry of the Confirmation Order shall ratify and approve all actions taken by each of the Debtors from the Petition Date through and until the Effective Date.
- 7.10. Directors and Officers of the Reorganized Debtors. On and after the Effective Date, the business and affairs of the Reorganized Debtors will be managed by the New Boards and the officers, directors or managers identified in the Plan Supplement. Biographical information regarding these proposed officers, directors, and managers will be set forth in the Plan Supplement. A schedule of

the annual compensation to be paid to persons serving as executives, officers, and directors or managers as of the Effective Date will be set forth in the Plan Supplement.

- 7.11. New Certificates of Incorporation and New Bylaws of the Reorganized Debtors. As of the Effective Date, the New Certificates of Incorporation and the New Bylaws shall be substantially in the forms included in the Plan Supplement, with such changes as may be necessary to conform to the applicable laws of the state of incorporation. The New Certificates of Incorporation and New Bylaws, among other things, shall prohibit the issuance of nonvoting equity securities to the extent required by section 1123(a) of the Bankruptcy Code. After the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors may amend and restate their New Certificates of Incorporation and New Bylaws, as permitted under applicable state laws, subject to the terms and conditions of such documents.
- 7.12. New Employment, Retirement, Indemnification, and Other Related Agreements. As of the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors shall have the authority, as determined by its governing Persons, to: (i) maintain, amend, or revise existing employment, retirement, welfare, incentive, severance, indemnification, and other agreements with its active and retired directors or managers, officers, and employees, subject to the terms and conditions of any such agreement; and (ii) enter into new employment, retirement, welfare, incentive, severance, indemnification, and other agreements for active and retired employees.
 - 7.13. Effectuating Documents; Further Transactions. On and after the Effective Date, Reorganized BMHC and the other Reorganized Debtors, and the officers and members of the New Boards, are authorized to and may issue, execute, deliver, file, or record such contracts, securities, instruments, releases, and other agreements or documents and take such actions as may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate, implement, and further evidence the terms and conditions of the Plan and the securities issued pursuant to the Plan in the name of and on behalf of Reorganized BMHC and the other Reorganized Debtors, without the need for any approvals, authorization, or consents except for those expressly required pursuant to the Plan.
 - Corporate Action. Upon the Effective Date, all actions contemplated by the 7.14. Plan shall be deemed authorized and approved in all respects, including: (i) the adoption or assumption, as applicable, of the agreements with existing management; (ii) the selection of the directors and officers for the Reorganized Debtors; (iii) the distribution of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests in accordance with the Plan; (iv) the execution and entry into the Exit Revolver, the Exit Term Loan and the Term Loan Credit Agreement; (v) the establishment of the Long Term Incentive Plan and the issuance of any Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests thereunder; and (vi) all other actions contemplated by the Plan (whether to occur before, on, or after the Effective Date). All matters provided for in the Plan involving the corporate structure of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, and any corporate action required by the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors in connection with the Plan shall be deemed to have occurred and shall be in effect without any requirement of further action by the security holders, directors, or officers of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors. On or (as applicable) prior to the Effective Date, the appropriate officers of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, shall be authorized and (as applicable) directed to issue, execute, and deliver the agreements, documents,

securities, and instruments contemplated by the Plan (or necessary or desirable to effect the transactions contemplated by the Plan) in the name of and on behalf of the Reorganized Debtors, including the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Exit Term Loan and the Term Loan Credit Agreement, and any and all other agreements, documents, securities, and instruments relating to the foregoing. The authorizations and approvals contemplated herein shall be effective notwithstanding any requirements under non-bankruptcy law. The issuance of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests shall be exempt from the requirements of section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (pursuant to Rule 16b-3 promulgated thereunder) with respect to any acquisition of securities by an officer or director (or a director deputized for purposes thereof) as of the new Effective Date.

- 7.15. Section 1146 Exemption. Pursuant to section 1146 of the Bankruptcy Code, any transfers of property pursuant hereto shall not be subject to any document recording tax, stamp tax, conveyance fee, intangibles or similar tax, mortgage tax, stamp act, real estate transfer tax, mortgage recording tax, or other similar tax or governmental assessment, and upon entry of the Confirmation Order, the appropriate state or local governmental officials or agents shall forgo the collection of any such tax or governmental assessment and accept for filing and recordation any of the foregoing instruments or other documents without the payment of any such tax, recordation fee, or governmental assessment.
- Preservation of Causes of Action. In accordance with section 1123(b) of the 7.16. Bankruptcy Code, the Reorganized Debtors shall retain and may enforce all rights to commence and pursue, as appropriate, any and all Causes of Action, whether arising before or after the Petition Date, including any actions specifically enumerated in the Plan Supplement, and the Reorganized Debtors' rights to commence, prosecute, or settle such Causes of Action shall be preserved notwithstanding the occurrence of the Effective Date. The Reorganized Debtors may pursue such Causes of Action, as appropriate, in accordance with the best interests of the Reorganized Debtors. No Person may rely on the absence of a specific reference in the Plan, the Plan Supplement, or the Disclosure Statement to any Cause of Action against them as any indication that the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, will not pursue any and all available Causes of Action against them. The Debtors or Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, expressly reserve all rights to prosecute any and all Causes of Action against any Person, except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan. Unless any Causes of Action against any Person are expressly waived, relinquished, exculpated, released, compromised, or settled in the Plan or a Bankruptcy Court order, the Reorganized Debtors expressly reserve all Causes of Action, for later adjudication, and, therefore, no preclusion doctrine, including the doctrines of res judicata, collateral estoppel, issue preclusion, claim preclusion, estoppel (judicial, equitable or otherwise), or laches, shall apply to such Causes of Action upon, after, or as a consequence of the Confirmation or consummation.

The Reorganized Debtors reserve and shall retain the Causes of Action notwithstanding the rejection or repudiation of any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease during the Chapter 11 Cases or pursuant to the Plan. In accordance with section 1123(b)(3) of the Bankruptcy Code, any Causes of Action that a Debtor may hold against any Person shall vest in the Reorganized Debtors, as the case may

be. The applicable Reorganized Debtor, through its authorized agents or representatives, shall retain and may exclusively enforce any and all such Causes of Action. The Reorganized Debtors shall have the exclusive right, authority, and discretion to determine and to initiate, file, prosecute, enforce, abandon, settle, compromise, release, withdraw, or litigate to judgment any such Causes of Action and to decline to do any of the foregoing without the consent or approval of any third party or further notice to or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court.

- Insurance Policies and Agreements. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary (including, without limitation, any other provision that purports to be preemptory or supervening or grants an injunction or release), Insurance Policies and Agreements are treated as Executory Contracts under the Plan; and all references to Executory Contracts shall include the Insurance Policies and Agreements. On the Effective Date, the applicable Debtors that are parties to such Insurance Policies and Agreements and the applicable Reorganized Debtors shall be deemed to have assumed in accordance with section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code all such Insurance Policies and Agreements, and the applicable Reorganized Debtors shall remain liable for all obligations under the Insurance Policies and Agreements, whether now existing or hereafter arising, and shall pay such obligations in the ordinary course of business. The applicable insurers shall be deemed to have consented to such assumption. Nothing in the Plan: (a) precludes or limits the rights of insurers to contest and/or litigate with any party, including, without limitation, the Debtors, the existence, primacy and/or scope of available coverage under any alleged applicable policy; (b) permits any holder of an Insured Claim to recover the same amounts from an insurer and any other party including, but not limited to, the Debtors (or after the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors); (c) alters an insurer's rights and obligations under its Insurance Policies and Agreements or modifies the coverage provided thereunder; (d) alters the rights and obligations of the Debtors (or after the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtors) or the insurers under the Insurance Policies and Agreements including, without limitation, any duty of the Debtors' to defend, at their own expense, against claims asserted under the Insurance Policies and Agreements; (e) discharges, releases or relieves the Debtors or Reorganized Debtors, after the Effective Date, from any debt or other liability under the Insurance Policies and Agreements; or (f) limits, diminishes, or otherwise alters or impairs the Debtors', Reorganized Debtors' and/or an insurer's defenses, claims, Causes of Action, or other rights under applicable non-bankruptcy law with respect to the Insurance Policies and Agreements. If an insurer objects to the proposed assumption of its Insurance Policies and Agreements, or any of them, or the proposed Cure Claim related thereto, the insurer must comply with the objection procedure specified in section 6.4 of the Plan and the Disclosure Statement Approval Order.
- 7.18. Nonoccurrence of Effective Date. In the event that the Effective Date does not occur, the Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction with respect to any request to extend the deadline for assuming or rejecting unexpired leases pursuant to section 365(d)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 7.19. Collective Bargaining Agreements. On the Effective Date, the applicable Debtors shall assume all of their Collective Bargaining Agreements.

VIII. METHOD OF DISTRIBUTIONS UNDER THE PLAN AND CLAIMS RECONCILIATION

- 8.1. Disbursing Agent. The Debtors shall act as the Disbursing Agent under the Plan with respect to distributions of Cash made on the Effective Date and the Reorganized Debtors shall act as the Disbursing Agent after the Effective Date. The Debtors and the Reorganized Debtors shall not be required to give any bond, surety or other security for the performance of duties as Disbursing Agent.
- 8.2. Distribution Record Date. For purposes of the Plan, as of the close of business on the Distribution Record Date, the records of ownership of Claims against the Debtors (including the claims register in the Chapter 11 Cases) will be closed. For purposes of the Plan, the Debtors, the Estates, and the Reorganized Debtors shall have no obligation to recognize the transfer of any of the Claims against the Debtors occurring after the Distribution Record Date, and shall be entitled for all purposes relating to the Plan to recognize and deal only with those Holders of record as of the close of business on the Distribution Record Date.
- 8.3. Cash Payments. Any Cash payments made pursuant to the Plan will be made in U.S. dollars. Cash payments made pursuant to the Plan in the form of a check shall be null and void if not cashed within 180 days of the date of issuance thereof.
- 8.4. Delivery of Distributions. If the Distribution to any Holder of an Allowed Claim is returned as undeliverable, the Disbursing Agent shall use commercially reasonable efforts to determine the current address of such Holder.

 Undeliverable Distributions shall be held by the Disbursing Agent, subject to Section 8.7.
- 8.5. Minimum Cash Distributions. No Cash payment less than fifty dollars shall be made to any Holder of a Claim unless a request therefor is made in writing to the Debtors.

8.6. Withholding Taxes.

- 8.6.1. The Disbursing Agent shall comply with all withholding, reporting, certification, and information requirements imposed by any federal, state, local, or foreign taxing authority and all distributions hereunder shall, to the extent applicable, be subject to any such withholding, reporting, certification, and information requirements.
- 8.6.2. Persons entitled to receive distributions hereunder shall, as a condition to receiving such distributions, provide such information and take such steps as the Disbursing Agent may reasonably require to ensure compliance with such withholding and reporting requirements, and to enable the Disbursing Agent to obtain the certifications and information as may be necessary or appropriate to satisfy the provisions of any tax law.

- 8.6.3. Any Person that does not provide the Disbursing Agent with requisite information after the Disbursing Agent has made at least three attempts (by written notice or request for such information, including on the ballots in these Chapter 11 Cases) to obtain such information, may be deemed to have forfeited such Person's right to such distributions, which shall be treated as unclaimed property under Section 8.7.
- 8.7. Unclaimed Property. Any Person that fails to claim any Distribution to be distributed hereunder within one year from the initial date for such distribution shall forfeit all rights to any such distributions under the Plan. Upon such forfeiture of Cash or other property, such Cash or property shall be the property of the applicable Disbursing Agent. Nothing herein shall require the Disbursing Agent to attempt to locate or notify any Person with respect to any forfeited property. Persons that fail to claim Cash or other property to be distributed under the Plan within such one-year period shall forfeit their rights thereto and shall have no claim whatsoever with respect thereto against the Debtors, their Estates, the Disbursing Agent, or any Holder of an Allowed Claim to which distributions are made.
- 8.8. Reserve for Disputed General Unsecured Claims On the Effective Date, the Disbursing Agent shall establish, and maintain thereafter, a reserve from the Unsecured Cash Fund for the benefit of Holders of Disputed General Unsecured Claims. Such reserve shall consist of an amount of Cash equal to the amount that would be distributable to all Holders of such Disputed General Unsecured Claims, in respect of all distributions made to that date, if those Claims were Allowed in the Maximum Amount. In the event any such Disputed General Unsecured Claim becomes an Allowed Claim, the amount of such Allowed Claim shall never exceed the Maximum Amount of such Disputed General Unsecured Claim, and the Disbursing Agent shall distribute to the Holder of such Allowed Claim from the reserve the aggregate amount of Cash that such Holder would have received as of the date of such distribution in respect of such Allowed Claim had such Claim been an Allowed Claim as of the Effective Date. If a Disputed General Unsecured Claim is disallowed, the Cash reserved for such claim shall be distributed, on the next anniversary of the Effective Date (or as soon as practicable thereafter), to Holders of Allowed Claims in the applicable class.
 - 8.9 Disputed Claims. If the Debtors or any other party in interest disputes any Claim against the Debtors, such dispute shall be determined, resolved, or adjudicated, as the case may be, under applicable law by the Bankruptcy Court. Among other things, (i) the Debtors (on or before the Effective Date), and (ii) the Reorganized Debtors (after the Effective Date) may each elect, at their respective sole option, to object to or seek estimation under section 502 of the Bankruptcy Code with respect to any Proof of Claim filed by or on behalf of a Holder of a Claim against the Debtors.
 - 8.10. Objections to Claims. Unless a later or different time is set by Final Order or otherwise established by other provisions of the Plan, all objections to Claims must be filed by the Claims Objection Bar Date; provided, however, that no such objection may be filed against any Claim after the Bankruptcy Court has determined by entry of a Final Order that such Claim is an Allowed Claim. The failure by any party in interest, including the Debtors and the Committee, to object to any Claim, whether or not unpaid, for purposes of voting shall not be deemed a waiver of such party's or the Disbursing Agent's rights to object to, or

- re-examine, any such Claim in whole or in part. After the Effective Date, no party in interest shall have the right to object to Claims against the Debtors or their Estates other than the Reorganized Debtors.
- 8.11. Compromises and Settlements. From and after the Effective Date, and without any further approval by the Bankruptcy Court, the Reorganized Debtors may compromise and settle Claims.
- 8.12. Reservation of Debtors' Rights. Prior to the Effective Date, the Debtors expressly reserve the right to compromise and settle (subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court) Claims against them or other claims they may have against other Persons.
- 8.13. No Distributions Pending Allowance. If a Claim or any portion of a Claim is disputed, no payment or Distribution will be made on account of the disputed portion of such Claim (or the entire Claim, if the entire Claim is disputed), unless such Disputed Claim or portion thereof becomes an Allowed Claim.
- 8.14. No Postpetition Interest on Claims. Unless otherwise specifically provided for in the Plan, the Confirmation Order, or other Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court, or required by applicable bankruptcy law, postpetition interest shall not accrue or be paid on any Claims against the Debtors, and no Holder of a Claim against the Debtors shall be entitled to interest accruing on or after the Petition Date on any such Claim.
- 8.15. Claims Paid or Payable by Third Parties.
 - 8.15.1. Claims Paid by Third Parties. The Debtors or the Disbursing Agent, as applicable, shall reduce in full a Claim, and such Claim shall be disallowed without a Claims objection having to be Filed and without further notice to or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court, to the extent that the Holder of such Claim receives payment in full on account of such Claim from a party that is not a Debtor or the Disbursing Agent. Subject to the last sentence of this paragraph, to the extent a Holder of a Claim receives a distribution on account of such Claim and receives payment from a party that is not a Debtor or the Disbursing Agent on account of such Claim, such Holder shall, within two weeks of receipt thereof, repay or return the distribution to the applicable Disbursing Agent, to the extent the Holder's total recovery on account of such Claim from the third party and under the Plan exceeds the amount of such Claim as of the date of any such Distribution under the Plan. The failure of such Holder to timely repay or return such Distribution shall result in the Holder owing the applicable Disbursing Agent annualized interest at the Federal Judgment Rate on such amount owed for each Business Day after the two-week grace period specified above until the amount is repaid.
 - 8.15.2. Claims Payable by Third Parties. Except with respect to payment of Insured Claims within the applicable deductible or self-insured retention under Insurance Policies and Agreements that are secured by Propetition Letters of Credit, no Distributions under the Plan shall be made on account of an Insured Claim unless and until the Holder of such an Insured Claim has received proceeds, if any, of any applicable Insurance Policies and Agreements. To the

extent that one or more of the Debtors' insurers agrees to settle or pay, in full or in part, an Insured Claim, then immediately upon such insurers' payment, the applicable portion of the Claim may be expunged without a Claims objection having to be Filed and without further notice to or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court.

8.15.3. Applicability of Insurance Policies and Agreements. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, distributions to Holders of Allowed Claims that are covered by the Debtors' Insurance Policies and Agreements shall be in accordance with the provisions of any applicable Insurance Policy and Agreement. Nothing contained in the Plan shall constitute or be deemed a waiver of any Cause of Action that the Debtors or any Person may hold against any other Person, including insurers under any Insurance Policies and Agreements, nor shall anything contained herein constitute or be deemed a waiver by such insurers of any rights, claims or defenses, including coverage defenses, held by such insurers.

IX. EFFECT OF CONFIRMATION OF PLAN

9.1. Discharge.

- 9.1.1. Discharge of Claims Against the Debtors and the Reorganized Debtors. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, the Confirmation of the Plan shall, as of the Effective Date: (i) discharge the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors or any of its or their Assets from all Claims, demands, liabilities, other debts and Interests that arose on or before the Effective Date, including all debts of the kind specified in sections 502(g), 502(h) or 502(i) of the Bankruptcy Code, whether or not (a) a Proof of Claim based on such debt is filed or deemed filed pursuant to section 501 of the Bankruptcy Code, (b) a Claim based on such debt is Allowed pursuant to section 502 of the Bankruptcy Code or (c) the Holder of a Claim based on such debt has accepted the Plan; and (ii) preclude all Persons from asserting against the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets, any other or further Claims or Interests based upon any act or omission, transaction, or other activity of any kind or nature that occurred prior to the Effective Date, all pursuant to sections 524 and 1141 of the Bankruptcy Code. The discharge provided in this provision shall void any judgment obtained against any of the Debtors at any time, to the extent that such judgment relates to a discharged Claim or cancelled Interest.
- 9.1.2. Injunction Related to the Discharge. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, all entities that have held, currently hold, or may hold Claims or other debts or liabilities against the Debtors, or an Interest or other right of an Equity Security Holder in any or all of the Debtors, that are discharged pursuant to the terms of the Plan, are permanently enjoined, on and after the Effective Date, from taking any of the following actions on account of any such Claims, debts, liabilities or Interests or rights: (i) commencing or continuing in any manner any action or other proceeding of any kind with respect to any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest, or right, other than to enforce any right to a Distribution pursuant to the Plan; (ii) enforcing, attaching, collecting, or recovering in any manner any judgment, award, decree or order against the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets on account of any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest, or right; (iii) creating, perfecting, or enforcing any Lien or encumbrance against the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets on account of any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest or right; (iv) asserting any right of setoff, subrogation, or recoupment of any kind against any debt, liability, or obligation due to the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets on account of any such Claim, debt, liability, Interest, or right; and (v) commencing or continuing any action, in any manner, in any place that does not comply with or is inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan or the Confirmation Order. Such injunction shall extend to any successor of the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, or any of its or their Assets. Any Person injured by any willful violation of such injunction shall recover actual damages, including costs and attorneys' and experts' fees and disbursements, and, in appropriate circumstances, may recover punitive damages, from the willful violator.

9.2. Releases.

9.2.1. Releases by the Debtors. As of the Effective Date, for good and valuable consideration, the adequacy of which is hereby confirmed, the Debtors in their individual capacity and as debtors in possession will be deemed to release and forever waive and discharge all Claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities whether liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or contingent, matured or unmatured, known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, then existing or thereafter arising, in law, equity or otherwise that are based in whole or part on any act, omission, transaction, event, or other occurrence taking place on or prior to the Effective Date (including prior to the Petition Date) in any way relating to the Debtors, the Chapter 11 Cases, the Plan, or the Disclosure Statement, the purchase, sale, or rescission of the purchase or sale of any security of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, the subject matter of, or the transactions or events giving rise to, any Claim or Interest that is treated in the Plan, the business or contractual arrangements between and Debtor and any Released Party, the restructuring of Claims and Interests prior to or in the Chapter 11 Cases, the negotiation, formulation, or preparation of the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the Disclosure Statement, or related agreements, instruments, or other documents, or upon any other act or omission, transaction, agreement, event, or other occurrence taking place before the Effective Date and that could have been asserted by or on behalf of the Debtors or their Estates at any time up to immediately prior to the Effective Date against the Released Parties, other than Claims or liabilities arising out of or relating to any act or omission of a Released Party that constitutes willful misconduct or gross negligence. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, the release set forth above does not release any post-Effective Date obligations of any party under the Plan or any document, instrument, or agreement (including those set forth in the Plan Supplement) executed to implement the Plan.

9.2.2. Certain Waivers. Although the Debtors do not believe that California law is applicable to the Plan, nevertheless, in an abundance of caution, each Debtor hereby understands and waives the effect of Section 1542 of the California Civil Code to the extent that such section is applicable to the Debtors. Section 1542 of the California Civil Code provides:

§1542. A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR.

EACH DEBTOR AGREES TO ASSUME THE RISK OF ANY AND ALL UNKNOWN, UNANTICIPATED OR MISUNDERSTOOD DEFENSES, CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, CONTRACTS, LIABILITIES, INDEBTEDNESS AND OBLIGATIONS WHICH ARE RELEASED BY THE PLAN AND EACH DEBTOR HEREBY WAIVES AND RELEASES ALL

RIGHTS AND BENEFITS WHICH IT MIGHT OTHERWISE HAVE UNDER THE AFOREMENTIONED SECTION 1542 OF THE CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE WITH REGARD TO THE RELEASE OF SUCH UNKNOWN, UNANTICIPATED OR MISUNDERSTOOD DEFENSES, CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, CONTRACTS, LIABILITIES, INDEBTEDNESS AND OBLIGATIONS. TO THE EXTENT (IF ANY) ANY OTHER LAWS SIMILAR TO SECTION 1542 OF THE CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE MAY BE APPLICABLE, EACH DEBTOR WAIVES AND RELEASES ANY BENEFIT, RIGHT OR DEFENSE WHICH IT MIGHT OTHERWISE HAVE UNDER ANY SUCH LAW WITH REGARD TO THE RELEASE OF UNKNOWN, UNANTICIPATED OR MISUNDERSTOOD DEFENSES, CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, CONTRACTS, LIABILITIES, INDEBTEDNESS AND OBLIGATIONS.

9.2.3. Releases by Holders of Claims and Interests. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, as of the Effective Date of the Plan, each Holder of a Claim or an Interest, that voted in favor of the Plan shall be deemed to have released and forever waived and discharged all Claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities whether liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or contingent, matured or unmatured, known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, then existing or thereafter arising, in law, equity, or otherwise that are based in whole or part on any act, omission, transaction, event, or other occurrence taking place on or prior to the Effective Date (including prior to the Petition Date) in any way relating to the Debtors, the Chapter 11 Cases, the Plan, or the Disclosure Statement, the purchase, sale, or rescission of the purchase or sale of any security of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, the subject matter of, or the transactions or events giving rise to, any Claim or Interest that is treated in the Plan, the business or contractual arrangements between any Debtor and any Released Party, the restructuring of Claims and Interests prior to or in the Chapter 11 Cases, the negotiations, formulation, or preparation of the Plan, the related Disclosure Statement, the related Plan Supplement, or related agreements, instruments, or other documents, or upon any other act or omission, transaction, agreement, event, or other occurrence taking place before the Effective Date and that could have been asserted by or on behalf of the Debtors or their Estates at any time up to immediately prior to the Effective Date against the Released Parties, other than Claims or liabilities arising out of or relating to any act or omission of a Released Party that constitutes willful misconduct or gross negligence. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, the release set forth above does not release any post-Effective Date obligations (except Cure Claims that have not been filed timely) of any party under the Plan or any document, instrument, or agreement (including those set forth in the Plan Supplement) executed to implement the Plan, or any obligation under any assumed contract or lease or any Prepetition Letters of Credit.

9.2.4. Exculpation. On and after the Effective Date, none of the Exculpated Parties shall have or incur any liability for, and each Exculpated Party is hereby released from, any claim, cause of action, or liability to any other Exculpated Party, to any Holder of a Claim or Interest, or to any other party in interest, for any act or omission that occurred during and in connection with the Chapter 11 Cases or in connection with the preparation and filing of the Chapter 11 Cases, the

formulation, negotiation, and/or pursuit of confirmation of the Plan, the consummation of the Plan, and/or the administration of the Plan and/or the property to be distributed under the Plan, except for claims, causes of action or liabilities arising from the gross negligence, willful misconduct, fraud, or breach of the fiduciary duty of loyalty of any Exculpated Party, in each case subject to determination of such by final order of a court of competent jurisdiction and provided that any Exculpated Party shall be entitled to reasonably rely upon the advice of counsel with respect to its duties and responsibilities (if any) under the Plan. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Debtors, the Estates, the Committee, WFB, the Prepetition Lenders, the DIP Lenders, and their respective officers, directors, employees, members, attorneys, crisis managers, financial advisors, and professionals, shall be entitled to and granted the protections and benefits of section 1125(e) of the Bankruptcy Code. No provision of the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, or the Confirmation Order shall be deemed to act upon or release any claims, Causes of Action or liabilities that the Debtors, the Estates, or any party in interest may have against or to any Person for any act, omission, or failure to act that occurred prior to the Petition Date other than in connection with the preparation and filing of the Chapter 11 Cases, nor shall any provision of the Plan or the Confirmation Order be deemed to act to release any Avoidance Actions.

9.2.5. Injunction Related to Releases. To the fullest extent allowed by law, and except as otherwise provided in the Plan or the Confirmation Order, all Persons that have held, currently hold, or may hold claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities that are released or exculpated pursuant to Section 9.2.1, 9.2.2, 9.2.3, and 9.2.4 are permanently enjoined, on and after the Effective Date, from taking any of the following actions on account of any such claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action and liabilities: (i) commencing or continuing in any manner any action or other proceeding of any kind against a Released Party or Exculpated Party with respect to any such claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities; (ii) enforcing, attaching, collecting, or recovering in any manner any judgment, award, decree, or order against any Released Party or any Exculpated Party or any of its or their Assets on account of any such claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities; (iii) creating, perfecting, or enforcing any Lien or encumbrance against any Released Party or any Exculpated Party or any of its or their assets on account of any such claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities; (iv) asserting any right of setoff, subrogation, or recoupment of any kind against any debt, liability, or obligation due to any Released Party or any Exculpated Party or any of its or their Assets on account of any such claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, Causes of Action, and liabilities; and (v) commencing or continuing any action, in any manner, in any place that does not comply with or is inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan or the Confirmation Order. Such injunction shall extend to any successor of any Released Party or any Exculpated Party or any of its or their assets. Any Person injured by any

willful violation of such injunction shall recover actual damages, including costs and attorneys' and experts' fees and disbursements, and, in appropriate circumstances, may recover punitive damages, from the willful violator.

- 9.3. No Successor Liability. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, none of the Released Parties shall be determined to be successors to any of the Debtors or to any Person for which the Debtors may be held legally responsible, by reason of any theory of law or equity, and none can be responsible for any successor or transferee liability of any kind or character. The Released Parties do not agree to perform, pay, or indemnify creditors or otherwise have any responsibilities for any liabilities or obligations of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, whether arising before, on, or after the Confirmation Date, except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan.
- 9.4. Release of Liens. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan or in any contract, instrument, indenture, or other agreement or document expressly incorporated by reference in the Plan, the Confirmation Order will release any and all prepetition Liens against the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors or any of their Assets.
- 9.5. Term of Injunctions. All injunctions or stays provided in, or in connection with, the Chapter 11 Cases, whether pursuant to section 105, section 362, or any other provision of the Bankruptcy Code, other applicable law or court order, in effect immediately prior to Confirmation will remain in full force and effect until such injunctions or stays become effective and shall remain in full force and effect thereafter if so provided in the Plan, the Confirmation Order or by their own terms. In addition, on and after Confirmation Date, the Debtors may seek further orders to preserve the status quo during the time between the Confirmation Date and the Effective Date.
- 9.6. Binding Effect. The Plan shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the Debtors and all Holders of Claims and Interests, and their respective successors and assigns, whether or not the Claims and Interests of such Holders are Impaired under the Plan and whether or not such Holders have accepted the Plan.
- 9.7. Dissolution of the Committee. The Committee shall be dissolved on the Effective Date and shall not continue to exist thereafter except for the limited purposes of filing any remaining fee applications, and the Professionals retained by the Committee shall be entitled to compensation for services performed and reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection therewith. Upon dissolution of the Committee, the members of the Committee shall be released and discharged of and from all duties, responsibilities and obligations related to and arising from and in connection with the Debtors' Chapter 11 Cases.
- 9.8. Post-Confirmation Date Retention of Professionals. After the Confirmation Date, any requirement that Professionals employed by the Debtors comply with sections 327 through 331 of the Bankruptcy Code in seeking retention or compensation for services rendered after such date will terminate, and the Reorganized Debtors will be authorized to employ and compensate Professionals

in the ordinary course of business and without the need for Bankruptcy Court approval.

X. EFFECTIVENESS OF THE PLAN

10.1. Conditions Precedent. The Plan shall not become effective unless and until the following conditions have been satisfied:

10.1.1. Conditions to Confirmation.

- 10.1.1.1. Disclosure Statement. The Bankruptcy Court shall have approved a Disclosure Statement with respect to the Plan as containing adequate information within the meaning of section 1125 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 10.1.1.2. **Plan Supplement.** The Plan Documents to be provided in the Plan Supplement are in a form that is reasonably satisfactory to the Debtors and WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities.
- 10.1.1.3. Confirmation Order. The Confirmation Order must be in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Debtors, and WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities, and must provide for the confirmation of the Plan with respect to each Debtor.

10.1.2. Conditions to Effective Date.

- 10.1.2.1. Confirmation Order. At least 10 days shall have passed after the Bankruptcy Court shall have entered the Confirmation Order in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Debtors and WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities.
- 10.1.2.2. No Stay of Confirmation. There shall not be in force any order, decree, or ruling of any court or governmental body having jurisdiction, restraining, enjoining, or staying the consummation of, or rendering illegal the transactions contemplated by, the Plan.
- 10.1.2.3. Receipt of Required Governmental Authorization. All governmental authorizations, consents, and regulatory approvals (if any) necessary to effectuate the Plan shall have been obtained.
- 10.1.2.4. Exit Revolver. The documents evidencing the Exit Revolver shall be in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Debtors and the Exit Revolving Lenders, shall have been executed and delivered by the respective parties thereto, and all conditions precedent to the effectiveness of such document shall have been satisfied or waived.
- 10.1.2.5. Term Loan Credit Agreement. The documents evidencing the Term Loan Credit Agreement shall be in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Debtors and the Exit Term Loan Lenders, shall have been executed and delivered by the respective parties thereto, and all conditions precedent to the effectiveness of each such document shall have been satisfied or waived.

- 10.1.2.6. *Plan Supplement.* All documents to be contained in the Plan Supplement shall be completed and in final form and, to the extent necessary, shall have been executed and delivered by the respective parties thereto.
- 10.1.2.7. Required Transactions. All transactions required by the Plan have been completed to the reasonable satisfaction of the Debtors and WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities.
- 10.1.2.8. IRS Tax Refund Claim. The Internal Revenue Service's proofs of claims filed in the Chapter 11 Cases with respect to the Form 1139 Carryback Refunds that were received in 2009 shall either be withdrawn or disallowed.
- 10.1.2.9 Restructuring Transactions. At the discretion of the Debtors and with the consent of WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities. (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld), the Restructuring Transactions described in the Restructuring Transactions Memorandum have been completed to the reasonable satisfaction of the Debtors and WFB as agent under the Exit Credit Facilities.
- 10.1.3. Waiver. Any of the conditions set forth in Sections 10.1.1 and 10.1.2 hereof may be waived by the party benefiting from such condition to the extent that such waiver does not affect the distributions hereunder.
- 10.2. Effect of Failure of Conditions. In the event that the conditions specified in Section 10.1. have not been satisfied or waived on or before 120 days after the Confirmation Date, then the Debtors may seek an order from the Bankruptey Court vacating the Confirmation Order. Such request shall be served upon counsel for the administrative agent under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, the administrative agent under the DIP Facility, the proposed administrative agent under the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Committee, and the U.S. Trustee. If the Confirmation Order is vacated, (i) the Plan shall be null and void in all respects; (ii) any settlement of Claims or Interests provided for hereby shall be null and void without further order of the Bankruptcy Court; and (iii) the time within which the Debtors may assume and assign or reject all Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases shall be extended for a period of 60 days after the date the Confirmation Order is vacated.

XI. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

- 11.1. Bankruptcy Court. Pursuant to sections 105(c) and 1142 of the Bankruptcy Code and notwithstanding entry of the Confirmation Order and the occurrence of the Effective Date, the Bankruptcy Court will retain exclusive jurisdiction over all matters arising out of, and related to, the Chapter 11 Cases and the Plan to the fullest extent permitted by law, including, among other things, jurisdiction to:
 - 11.1.1. allow, disallow, determine, liquidate, classify, estimate, or establish the priority or secured or unsecured status of any Claim or Interest, including, without limitation, the resolution of any request for payment of any Administrative Expense Claim or Priority Tax Claim and the resolution of any objections to the allowance or priority of Claims or Interests;

- 11.1.2. hear and rule upon all Causes of Action retained by the Debtors and commenced and/or pursued by the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors;
- 11.1.3. resolve any matters related to the rejection, assumption, or assumption and assignment of any Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease to which any Debtor is a party or with respect to which the Debtors may be liable and to hear, determine, and, if necessary, liquidate any Claims arising therefrom;
- 11.1.4. ensure that Distributions on account of Allowed Claims are accomplished pursuant to the provisions of the Plan;
- 11.1.5. decide or resolve any motions, adversary proceedings, contested, or litigated matters and any other matters and grant or deny any applications involving the Debtors that may be pending on the Effective Date;
- 11.1.6. enter such orders as may be necessary or appropriate to implement or consummate the provisions of the Plan and all contracts, instruments, releases, and other agreements or documents created in connection with the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the Disclosure Statement, or the Confirmation Order;
- 11.1.7. resolve any cases, controversies, suits, or disputes that may arise in connection with the consummation, interpretation, or enforcement of the Plan or any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement or document that is executed or created pursuant to the Plan, or any Person's rights arising from or obligations incurred in connection with the Plan or such documents;
- 11.1.8. approve any modification of the Plan before or after the Effective Date pursuant to section 1127 of the Bankruptcy Code or approve any modification of the Disclosure Statement, the Confirmation Order, or any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement or document created in connection with the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, or the Confirmation Order, or remedy any defect or omission or reconcile any inconsistency in any Bankruptcy Court order, the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, the Confirmation Order, or any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement or document created in connection with the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, or the Confirmation Order, in such manner as may be necessary or appropriate to consummate the Plan;
- 11.1.9. hear and determine all applications for compensation and reimbursement of expenses of Professionals under the Plan or under sections 330, 331, 363, 503(b), 1103, and 1129(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code, which shall be payable by the Debtors, or the Reorganized Debtors, as applicable, only upon allowance thereof pursuant to the order of the Bankruptcy Court; provided, however, that the fees and expenses of the Debtors incurred after the Confirmation Date, including attorneys' fees, may be paid by the Reorganized Debtors in the ordinary course of business and shall not be subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court;
- 11.1.10. issue injunctions, enter and implement other orders, or take such other actions as may be necessary or appropriate to restrain interference by

any Person with consummation of the Plan, implementation, or enforcement of the Plan or the Confirmation Order;

- 11.1.11. hear and determine matters concerning state, local, and federal taxes in accordance with sections 346, 505, and 1146 of the Bankruptcy Code;
- 11.1.12. enter and implement such orders as are necessary or appropriate if the Confirmation Order is for any reason or in any respect modified, stayed, reversed, revoked, or vacated, or if Distributions pursuant to the Plan are enjoined or stayed;
- 11.1.13. determine any other matters that may arise in connection with or relate to the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the Disclosure Statement, the Confirmation Order, or any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement, or document created in connection with the Plan, the Disclosure Statement, or the Confirmation Order;
- 11.1.14. enforce all orders, judgments, injunctions, releases, exculpations, indemnifications, and rulings entered in connection with the Chapter 11 Cases;
- 11.1.15. hear and determine all matters related to (i) the property of the Debtors and the Estates from and after the Confirmation Date and (ii) the activities of the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors; and
- 11.1.16. hear and determine such other matters as may be provided in the Confirmation Order or as may be authorized under the Bankruptcy Code.
- 11.1.17. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Plan to the contrary, any dispute arising under or in connection with the Exit Credit Facilities and/or Term Loan Credit Agreement shall be dealt with in accordance with the provisions of the applicable document: provided, however, that the Bankruptcy Court shall retain exclusive jurisdiction over any dispute regarding the parties' compliance with their respective obligations under that certain Financing Commitment letter dated as of December 14, 2009 between Building Materials Holding Corporation and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC and that certain Financing Commitment letter dated as of December 14, 2009 between Building Materials Holding Corporation and DK Acquisition Partners, L.P.

XII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 12.1. Plan Supplement. No later than 10 days prior to the Voting Deadline, the Debtors shall File with the Bankruptcy Court the Plan Supplement, which shall contain such agreements and other documents as may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate and further evidence the terms and conditions of the Plan. Holders of Claims or Interests may obtain a copy of the Plan Supplement upon written request to the Debtors' counsel.
- 12.2. Exemption for Registration Requirements. Pursuant to section 1145 of the Bankruptcy Code, the offering, issuance and Distribution of any securities

contemplated by the Plan shall be exempt from, among other things, the registration requirements of Section 5 of the Securities Act and any state or local law requiring registration prior to the offering, issuance, distribution or sale of securities. In addition, any securities contemplated by the Plan will be tradable by the recipients thereof, subject to (i) the provisions of section 1145(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code; and (ii) the restrictions, if any, on the transferability of such securities and instruments.

- 12.3. Statutory Fees. All fees payable pursuant to section 1930 of title 28 of the United States Code, as determined by the Bankruptcy Court at the Confirmation Hearing, shall be paid by the Debtors on or before the Effective Date.
- 12.4. Third Party Agreements. The Distributions to the various Classes of Claims and Interests hereunder shall not affect the right of any Person to levy, garnish, attach, or employ any other legal process with respect to such Distributions by reason of any claimed subordination rights or otherwise. All of such rights and any agreements relating thereto shall remain in full force and effect, except as compromised and settled pursuant to the Plan. Distributions shall be subject to and modified by any Final Order directing distributions other than as provided in the Plan.
- 12.5. Amendment or Modification of Plan. As provided in section 1127 of the Bankruptcy Code, modification of the Plan may be proposed in writing by the Debtors at any time before Confirmation, provided that the Plan, as modified, meets the requirements of sections 1122 and 1123 of the Bankruptcy Code, and the Debtors shall have complied with section 1125 of the Bankruptcy Code. The Debtors may modify the Plan at any time after Confirmation and before consummation of the Plan, provided that the Plan, as modified, meets the requirements of sections 1122 and 1123 of the Bankruptcy Code and the Bankruptcy Court, after notice and a hearing, confirms the Plan as modified, under section 1129 of the Bankruptcy Code, and the circumstances warrant such modifications. A Holder of a Claim that has accepted the Plan shall be deemed to have accepted such Plan as modified if the proposed alteration, amendment or modification does not materially and adversely change the treatment of the Claim or Interest of such Holder.
- 12.6. Severability. In the event that the Bankruptcy Court determines, prior to the Confirmation Date, that any provision in the Plan is invalid, void or unenforceable, the Reorganized Debtors may, at their option, (a) treat such provision as invalid, void or unenforceable with respect to the Holder or Holders of such Claims or Interests that the provision is determined to be invalid, void or unenforceable, in which case such provision shall in no way limit or affect the enforceability and operative effect of any other provision of the Plan, or (b) alter, amend, revoke, or withdraw the Plan.
- 12.7. Revocation or Withdrawal of Plan. The Debtors reserve the right to revoke and withdraw the Plan or to adjourn the Confirmation Hearing at any time prior to the occurrence of the Effective Date. If the Debtors revoke or withdraw the Plan, or if Confirmation or consummation does not occur, then (i) the Plan shall be null and void in all respects, (ii) any settlement or compromise embodied in the Plan, assumption or rejection of Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases

under the Plan, and any document or agreement executed pursuant to the Plan, shall be deemed null and void, and (iii) nothing contained in the Plan shall (A) constitute a waiver or release of any Claims by or against, or Interests in, such Debtors or any other Person, (B) prejudice in any manner the rights of such Debtors or any other Person, or (C) constitute an admission of any sort by the Debtors or any other Person.

For the avoidance of doubt, if the Confirmation Hearing is adjourned, the Debtors reserve the right to amend, modify, revoke or withdraw the Plan and/or submit any new plan of reorganization at such times and in such manner as they consider appropriate, subject to the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code.

- 12.8. Rules Governing Conflicts Between Documents. In the event of a conflict between the terms or provisions of the Plan and the Plan Documents, the terms of the Plan shall control over the Plan Documents. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Plan or the Plan Documents, on the one hand, and the terms of the Confirmation Order, on the other hand, the terms of the Confirmation Order shall control. In the event of a conflict between the information contained in the Disclosure Statement and the Plan or any other Plan Document, the Plan or other Plan Document (as the case may be) will control.
- 12.9. Governing Law. Except to the extent that federal law (including, but not limited to, the Bankruptcy Code and the Bankruptcy Rules) is applicable or the Plan provides otherwise, the rights and obligations arising under the Plan shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York without giving effect to its conflicts of law principles.
- 12.10. Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be provided under the Plan shall be in writing and served by either (a) certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (b) hand delivery, or (c) reputable overnight delivery service, freight prepaid. If to the Debtors, any such notice shall be directed to the following at the addresses set forth below:

Building Materials Holding Corporation 720 Park Boulevard Boise, Idaho 83712 Attention: Paul Street

- with copies to -

Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP 200 Park Avenue New York, New York 10166-0193 Attention: Michael A. Rosenthal and Matthew K. Kelsey

– and --

Young Conaway Stargatt & Taylor, LLP The Brandywine Building 1000 West Street 17th Floor

Wilmington, Delaware 19801 Attention: Sean M. Beach and Robert F. Poppiti

- 12.11. Interest and Attorneys' Fees. Interest accrued after the Petition Date will accrue and be paid on Claims only to the extent specifically provided for in the Plan, the Confirmation Order or as otherwise required by the Bankruptcy Court or by applicable law. No award or reimbursement of attorneys' fees or related expenses or disbursements shall be allowed on, or in connection with, any Claim, except as set forth in the Plan or as ordered by the Bankruptcy Court.
- 12.12. Binding Effect. The Plan shall be binding upon the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, the Holders of all Claims and Interests, parties in interest, Persons, and Governmental Units and their respective successors and assigns. To the extent any provision of the Disclosure Statement or any other solicitation document may be inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, the terms of the Plan shall be binding and conclusive.
- 12.13. No Admissions. As to contested matters, adversary proceedings and other Causes of Action or threatened Causes of Action, nothing in the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the Disclosure Statement, or other Plan Documents shall constitute or be construed as an admission of any fact or liability, stipulation, or waiver, but rather as a statement made in settlement negotiations. The Plan shall not be construed to be conclusive advice on the tax, securities, and other legal effects of the Plan as to Holders of Claims against, or Interests in, the Debtors or any of their subsidiaries and affiliates, as debtors and debtors in possession in the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 12.14. Exhibits. All Exhibits and Schedules to the Plan are incorporated into and are a part of the Plan as if set forth in full herein.
 - -- The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank --

The undersigned have executed this Joint Plan of Reorganization For the Debtors Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code as of the 22nd14th day of October December, 2009.

Respectfully submitted,

Dated: Wilmington, Delaware
October 22-December 14, 2009

BUILDING MATERIALS HOLDING CORPORATION, on behalf of itself and all the other Debtors

By: Paul S. Street

Title: Senior Vice President,

General Counsel Chief Administrative Officer, and Corporate Secretary

COUNSEL

YOUNG CONAWAY STARGATT &

TAYLOR, LLP

Sean M. Beach (No. 4070)

Donald J. Bowman Jr. (No. 4383)

Robert F. Poppiti, Jr. (No. 5052)

The Brandywine Building

1000 West St., 17th Floor

Wilmington, DE 19801

Telephone:

302.571.6600

Facsimile:

302.571.1253

---- and --- .

GIBSON, DUNN & CRUTCHER LLP

Michael A. Rosenthal (admitted pro hac vice)

Matthew K. Keisey (admitted pro hac vice)

Aaron G. York (admitted pro hac vice)

200 Park Ave, 47th Floor

New York, NY 10166-0193

Telephone:

212.351.4000

Facsimile:

212.351.4035

ATTORNEYS FOR DEBTORS AND DEBTORS IN POSSESSION

PLAN APPENDIX A

Uniform Glossary of Defined Terms for Plan Documents

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms, when used in initially capitalized form in the Plan, Disclosure Statement, related exhibits, and Plan Documents, shall have the following meanings. Such meanings shall be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of such terms. Any term used in capitalized form that is not defined herein but that is defined in the Bankruptcy Code or the Bankruptcy Rules shall have the meaning ascribed to such term by the Bankruptcy Code or the Bankruptcy Rules (with the Bankruptcy Code controlling in the event of a conflict or ambiguity). Certain defined terms used in only one Section of the Disclosure Statement are defined in such Section. The rules of construction set forth herein and in section 102 of the Bankruptcy Code shall apply. All references to the "Plan" shall be construed, where applicable, to include references to the Plan and all its exhibits, appendices, schedules, and annexes (and any amendments made in accordance with their terms or applicable law).

- 1. Administrative Expense means any cost or expense of administration of the Chapter 11 Cases incurred before the Effective Date and allowable under section 503(b) of the Bankruptcy Code and entitled to priority under section 507(a)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code including: (i) any actual and necessary postpetition cost or expense of preserving the Estates or operating the businesses of the Debtors; (ii) any payment required to cure a default on an assumed executory contract or unexpired lease; (iii) any postpetition cost, indebtedness, or contractual obligation duly and validly incurred or assumed by a Debtor in the ordinary course of its business; and (iv) compensation or reimbursement of expenses of Professionals to the extent allowed by the Bankruptcy Court under sections 330(a) or 331 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 2. Administrative Expense Claim means any Claim for the payment of an Administrative Expense.
 - 3. Affiliate has the meaning set forth in section 101(2) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 4. Allowed means with respect to any Claim, except as otherwise provided herein: (i) a Claim that is scheduled by the Debtors on their Schedules as neither disputed, contingent, nor unliquidated, and as to which the Debtors or other party in interest have not Filed an objection by the Claims Objection Bar Date; (ii) a Claim that either is not a Disputed Claim or has been Allowed by a Final Order; (iii) a Claim that is Allowed (a) pursuant to the Plan, (b) in any stipulation that is approved by the Bankruptcy Court, or (c) pursuant to any contract, instrument, indenture, or other agreement entered into or assumed in connection with the Plan; (iv) a Claim relating to a rejected Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease that either (a) is not a Disputed Claim or (b) has been Allowed by Final Order; (v) a Claim that is Allowed pursuant to the terms of the Plan; or (vi) a Claim as to which a Proof of Claim has been timely Filed and as to which no objection has been filed by the Claims Objection Bar Date.
- 5. Allowed Amount of any Claim or Interest means the amount at which that Claim or Interest is Allowed.
- 6. Allowed Claim; Allowed Interest means any Claim or Interest in any of the Debtors or their respective Estates, (i) proof of which was filed on or before the Bar Date, (ii) if no such proof of Claim or Interest has been timely filed, which has been or hereafter is listed by such Debtor in its Schedules as liquidated in amount and not disputed or contingent, or (iii) any Interest registered in the stock or membership register, as the case may be, maintained by or on behalf of the Debtor as of the

Record Date, in each such case in clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) above, a Claim or Interest as to which no objection to the allowance thereof, or action to equitably subordinate or otherwise seek recovery from the Holder of the Claim or Interest, has been interposed within the applicable period of limitation fixed by the Plan, the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, or a Final Order, or as to which an objection has been interposed and such Claim has been allowed in whole or in part by a Final Order.

- 7. Assets means all property in which the Debtors hold a legal or equitable interest, including all property described in section 541 of the Bankruptcy Code and all property disclosed in Debtors' respective Schedules and the Disclosure Statement.
- 8. Avoidance Actions means any and all actual or potential Claims to avoid a transfer of property or an obligation incurred by the Debtors pursuant to any applicable section of the Bankruptcy Code, including, without limitation, sections 544, 545, 547, 548, 549, 550, 551, 553(b), and 724(a) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 9. Ballot means each of the ballot forms for voting to accept or reject the Plan distributed to all Holders of Impaired Claims entitled to vote on the Plan.
- 10. Balloting and Claims Agent means The Garden City Group, Inc., retained by the Debtors in the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 11. Bankruptcy Code means title 11 of the United States Code, 11 U.S.C. sections 101-1532, as in effect on the Petition Date, together with all amendments and modifications thereto subsequently made, to the extent applicable to the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 12. Bankruptcy Court means the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware or any other court having jurisdiction over the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 13. Bankruptcy Rules means the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and the local rules and general orders of the Bankruptcy Court, as in effect on the Petition Date, together with all amendments and modifications thereto subsequently made applicable to the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 14. Bar Date means the date(s) by which any Entity asserting certain Claims against the Debtors must have filed a Proof of Claim or be forever barred from asserting such Claims against the Debtors or their Estates, as established by any order(s) of the Bankruptcy Court or the Plan.
- 15. Bar Date Order means the Final Order entered by the Bankruptcy Court on July 16, 2009 establishing August 31, 2009 as the general Bar Date and December 16, 2009 as the Bar Date applicable to Governmental Units, and any subsequent order by the Bankruptcy Court amending, revising, rescinding, or superseding the same.
 - 16. BMC West means BMC West Corporation, a Debtor.
- 17. BMC West Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against BMC West bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 18. BMHC means Building Materials Holding Corporation, a Debtor.

- 19. BMHC Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against BMHC bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
- 20. Business Day means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday (as such term is defined in Bankruptcy Rule 9006(a)).
 - 21. C Construction means C Construction, Inc., a Debtor.
- 22. C Construction Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against C Construction bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 23. Cash means the legal tender of the United States of America.
- 24. Cash Claims means Administrative Claims, Cure Claims, Professional Compensation Claims, Other Priority Claims and Other Secured Claims.
- 25. Cash Claims Reserve means an amount of Cash equal to the sum of (i) the Maximum Amount of each Disputed Cash Claim, plus (ii) an amount determined by the Debtors sufficient to pay the unpaid estimated Administrative Claims that accrue on or after the Petition Date through the Confirmation Date.
- 26. Cash Collateral Account shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the DIP Facility.
- 27. Causes of Action means all actions, causes of action, liabilities, obligations, rights, suits, damages, judgments, remedies, demands, setoffs, defenses, recoupments, crossclaims, counterclaims, third-party claims, indemnity claims, contribution claims, or any other claims whatsoever, in each case held by the Debtors, whether known or unknown, matured or unmatured, fixed or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated, disputed or undisputed, suspected or unsuspected, foreseen or unforeseen, direct or indirect, choate or inchoate, existing or hereafter arising, in law, equity, or otherwise, based in whole or in part upon any act or omission or other event occurring prior to the Petition Date or during the course of the Chapter 11 Cases, including through the Effective Date.
 - 28. Certificate means any instrument evidencing a Claim or an Interest.
- 29. Chapter 11 Cases means (i) when used with reference to a particular Debtor, the chapter 11 case pending for that Debtor under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Court, and (ii) when used with reference to all Debtors, the procedurally consolidated chapter 11 cases pending for the Debtors in Bankruptcy Court.
- 30. Claim has the meaning set forth in section 101(5) of the Bankruptcy Code, against any Debtor or any Estate whether or not asserted.
 - 31. Claimant means the Holder of a Claim.
- 32. Claims Objection Bar Date means, with respect to any Claim, the 180th day following the latest of the Effective Date, the date such Claim is Filed, and such later date as may be

established from time to time by the Bankruptcy Court as the last date for filing objections to such Claims.

- 33. Class means a category of Holders of Claims or Interests, as set forth in Article III of the Plan, pursuant to section 1122 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 34. Class Action Claims means any General Unsecured Claim, Small Unsecured Claim or Cash Claim arising from those certain lawsuits styled as follows: (i) Eduardo Acevedo, et al. v. Building Materials Holding Corporation, et al., Case No. CV 08-06227 SJO (Cwx) pending in the District Court for the Central District of California and (ii) Pedro Alvarado, an individual, on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated v. Building Materials Holding Corporation, a Delaware Corporation, SelectBuild Construction, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, SelectBuild Southern California, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, H.N.R. Framing Systems, Inc.., a California Corporation, and Does 1 through 50, inclusive, Case No. BC391029 pending in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles.
- 35. Collateral means any property or interest in property of an Estate that is subject to a Lien to secure the payment or performance of a Claim, which Lien is not subject to avoidance or otherwise invalid under the Bankruptcy Code or applicable state law.
- 36. Collective Bargaining Agreements means those certain collective bargaining agreements entered into by certain of the Debtors from time to time to with the following Persons: (i) Chicago Regional Council of Carpenters and Residential Construction Employers Council; (ii) U.B.C. Industrial Local Union No. 2218; (iii) Lumber, Production & Industrial Workers Union Local No. 2633; (iv) General Teamsters Local Union No. 174; (v) General Teamsters Local Union No. 313; (vi) General Teamsters Local Union No. 431; and (vii) Western Council of Industrial Workers Union Local No. 2633.
- 37. Committee means the official committee of unsecured creditors for the Debtors appointed by the U.S. Trustee on June 26, 2009, as presently constituted.
- 38. Confirmation, Confirmation of the Plan, or Plan Confirmation means the approval of the Plan by the Bankruptcy Court at the Confirmation Hearing.
- 39. Confirmation Date means the date on which the Confirmation Order is entered on the docket of the Bankruptcy Court.
- 40. Confirmation Hearing means the hearing held by the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to section 1128 of the Bankruptcy Code to consider Confirmation of the Plan, as such hearing may be adjourned or continued from time to time.
- 41. Confirmation Order means the order of the Bankruptcy Court confirming the Plan pursuant to section 1129 and other applicable sections of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 42. Creditor means any Person holding a Claim against a Debtor's Estate or pursuant to section 102(5) of the Bankruptcy Code against property of the Debtor that arose or is deemed to have arisen on or prior to the Petition Date.
- 43. Cure Claim means a Claim based upon the Debtors' defaults on an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease at the time such contract or lease is assumed by the Debtors pursuant to section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code; provided, however, that the Cure Claim for Insurance Policies and Agreements shall be the liquidated amount due and owing at the time of the assumption thereof and the

applicable Debtor (or after the Effective Date, the applicable Reorganized Debtor) shall remain liable for any Claim under Insurance Policies and Agreements that becomes liquidated, or is due and owing, after the time of assumption (regardless of when the underlying cause of action and/or claim arose) and shall pay such Claim in the ordinary course of business.

- 44. Debtor means any of the Debtors.
- 45. Debtors has the meaning ascribed to such term in the "Introduction" of the Plan.
- 46. *DIP Facility* means the Senior Secured Super-Priority Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement, which was approved by the DIP Order.
 - 47. DIP Lenders means those Persons committed to fund the DIP Facility.
- 48. DIP Order means the Final Order dated July 1, 2009 entered by the Bankruptcy Court authorizing the Debtors to enter into the DIP Facility.
 - 49. Disbursing Agent means the Persons identified as such in Section 8.1 of the Plan.
- 50. Disclosure Statement means the Disclosure Statement in Support of the Joint Plan of Reorganization for the Debtors Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code amended October 22, 2009, including all exhibits attached thereto or referenced therein, as submitted by the Debtors pursuant to section 1125 of the Bankruptcy Code and approved by the Bankruptcy Court in the Disclosure Statement Approval Order, as such Disclosure Statement may be further amended, supplemented, or modified from time to time with the further approval of the Bankruptcy Court.
- 51. Disclosure Statement Approval Order means the order of the Bankruptcy Court, dated October 22, 2009, approving the Disclosure Statement.
 - 52. Disputed Cash Claim means any Cash Claim that is not yet Allowed.
 - 53. Disputed Claim means any Claim that is not yet Allowed.
- 54. Disputed General Unsecured Claims means any General Unsecured Claim that is a Disputed Claim.
- 55. Distribution means any distribution by the Disbursing Agent to the Holders of Allowed Claims pursuant to Article VIII of the Plan.
- (other than a Small Unsecured Claim), the date that is as soon as practicable after the later of: (i) the Effective Date, (ii) the date a Claim becomes payable pursuant to any agreement with the Disbursing Agent, or (iii) solely with respect to Disputed Claims as of the Effective Date, no later than 30 days after the date upon which the Claim or Interest becomes an Allowed Claim, and (b) when used with respect to a Small Unsecured Claim, the date that is as soon as practicable after all Small Unsecured Claims that are Disputed Claims as of the Effective Date become Allowed Claims.
- 57. Distribution Record Date means the record date for purposes of making distributions under the Plan on account of Allowed Claims, which date shall be five Business Days after the Confirmation Date.

- 58. Effective Date means the date specified by the Debtors in a notice filed with the Bankruptcy Court as the date on which the Plan shall take effect, which date shall be not more than 10 Business Days after the later of (i) the date on which the Confirmation Order shall have been entered and is no longer subject to any stay; and (ii) the date on which the conditions to the Effective Date provided for in Section 10.1.2 of the Plan have been satisfied or waived.
- 59. Equity Security means any equity security as defined in section 101(16) of the Bankruptcy Code in a Debtor.
- 60. Estate means, as to each Debtor, the estate created for such Debtor in its Chapter 11 Case pursuant to section 541 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 61. Excess Cash Flow shall have the meaning assigned to such term in, and be calculated in accordance with, the Term Loan Credit Agreement.
- 62. Exculpated Parties means (i) the Debtors and each of the Debtors' respective officers, directors, employees, Professionals, and agents, (ii) the Committee, its members, and Professionals, (iii) WFB, in its capacity as Agent under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, and its officers, directors, employees, professionals, and agents, (iii) the Prepetition Lenders and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, professionals, and agents, and (iv) the DIP Lenders and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, professionals, and agents.
- 63. Executory Contracts means a contract to which one or more of the Debtors is a party and that is subject to assumption or rejection under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.
 - 64. Exit Credit Facilities means the Exit Revolver and the Exit Term Loan.
- 65. Exit Credit Facilities Lenders means, collectively, the Exit Revolver Lenders and the Exit Term Loan Lenders.
- 66. Exit Revolver means that certain revolving credit facility in an amount equal to \$50,000,000 effectuated pursuant to the Revolving Credit Agreement, substantially in the form contained in the Plan Supplement.
- 67. Exit Revolver Lenders means the Person(s) who have committed to providing the Exit Revolver.
- 68. Exit Term Loan means that certain term loan facility in an amount equal to \$53,500,00040,000,000 effectuated pursuant to the Exit Term Loan Credit Agreement, substantially in the form contained in the Plan Supplement.
- 69. Exit Term Loan Lenders means the Person(s) who have committed to providing the Exit Term Loan.
- 70. Exit Term Loan Credit Agreement means the exit term loan credit agreement, and all documents related thereto, including the Intercreditor Agreement, to be entered into by the Reorganized Debtors and the Exit Term Loan Lenders, the provisions of which shall give effect to the Exit Term Loan. The Exit Term Loan Credit Agreement shall be substantially in the form contained in the Plan Supplement.

- 71. Federal Judgment Rate means the federal judgment rate of .51%, which was in effect as of the Petition Date.
- 72. File or Filed means file, filed, or filing with the Bankruptcy Court or its authorized designee in the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 73. Final Order means, as applicable, an order or judgment of the Bankruptcy Court or other court of competent jurisdiction with respect to the relevant subject matter, which has not been reversed, stayed, modified, or amended, and as to which the time to appeal, seek certiorari, or move for a new trial, reargument, or rehearing has expired and no appeal, petition for certiorari, or motion for a new trial, reargument, or rehearing has been timely filed, or as to which any appeal that has been taken, any petition for certiorari, or motion for a new trial, reargument, or rehearing that has been or may be Filed has been resolved by the highest court to which the order or judgment was appealed or from which certiorari was sought.
- 74. Funded Lender Claim means a Claim arising under the Prepetition Revolving Credit Facility and the Prepetition Term Loan that are held by the Prepetition Revolving Lenders and the Prepetition Term Loan Lenders, respectively, including, without limitation, any claims of the Prepetition Letters of Credit that have been liquidated prior to the Petition Date, all accrued and unpaid interest, fees, and expenses, claims arising from swap agreements contemplated by the Prepetition Credit Agreement, accrued and unpaid interest payable in kind under the Prepetition by the Prepetition Date, and other liquidated Obligations (as such term is defined in the Prepetition Credit Agreement) arising as of the Petition Date under the Prepetition Revolving Credit Facility and the Prepetition Term Loan.
- 75. Funded Lender's Share of Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount means, as to each Allowed Funded Lender Claim, that amount equal to the Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount multiplied by that ratio (expressed as a percentage) that such Allowed Funded Lender Claim on the Effective Date bears to the aggregate of (i) all Liquidated L/C Amounts of Allowed L/C Lender Claims on the Effective Date and (ii) all Allowed Funded Lender Claims on the Effective Date.
- 76. General Unsecured Claim means any Unsecured Claim that is not an L/C General Unsecured Claim, an Intercompany Claim, or a Section 510(b) Claim.
- 77. Governmental Unit has the meaning ascribed to such term in section 101(27) of the Bankruptcy Code.
 - 78. H.N.R. Framing Systems means H.N.R. Framing Systems, Inc., a Debtor.
- 79. H.N.R. Framing Systems Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against H.N.R. Framing Systems bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 80. Holder means any Person holding an Interest or Claim.
 - 81. Illinois Framing means Illinois Framing, Inc., a Debtor.
- 82. Illinois Framing Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the

amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against Illinois Framing bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.

- 83. Impaired means a Claim or a Class of Claims that is impaired within the meaning of section 1124 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 84. Insurance Policies and Agreements means all of the Debtors' insurance policies and any agreements, documents, or instruments relating thereto including, without limitation, all payment and collateral agreements.
- 85. Insured Claim means a Claim covered by one or more of the Debtors' Insurance Policies and Agreements, including, but not limited to, tort claims, property damage claims, personal injury claims, general liability claims, automobile liability claims and employer liability and workers' compensation claims within or above the applicable deductible or self insured retention under the applicable policy.
- 86. Intercompany Claim means any Claim held by a Debtor against another Debtor or any Claim held by an Affiliate against a Debtor.
- 87. Intercompany Contracts means any Executory Contract by or between or among any of the Debtors.
- 88. Intercompany Interest means an Interest in a Debtor held by another Debtor or an Interest in a Debtor held by an Affiliate of a Debtor.
- 89. Intercreditor Agreement means the agreement to be entered into, or deemed to be entered into, by the Reorganized Debtors, the Exit Credit Facilities Lenders and the Prepetition Lenders (as parties to the Term Loan Credit Agreement), and/or the agents for such parties, setting forth, among other things, the intercreditor agreements related to the Exit Credit Facilities and the Term Loan Credit Agreement.
- 90. Interim Compensation Order means the order entered by the Bankruptcy Court on July 16, 2009 establishing procedures for interim compensation and reimbursement of expenses of Professionals of the Debtors and the Committee.
- 91. Interest means any: (i) Equity Security, including all issued, unissued, authorized, or outstanding shares of capital stock of the Debtors, together with any warrants, options, or contractual rights to purchase or acquire such Equity Securities at any time and all rights arising with respect thereto; and (ii) partnership, limited liability company, or similar interest in a Debtor.
- 92. L/C General Unsecured Claim means an Unsecured Claim for which (a) the Holder is a beneficiary of a Prepetition Letter of Credit; or (b), the Holder both (i) has an Insured Claim or a claim that is covered by a performance bond, and (ii) the nonpayment of such claim by the Debtors would entitle an insurer or surety under an Insurance Policy and Agreement to draw under one or more Prepetition Letters of Credit.
- 93. L/C Lender Claim means the Claim held by a Prepetition L/C Lender pursuant to the Prepetition Letters of Credit, which Claim has not been liquidated prior to the Petition Date and which shall be estimated and Allowed solely for purposes of voting under the Plan at the face amount of a Prepetition L/C Lender's Pro Rata share of the outstanding Prepetition Letters of Credit as of the Petition

Date and shall be Allowed for purposes of distributions under the Plan in the Liquidated L/C Amount to the extent a Prepetition Letter of Credit is drawn after the Petition Date.

- 94. L/C Lender Claim Equity Conversion Ratio means the ratio of (i) the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance, divided by (ii) the sum of the aggregate amount of all Allowed Funded Lender Claims and the aggregate amount of all Allowed L/C Lender Claims liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date.
- 95. L/C Lender Equity Reserve means the number of shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests that may be issuable from time to time after the Effective Date under Section 4.3.2.2 of the Plan to Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims.
- 96. L/C Lender's Share of Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount means, as to any Liquidated L/C Amount of an Allowed L/C Lender Claim on the Effective Date, that amount equal to the Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount multiplied by that ratio (expressed as a percentage) that such Liquidated L/C Amount on the Effective Date bears to the aggregate of (i) all Liquidated L/C Amounts of Allowed L/C Lender Claims on the Effective Date and (ii) all Allowed Funded Lender Claims on the Effective Date.
- 97. L/C Lender Fee means that certain standby letter of credit fee equal to 2.5% per annum, which fee shall accrue quarterly in arrears and shall, at Reorganized BMHC's option, be paid in kind for the first eight quarters after the Effective Date and, thereafter, be paid quarterly in arrears in Cash.
 - 98. Lien has the meaning set forth in section 101(37) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 99. Life Insurance Policies means those life insurance policies purchased by the Debtors on the lives of the participants in the Supplemental Employee Retirement Programs.
- 100. Liquidated L/C Amount means that amount, if any, paid with respect to a draw on a Prepetition Letter of Credit whether by WFB, as the letter of credit issuer under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, or by the Prepetition Revolving Lenders in respect of their several reimbursement obligations to WFB arising under the Prepetition Credit Agreement; if and to the extent that WFB is reimbursed by a Prepetition Revolving Lender in respect of its several reimbursement obligation to WFB arising under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, the Liquidated L/C Amount paid shall be deemed to have been paid by such Prepetition Revolving Lender and not by WFB.
- 101. Liquidation Analysis means the liquidation analysis attached as Exhibit E to the Disclosure Statement.
- 102. Long Term Incentive Plan means that certain post-Effective Date management equity incentive plan that shall be implemented by the New Board of Reorganized BMHC as soon after the Effective Date as reasonably practicable, and shall consist of restricted stock units, stock options, and/or stock appreciation rights in an amount up to 10% of the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, measured on a fully-diluted basis (including after giving effect to the L/C Lender Equity Reserve), some portion of which shall be allocated to management by the New Board of Reorganized BMHC within 90 days of the Effective Date.
- 103. Maximum Amount means, with respect to any Disputed Claim: (i) the amount agreed to by the Disbursing Agent and the Holder of such Claim; (ii) the amount, if any, estimated or determined by the Bankruptcy Court in accordance with section 502(c) of the Bankruptcy Code; or (iii)

absent any such agreement, estimation, or determination, the liquidated amount set forth in the proof of claim Filed by the Holder of such Claim or, if no amount is so set forth, the amount estimated by the Disbursing Agent.

- 104. Maximum L/C Lenders Term Note Cap means that amount equal to (i) the Peak Prepetition Letters of Credit Exposure Prior to the Confirmation Date multiplied by that ratio (expressed as a percentage) that \$135,000,000 bears to the aggregate Allowed Funded Lender Claims, less (ii) the aggregate L/C Lender's Share of Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount as to all Allowed L/C Lender Claims.
- 105. Maximum Funded Lenders Term Note Cap means that amount equal to \$135,000,000 less the aggregate Funded Lender's Share of Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount as to all Allowed Funded Lender Claims.
 - 106. New Boards means the initial boards of directors of the Reorganized Debtors.
- 107. New Bylaws means the form of the bylaws of each of Reorganized BMHC and the other Reorganized Debtors, which form shall be included in the Plan Supplement.
- 108. New Certificate of Incorporation means the form of the certificates of incorporation or other formation document of each of Reorganized BMHC and the other Reorganized Debtors, which form shall be included in the Plan Supplement.
- 109. Other Priority Claim means any Claim, other than an Administrative Claim or a Priority Tax Claim, entitled to priority in right of payment under section 507(a) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 110. Other Secured Claim means any Secured Claim that is not a Funded Lender Claim or an L/C Lender Claim.
- 111. Peak Prepetition Letters of Credit Exposure Prior to the Confirmation Date means the highest aggregate exposure under the Prepetition Letters of Credit occurring prior to the Confirmation Date.
- 112. Person means any person, including without limitation, any individual, entity, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, joint venture, association, joint stock company, estate, trust, unincorporated association or organization, official committee, ad hoc committee or group, governmental agency or political subdivision thereof, the U.S. Trustee, and any successors or assigns of any of the foregoing.
- 113. Petition Date means June 16, 2009, the date on which the Chapter 11 Cases were commenced with the filing of voluntary petitions for relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 114. *Plan* means the Joint Plan of Reorganization for the Debtors Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code Amended October 22, 2009, December 14, 2009 (With Technical Modifications), and all exhibits attached thereto or referenced therein including, without limitation, the Plan Supplement, as the same may be amended, modified, or supplemented from time to time.
- 115. Plan Documents means the Plan, the Plan Supplement, the Disclosure Statement, and all documents, attachments, and exhibits attached to the Plan or the Disclosure Statement that aid in

effectuating the Plan, as the same may be amended, modified, or supplemented, in accordance with their terms.

- 116. Plan Supplement means the supplement to the Plan in form and substance satisfactory to the Debtors to be filed with the Bankruptcy Court not later than 10 days prior to the Voting Deadline (as it may be subsequently amended), which shall contain, among other things, forms of final documents described in the Plan.
- 117. Postpetition Period means the period of time following the Petition Date through the Confirmation Date.
- 118. Prepetition Credit Agreement means that certain Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2006 (as amended from time to time) by and among BMHC, as borrower, the Subsidiary Debtors, as guarantors, WFB, as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto.
- 119. *Prepetition L/C Lenders* means those Persons responsible to make payments in respect of draws on the Prepetition Letters of Credit.
- 120. *Prepetition Lenders* means the Prepetition Revolving Lenders, the Prepetition Term Loan Lenders, and the Prepetition L/C Lenders.
- 121. Prepetition Letters of Credit means those certain letters of credit in favor of certain of the Debtors' creditors issued by WFB under the terms of the Prepetition Credit Agreement.
- 122. Prepetition Revolving Credit Facility means that \$200,000,000 revolving credit facility under the Prepetition Credit Agreement maturing November 2011.
- 123. Prepetition Revolving Lenders means those Persons who have committed to fund the Prepetition Revolving Credit Facility.
- 124. *Prepetition Term Loan* means that \$340,000,000 term loan facility under the Prepetition Credit Agreement maturing November 2011.
- 125. Prepetition Term Loan Lenders means those Persons who hold the Prepetition Term Loan.
- 126. Priority Tax Claim means a Claim of a kind specified in section 507(a)(8) of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 127. *Pro Rata* means, with reference to any Distribution on account of any Allowed Claim or Allowed Interest in a Class, a Distribution equal in amount to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of such claim bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed Claims in the same Class.
- 128. Professional Compensation Claim means all Administrative Expense Claims for compensation, indemnification, or reimbursement of expenses incurred by Professionals through the Confirmation Date pursuant to section 327, 328, 330, 331, 363, or 503(b) of the Bankruptcy Code in connection with the Chapter 11 Cases.
- 129. *Professionals* means those Persons (a) employed pursuant to an order of the Bankruptcy Court in accordance with sections 327, 328, 363, or 1103 of the Bankruptcy Code and to be

compensated for services pursuant to sections 327, 328, 329, 330, 331, and 363 of the Bankruptcy Code, for which compensation and reimbursement has been allowed by the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to section 503(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code and/or (b) for which compensation and reimbursement has been allowed by the Bankruptcy Court or is sought pursuant to section 503(b)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code.

- 130. *Proof of Claim* means any proof of claim filed with the Bankruptcy Court or the Balloting and Claims Agent with respect to a Debtor pursuant to section 501 of the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rules 3001 or 3002.
 - 131. Record Date means the date of entry of the Disclosure Statement Approval Order.
- 132. Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List means the list (as may be amended or modified from time to time prior to the Effective Date), as determined by the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases (including any amendments or modifications thereto) that will be rejected by the Debtors pursuant to Article VI of this Plan.
- 133. Released Parties means (i) each of the Debtors' respective officers, directors, Professionals, agents, and employees, (ii) WFB, in its capacity as Agent under the Prepetition Credit Agreement, and its officers, directors, employees, professionals, and agents, and (iii) the Prepetition Lenders and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, professionals, and agents.
- 134. Reorganized means, when used with reference to the Debtor, such Debtor on and after the Effective Date.
- 135. Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests means up to 200 million shares of the common voting stock, par value of \$.01 per share, of Reorganized BMHC authorized under the New Certificate of Incorporation of Reorganized BMHC, a portion of which shall initially be issued to Holders of Allowed Claims in Classes 2 and 3 in accordance with the provisions of the Plan, subject to dilution by (i) future issuances to Holders of Allowed Claims in Class 3 in accordance with the provisions of the Plan, and (ii) future issuances in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan.
- shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance means the number of shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, rounded to the nearest whole number, issued (or deemed issued under the terms of the Plan) on the Effective Date, 100% of which will be issued (or deemed issued under the terms of the Plan) to (i) the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims and (ii) the Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date (if any). The number of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests issued in connection with the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance shall reserve for the number of shares issuable in respect of the L/C Lender Equity Reserve and the Long Term Incentive Plan.
- 137. Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Funded Lender Issuance means the number of shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, rounded to the nearest whole number, issued (or deemed issued under the terms of the Plan) on the Effective Date to the Holders of Allowed Funded Lender Claims equal to (i) the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance, multiplied by (ii) the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that (a) the aggregate amount of all Allowed Funded Lender Claims bears to (b) the sum of the aggregate amount of all Allowed Funded Lender Claims and the aggregate amount of all Allowed L/C Lender Claims liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date.

- shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest L/C Lender Issuance means the number of shares of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, rounded to the nearest whole number, issued (or deemed issued under the terms of the Plan) on the Effective Date to the Holders of Allowed L/C Lender Claims equal to (i) the Reorganized BMHC Equity Interest Effective Date Issuance, multiplied by (ii) the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that (a) the aggregate amount of all Allowed L/C Lender Claims liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date bears to (b) the sum of the aggregate amount of all Allowed L/C Lender Claims liquidated from and after the Petition Date through the Effective Date.
 - 139. Reorganized Debtors Operating Cash Minimum shall mean the sum of \$6,000,0000.
- 140. Reorganized Subsidiary Equity Interests means 100% of the shares of the common voting stock or limited liability company interests, as applicable, of each of the respective Reorganized Subsidiary Debtors which may be issued to Holders of Allowed Claims in Classes 2(b)-2(l) in accordance with section 5.5.2 of the Plan.
- 141. Restructuring Transactions means those mergers, amalgamations, consolidations, arrangements, continuances, restructurings, transfers, conversions, dispositions, liquidations, dissolutions, or other corporate transactions that the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors determine to be necessary or appropriate to effect a restructuring of a Debtor's business or a restructuring of the overall corporate structure of the Reorganized Debtors, including those described in the Restructuring Transactions Memorandum.
- 142. Restructuring Transactions Memorandum means the memorandum describing the Restructuring Transactions, if any, which will be included in the Plan Supplement.
- 143. Revolving Credit Agreement means the revolving credit agreement, and all documents related thereto, including the Intercreditor Agreement, to be entered into by the Reorganized Debtors and the Exit Revolver Lenders, the provisions of which shall give effect to the Exit Revolver. The Revolving Credit Agreement shall be substantially in the form filed in the Plan Supplement.
- 144. Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the DIP Facility.
- 145. Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account Effective Date Amount means the amount of Cash in the Sale Cash Collateral Excess Proceeds Account, less (i) amounts required to repay the DIP Facility in full and (ii) amounts required to fund the Reorganized Debtors Operating Cash Minimum.
- 146. Schedules means the schedules, statements, and lists filed by the Debtors with the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 1007, as may be amended or supplemented from time to time.
- 147. Section 510(b) Claims means any Claim against the Debtors arising from rescission of a purchase or sale of a security of the Debtors or an Affiliate of the Debtors, for damages arising from the purchase or sale of such a security, or for reimbursement or contribution allowed under section 502 of the Bankruptcy Code on account of such a Claim.
- 148. Secured means when referring to a Claim: (i) secured by a Lien on property in which an Estate has an interest, which Lien is valid, perfected, and enforceable pursuant to applicable law or by reason of a Bankruptcy Court order, or that is subject to setoff pursuant to section 553 of the

Bankruptcy Code, to the extent of the value of the creditor's interest in the Estate's interest in such property or to the extent of the amount subject to setoff, as applicable, as determined pursuant to section 506(a) of the Bankruptcy Code or (ii) Allowed as such pursuant to the Plan.

- 149. Securities Act means the Securities Act of 1933, 15 U.S.C. §§ 77a-77m, as in effect on the Petition Date, together with all amendments and modifications thereto subsequently made applicable to the Chapter 11 Cases.
 - 150. SelectBuild Arizona means SelectBuild Arizona, LLC, a Debtor.
- 151. SelectBuild Arizona Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Arizona bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 152. SelectBuild Construction means SelectBuild Construction, Inc., a Debtor.
- 153. SelectBuild Construction Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Construction bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 154. SelectBuild Illinois means SelectBuild Illinois, LLC, a Debtor.
- 155. SelectBuild Illinois Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Illinois bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
 - 156. SelectBuild Nevada means SelectBuild Nevada, Inc., a Debtor.
- 157. SelectBuild Nevada Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Nevada bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
- 158. SelectBuild Northern California means SelectBuild Northern California, Inc., a Debtor.
- 159. SelectBuild Northern California Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Northern California bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims...
- 160. SelectBuild Southern California means SelectBuild Southern California, Inc., a Debtor.
- 161. SelectBuild Southern California Rejection Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that

the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against SelectBuild Southern California bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims..

- 162. Shareholder Agreement means that certain agreement, if any, by and among Reorganized BMHC and certain holders of Reorganized BMHC Equity Interests, to be entered into on the Effective Date, substantially in the form to be included in the Plan Supplement.
- 163. Small Unsecured Claims means (i) all General Unsecured Claims of a single creditor against all Debtors if the aggregate Allowed Amount of such Claims is less than or equal to \$5,000 and (ii) all General Unsecured Claims of a single creditor against all Debtors if the aggregate Allowed Amount of such Claims is greater than \$5,000 and the Holder of such Claims elects to reduce the aggregate Allowed Amount of its General Unsecured Claims against all Debtors to \$5,000 or less by making the Small Unsecured Claims Class Election on the Ballot within the time fixed by the Bankruptcy Court.
- 164. Small Unsecured Claims Class Election means an election by a Holder of General Unsecured Claims against the Debtors on its Ballot to reduce the aggregate Amount of such Claims against all Debtors to \$5,000 or less and have such Claim treated as a Small Unsecured Claim.
- 165. Subsidiary Debtors means BMC West, SelectBuild Construction, SelectBuild Northern California, Illinois Framing, C Construction, TWF Construction, H.N.R. Framing Systems, SelectBuild Southern California, SelectBuild Nevada, SelectBuild Arizona, and SelectBuild Illinois.
- 166. Supplemental Employee Retirement Programs means those certain non-qualified employee retirement programs implemented by the Debtors prior to the Petition Date.
- 167. Term Loan Credit Agreement means the term loan credit agreement, and all documents related thereto, including the Intercreditor Agreement, to be entered into, or deemed to be entered into, by the Reorganized Debtors and the Prepetition Lenders. The Term Loan Credit Agreement shall be substantially in the form contained in the Plan Supplement.
- 168. Term Notes means those certain term notes issued pursuant to the Term Loan Credit Agreement.
 - 169. TWF Construction means TWF Construction, Inc., a Debtor.
- 170. TWF Construction Unsecured Distribution means a Distribution from available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund equal to the ratio (expressed as a percentage) that the amount of Allowed General Unsecured Claims against TWF Construction bears to the aggregate amount of all Allowed General Unsecured Claims.
- 171. Unexpired Lease means a lease to which one or more of the Debtors is a party that is subject to assumption or rejection under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 172. Unimpaired means, with respect to a Class of Claims or Interests, a Class of Claims or Interests that is unimpaired within the meaning of section 1124 of the Bankruptcy Code.
- 173. Unsecured Cash Distribution Account means that certain segregated account maintained at WFB and designated as the "BMHC Unsecured Creditors' Cash Distribution Account" from which distributions of available, unreserved cash in the Unsecured Cash Fund will be made, as

provided in the Plan, to the Holders of Allowed General Unsecured Claims by the Reorganized Debtors, as Disbursing Agent.

- 174. Unsecured Cash Fund means \$5,500,000.
- 175. Unsecured Claim means any Claim that is neither Secured nor entitled to priority under the Bankruptcy Code or any order of the Bankruptcy Court, including any Claim arising from the rejection of an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.
 - 176. U.S. Trustee means the United States Trustee for the District of Delaware.
- 177. U.S. Trustee Fees means all fees and charges assessed against the Estates under section 1930 of title 28 of the United States Code, and interest, if any, for delinquent quarterly fees pursuant to section 3717 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- 178. Voting Deadline means the deadline set by the Bankruptcy Court for submitting Ballots.
 - 179. WFB means Wells Fargo Bank, N.A..

Exhibit 3

[Notice of Confirmed Plan, Effective Date and Deadline for Filing Certain Claims]

DB02:9046181.1 068301.1001

IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

IN RE:) Chapter 11
BUILDING MATERIALS HOLDING CORPORATION, et al., ⁵) Case No. 09-12074 (KJC)
Debtors.	Jointly Administered
)

NOTICE OF (A) EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDER CONFIRMING THE JOINT PLAN OF REORGANIZATION FOR THE DEBTORS UNDER CHAPTER 11_OF THE BANKRUPTCY CODE AMENDED DECEMBER 14, 2009(WITH TECHNICAL MODIFICATIONS) AND (B) DEADLINES FOR FILING CERTAIN CLAIMS

TO ALL CREDITORS, INTEREST HOLDERS, AND OTHER PARTIES-IN-INTEREST:

Confirmation of Plan of Reorganization and Occurrence of Effective Date

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on June 16, 2009 (the "Petition Date"), the above captioned debtors and debtors-in-possession (the "Debtors") filed voluntary petitions for relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code (the "Chapter 11 Cases") with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (the "Bankruptcy Court").

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Bankruptcy Court entered an order (the "Confirmation Order") confirming The Joint Plan of Reorganization for the Debtors under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code Amended December 14, 2009 (With Technical Modifications) (the "Plan") on December [_], 2009 (the "Confirmation Date"). Unless otherwise defined in this notice, capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan and the Confirmation Order.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that a copy of the Plan and the Confirmation Order may be obtained by contacting the Debtors' Balloting and Claims Agent, in writing, at The Garden City Group, Inc. ("GCG"), Attn.: Building Materials Holding Corporation, P.O. Box 9393, Dublin, OH 43017-4293. The Plan and Confirmation Order are also available free of charge on the Debtors' restructuring website located at http://bmhcrestructuring.com. The Plan and the Confirmation Order can also be viewed on the Court's website at www.deb.uscourts.gov. You may also contact the Debtors' claims agent, GCG, at 1-866-364-4266.

DB02:9046181.1 068301.1001

⁵ The Debtors, along with the last four digits of each Debtor's tax identification number, are as follows: Building Materials Holding Corporation (4269), BMC West Corporation (0454), SelectBuild Construction, Inc. (1340), SelectBuild Northern California, Inc. (7579), Illinois Framing, Inc. (4451), C Construction, Inc. (8206), TWF Construction, Inc. (3334), H.N.R. Framing Systems, Inc. (4329), SelectBuild Southern California, Inc. (9378), SelectBuild Nevada, Inc. (8912), SelectBuild Arizona, LLC (0036), and SelectBuild Illinois, LLC (0792). The mailing address for the Debtors is 720 Park Boulevard, Suite 200, Boise, Idaho 83712.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Plan became effective on December [__], 2009 (the "Effective Date"). Each of the conditions to the Effective Date have been satisfied or waived in accordance with section 10.1.2 of the Plan.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Plan and the Confirmation Order, and their respective terms and provisions, are binding on the Debtors, the Reorganized Debtors, any entity acquiring or receiving property or a distribution under the Plan, and any present or former holder of a Claim against or Interest in the Debtors and their respective successors, assigns, and parties-in-interest, including all Governmental Units, whether or not the applicable Claim or Interest of such holder is impaired under the Plan and whether or not such holder or entity voted to accept or reject the Plan (or abstained from voting on the Plan).

Deadline for Filing Claims Arising from Rejection of Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Pursuant to the Plan

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that, pursuant to section 6.1 of the Plan, the Debtors filed a Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List on December [___], 2009, and all agreements listed therein shall be rejected effective as of the date specified therein.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that, pursuant to the Confirmation Order and section 6.2 of the Plan, all agreements or policies relating to vacation or personal time off, including agreements, plans or policies of Subsidiary Debtors that have been in effect from time to time and any contractual commitments or accepted offers of employment that contain more favorable vacation or personal time off terms than the BMC West Vacation Policy 2009 that was in effect as of the June 16, 2009 Petition Date shall be rejected effective as of the Confirmation Date.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that pursuant to the Confirmation Order and section 6.3 of the Plan, all Proofs of Claim with respect to Claims arising from the rejection of Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases pursuant to the Plan or the Confirmation Order, including with respect to rejected vacation and/or paid time off programs or agreements and all Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases identified on the Rejected Executory Contract and Unexpired Lease List, must be filed with the Bankruptcy Court within 30 days after the December [], 2009 Effective Date and served upon GCG, the Balloting and Claims Agent as follows: (i) if by first class mail: The Garden City Group, Inc., Attn: Building Materials Holding Corporation, P.O. Box 9393, Dublin, OH 43017-4293; or (ii) if by messenger or overnight courier: The Garden City Group, Inc., Attn: Building Materials Holding Corporation, 5151 Blazer Parkway, Suite A. Dublin, OH 43017. Any Claims arising from the rejection of an Executory Contract or Unexpired Lease not filed and served as specified within such time will be automatically disallowed, forever barred from assertion, and shall not be enforceable against the Debtors or the Reorganized Debtors, the Estates, or their property without the need for any objection by the Reorganized Debtors or further notice to, or action, order, or approval of the Bankruptcy Court. All Allowed Claims arising from the rejection of the Debtors' Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases shall be classified as General Unsecured Claims and shall be treated in accordance with Section 4.6 or 4.8 of the Plan, whichever may be applicable.

Deadline for Filing Professional Compensation Claims

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that, notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan dealing with Administrative Expense Claims, any Person asserting a Professional Compensation Claim shall, no later than thirty (30) days after the December [], 2009 Confirmation Date (the "Professional")

Compensation Claims Bar Date"), file a final application for allowance of compensation for services rendered and reimbursement of expenses incurred through the Confirmation Date.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that all final fee applications of Professionals shall be filed with the Bankruptcy Court and actually served on or prior to the Professional Compensation Claims Bar Date upon the following parties: (i) Building Materials Holding Corporation, 720 Park Boulevard, Suite 200, Boise, Idaho 83712, Attn.: Paul S. Street; (ii) Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP, 200 Park Ave., New York, New York 10166, Attn.: Michael A. Rosenthal and Matthew K. Kelsey; (iii) Young Conaway Stargatt & Taylor, LLP, The Brandywine Building, 1000 West Street, 17th Floor, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, Attn: Sean M. Beach and Robert F. Poppiti, Jr.; (iv) the Office of the United States Trustee for the District of Delaware, 844 King Street, Suite 2207, Lockbox 35, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, Attn: Joseph McMahon; (v) Arent Fox, LLP, 1050 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20036-5339, Attn: Christopher J. Giaimo and Katie A. Lane; (v) Benesch, Friedlander, Coplan & Aronoff LLP, 222 Delaware Avenue, Suite 801, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, Attn: Bradford J. Sandler; (vii) Paul, Hastings, Janofsky & Walker LLP, 55 Second Street, Twenty-Fourth Floor, San Francisco, California 94105, Attn: Kevin B. Fisher; and (viii) Paul, Hastings, Janofsky & Walker LLP, 75 E. 55th Street, First Floor, New York, NY 10022, Attn: Thomas L. Kent (collectively, the "Notice Parties").

PLEASE TAKE FURTHERNOTICE that any objection to any final fee application shall be filed with the Bankruptcy Court, together with proof of service thereof, and served upon the applicable Professional and the other Notice Parties, so as to be actually received not later than 4:00 p.m. (prevailing Eastern Time) on the date that is twenty (20) days after such final fee application is filed with the Bankruptcy Court and served upon the Notice Parties (the "Professional Fees Objection Deadline"). Only those objections made in writing and timely filed and received by the Professional Fees Objection Deadline will be considered by the Bankruptcy Court. If no objection to a final fee application is timely filed and served in accordance with the procedures set forth herein, then the Bankruptcy Court may enter a final order approving such uncontested final fee application without further notice and the Reorganized Debtors may pay the amounts described in such uncontested final fee application (or if any final fee application is the subject of an objection, the Reorganized Debtors may pay the undisputed amounts described in such final fee application). The hearing to consider approval of the final fee applications, if necessary, will be held as soon as reasonably practicable after the expiration of the Professional Fees Objection Deadline and the date of such hearing will be promptly provided to the applicable Professional and Notice Parties and posted on the Debtors' restructuring website at http://bmhcrestructuring.com.

ALL PLEADINGS FILED WITH, AND ORDERS GRANTED BY, THE BANKRUPTCY COURT ARE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION ON THE BANKRUPTCY COURT'S INTERNET SITE AT <u>WWW.DEB.USCOURTS.GOV</u> AND AT NO COST FROM THE REORGANIZED DEBTORS' RESTRUCTURING WEBSITE: HTTP://BMHCRESTRUCTURING.COM.

Dated: December [___], 2009 Wilmington, Delaware BY THE ORDER OF THE COURT THE HONORABLE KEVIN J. CAREY

Attorneys For Debtors And Debtors-In-Possession

Sean M. Beach, Esq.
Donald J. Bowman, Esq.
Robert F. Poppiti, Jr., Esq.
YOUNG CONAWAY STARGATT &
TAYLOR, LLP
The Brandywine Building
1000 West Street, 17th Floor
Wilmington, Delaware 19801

Michael A. Rosenthal, Esq.
Matthew K. Kelsey, Esq.
Aaron G. York, Esq.
GIBSON, DUNN & CRUTCHER LLP
200 Park Avenue
New York, New York 10166-0193